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Independent Auditor's Report on the Quarterly and Year to Date Consolidated Financial 
Results of the Company Pursuant to the Regulation 33 and 52 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended 

Independent Auditors Report on audit of the Consolidated Financial Results 

To the Board of Directors of The Investment Trust of India Limited 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying statement of quarterly and year to date consolidated 
financial results of The Investment Trust of India Limited ("Holding Company") and its 
subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as "the Group") 
and its associates for the quarter ended March 31, 2022 and for the year ended March 31, 
2022 ("Statement"), attached herewith, being subrnilled by (he Holding Company pursuant to 
the requirement of Regulation 33 and 52 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended ("Listing Regulations"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us 
and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate audited 
financial statements and on the other financial information of the subsidiaries and associates, 
the Statement: 

1. Include the annual financial results of the following entities: - 

  

  

  

  

Name of the entity Relationship 

The Investment Trust of India Limited Holding Company 

Fortune Credit Capital Limited Subsidiary Company 

IT| Asset Management Limited Subsidiary Company 
  

Fortune Management Advisors Limited (Formerly | Subsidiary Company 

known as Fortune Integrated Home Finance Limited) : 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

IT! Securities Broking Limited Subsidiary Company 

Antique Stock Broking Limited Subsidiary Company 

ITI Capital Limited Subsidiary Company 

Distress Asset Specialist Limited Subsidiary Company 

ITI Gilts Limited Subsidiary Company 

ITl Mutual Fund Trustee Private Limited Subsidiary Company 

IRC Credit Management Services Limited Subsidiary Company 

ITI Nirman Limited Subsidiary Company 

ITI Alternate Funds Management Limited Subsidiary Company 

United Petro Finance Limited Subsidiary Company 
        
  

IT| Growth Opportunities LLP Subsidiary LEPS os   
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Neue Allianz Corporate Services Private Limited Step down subsidiary 

Antique Stock Broking (IFSC) Limited Step down subsidiary 

Intime Multi Commodity Company Limited Step down subsidiary 

Fortune Integrated Assets Finance Limited Associate 

Toplink Advisors LLP Subsidiary of Fortune 

Integrated Assets Finance 

Limited 

Ventana Power Generation LLP Subsidiary of Toplink 

Advisors LLP         
2. are presented in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Regulations in this 

regard; and 

3. gives a true and fair view in conformity with the recognition and measurement 

principles laid down in the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) and other 

accounting principles generally accepted in India of the consolidated net loss and 

consolidated total comprehensive loss and other financial information of the Group for 

the quarter ended March 31, 2022, and net profit and consolidated total comprehensive 

income and other financial information of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2022. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified 

under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended ("the Act"). Our 

responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the "Auditor's Responsibilities 

for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Results" section of our report. We are independent 

of the Group and its associates in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute 

of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 

our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, 

and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements 

and tho Code of Ethics. We believe (hal the audit evidence ohtained hy rs and other atiditars 

in terms of their reports referred to in "Other Matter" paragraph below, is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Management and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Annual 

Financial Results 

These Statement have been prepared on the basis of the consolidated annual financial 

statements. The Holding Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation 

and presentation of the Statement that give a true and fair view of the consolidated net 

profit/(loss) and other comprehensive income/(loss) and other financial information of the 

Group including its associates in accordance with the applicable accounting standards 

prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other 

accounting principles generally accepted in India and in compliance with Regulation 33 and 

52 of the Listing Regulations. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in 

the Group and of its associates are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the 

Group and its associates and preventing detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 

and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 

reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 

internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring Ajhe.accuracy and 

completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation optisiafayon of the 
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Statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the Statement by the 
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the Statement, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the 
Group and of its associates are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of its 
associates to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of 
Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates 
are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its 
associates. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Annual Financial Results 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statement as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or érror, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not 
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Statement. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statement!, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our Opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control, 

e Obtain an understanding of internal contro! relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, 
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has 
adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated annual financial result 
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of 
Directors. 

e Evaluate the appropriateness and reasonableness of disclosures made by the Board of 
Directors in terms of the requirements specified under Regulation 33 of the Listing 
Regulations. 

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the 
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the ability of the Group and its associates to continue as a going_concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw atieritiondimour 
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if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 

the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events 

or conditions may cause the Group and its associates to cease to continue as a going 

concern. 

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Statement, including the 

disclosures, and whether the Statement represent the underlying transactions and 

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

e Perform procedures in accordance with the circular issued by the SEBI under Regulation 

33(8) of the Listing Regulations to the extent applicable. 

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial results/financial 

information of the entities within the Group and its associates to express an opinion on 

the Statement. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the 

audit of financial information of such entities included in the Statement of which we are 

the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the Statement, which have 

been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, 

supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely 

responsible for our audit opinion. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Statement that, individually or in 

aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable 

user of the Statement may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 

factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; 

and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identifled misstatements in the Statement. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other 

entities included in the Statement of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among 

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 

including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit, 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 

and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to Note No. 4 of the accompanying Statement, which describes the 

management evaluation of impact of uncertainties related to COVID-19 and its consequential 

effect on the operations of the Company. 

Further, in respect to certain subsidiaries and associate of which some are reviewed by other 

auditors, the business of such subsidiaries and associate of the Company, are impacted on 

account of Covid-19 pandemic. 

Our conclusion on the Statement is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Other Matter 

1. The Statement includes the audited Financial Results of eleven subsidiaries, three step- 

down subsidiaries and one associate whose Financial Statements reflect Group’s share 

of total assets (before consolidation adjustment) of Rs. 58,580.44 lakhs.as-atM; (ch 31, 

2022, Group's share of total revenue of Rs. 17,002.86 lakhs, Group's share of tla net 
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profit after tax of Rs. 2,237.56 lakhs and Group’s share of net cash inflows of Rs. 
2,242.89 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the Statement, which 
have been audited by their respective independent auditors. The independent auditors’ 
reports on financial statements of these entities have been furnished to us and our 
opinion on the Statement, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included 
in respect of these entities, is based solely on the report of such auditors and the 
procedures performed by us are as stated in paragraph above. 

2, Our opinion on the Statement is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect 
to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and financial 
information certified by the Management. 

3. The Statement includes the results for the quarter ended March 31, 2022 being the 
: balancing figures between the audited figures in respect of the full financial year ended 

March 31, 2022 and the published unaudited year-to-date figures ip ta the end of the 
third quarter of the current financial year, which were subjected to a limited review by 
us, as required under the Listing Regulations. 

For Ramesh M. Sheth & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

(ICAI Firm’s Registration No. 111883W) 

Place of Signature: Mumbai 

Date: 2U.U5.2022 

UDIN No. 22101598AJHPFK4136 

  

(Mehul R. Sheth) 

(Partner) 

(Membership No. 101598) 
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THE INVESTMENT TRUST OF INDIA LIMITED 
Registered Office: ITI House, 36 Dr.R.K.Shirodkar Road, Parel, Mumbai 400012 

CIN: L65910MH1991PLC062067; Email: cosecretary@itiorg.com; Website: www.itiorg.com 

Statement of audited consolidated financial results for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2022 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

(= in lakhs) 

Sr.No. Quarter ended Year ended 

Particulars 31.03.2022 31.12.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2022 31.03.2021 

Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited 

1 Revenue from operations 7,950.25 7AT3.67 10,719.94 32,406.73 32,164.64 

2  |Other income 281.27 78.95 584.96 1,527.33 1,765.31 

3. |Total Income (1+2) 8,231.52 7,552.62 11,304.90 33,934.06 33,929.95 

4 Expenses 

a) Purchase of trading goods 2,359.96 2,431.20 2,602.86 9,138.32 5,900.14 

b) Changes in inventories of stock in trade 31.45 26.01 (30.16) 63.58 53.48 

c) Employee benefits expense 2,404.59 2,464.33 2,625.99 10,502.91 10,025.47 

d) Finance costs 511.46 566.91 878.25 2,884.50 4,105.78 

¢) Depreciation and amortisation expense 362.87 285.05 202.42 1,121.28 965.34 

f) Administration and other expense 2,684,833 2,314.07 4,503.47 9,409.23 10,878.56 

Total Expenses (atb+c+d+etf) 8,355.16 8,087.57 10,782.83 33,119.82 31,928.77 

5 Bron (oss) before Share of profit of associates, exceptional items (123.64) (534.95) 522.07 814.24 2,001.18 
and tax (3-4) 

6 |Share of profit/(loss) of associates 141,98 (53.15); 233.33 382.77 470.24 

7 |Profit/(I.oss) hefare exceptional items and tax (5+6) 18.34 (588,10) 755.40 1,197.01 2,471 42 
8 Exceptional Items : : . : 

9 Profit/(Loss) before tax (7+8) 18.34 (588.10) 755.40 1,197.01 2,471.42 

10 |Tax Expense: 

~ Current tax 315.04 261.12 176.17 1,236.62 919.03 

- Deferred tax (211.22) (59.34) 255.76 (172.56) 19.04 

- Tax in respect of earlier years (12.15) - (1.21) (12.14) 4.60 

ll__|Net Profit/(Loss) after tax (9-10) (73.33)} (789 88) 324 AR 145.09 1,528 75 

12 Other Comprchcnsive Income 

A {(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 61.53 0.91 36.09 61.48 29.99 

as tax relating to items that will not be reelassificd to profit or (16.17) (0.10) (8.51) (16.02) (7.03) 

B  |(1) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - - - « - 

(11) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - - - 

13 |Total Comprehensive Income ( 11+12) (27.97) (789.07) 352.26 190.55 1,551.71 

Net Profit attributable to: 

Shareholders of the company 27.73 (796.49) 306.68 157.99 1,506.78 
Non-controlling interests (101.06) 6.60 18.00 (12.90) 21.97 

Other Comprehensive Income attributable to: 

Shareholders of the company 45.34 0.81 19.16 45.44 14.54 
Non-controlling interests 0.02 - 8.42 0.02 8.42 

Total Comprehensive Income attributable to: 

Shareholders of the company 73.07 (795.68) 325.84 203.43 1,521.32 
Non-controlling interests (101.04) 6.60 26.42 (12.88) 30.39 

14 |Paid-up equity share capital (Face value of = 10 per share) 5,152.03 5,152.03 5,152.03 5,152.03 5,152.03 
13 |Other Equity (excluding revaluation reserves) - - - 54,930.88 54,947.87 
16 |Earning per Share (Not annualised) 

(on weighted average number of shares) (Face value of€ 10 each) 

- Basic (%) 0.05 (1.55) 0.60 0.31 292 

- Diluted _(@) 0.05 (1.55) 0.59 0.30 2.89               
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Notes: 

1) The above results have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and subsequently approved by the Board of Directors of The 

3 

4 

5 

6 

S
 

) 

) 

a
 

Investment Trust of India Limited ("the Company") at its meeting held on May 20, 2022. The Statutory Auditor of the Company 

have carried out an Independent Auditors' Review of Interim Consolidated Financial Results. 

These results have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) Financial Reporting 

prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended 

from time to time. 

The consolidated financial results are based on the consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 

Standard - 110 on “Consolidated Financial Statements" and includes the financial results of its wholly owned subsidiaries, 

subsidiaries and step-down subsidiaries namely ITI Securities Broking Limited, Fortune Credit Capital Limited, Fortune 
Management Advisors Limited , Antique Stock Broking Limited, IRC Credit Management Services Limited, ITI Gilts Limited, ITI 

Mutual Fund Trustee Private Limited, ITI Nirman Limited, ITI Capital Limited, ITI Alternate Funds Management Limited, Distress 

Asset Specialist Limited, ITI Asset Management Limited, United Petro Finance Limited, ITI Growth Opportunities LLP, Intime 

Multi Commodity Company Limited, Antique Stock Broking (IFSC) Limited, Neue Allianz Corporate Services Private Limited and 

its share of profit of associate namely Fortune Integrated Assets Finance Limited (including its subsidiary viz Toplink Advisors LLP 

and step down subsidiary Ventana Power Generation LLP). 

The outbreak of Corona virus (COVID-19) pandemic globally and in India is causing significant disturbance and slowdown of 
economic activity. The business of the few of subsidiaries and Associate have been impacted. However, there is no significant impact 

on the operations of the Group. 

Necessary precautions to ensure hygiene, safety, and wellbeing of all our employees at all offices have been implemented. The 

operations of the company have been started at optimum level and the Group has considered the possible effects of COVID-19 on the 

recoverability and hased on current indicators of future economic conditions, the group expects to recover the carrying value of 

assets. The situation is changing rapidly giving rise to inherent uncertainty around the extent and timing of the potential future impact 

of the COWID 19 whieh may be different fou that estliiated as at the date uf appiuval ul Uliese ivsulls. Phe Uiuup will Couliiue tu 

closely monitor any material changes arising of future economic conditions and impact on its business 

The figures for corresponding previous quarters / year ended March 31, 2021 have been restated/regrouped, rearranged and 

reclassificd wherever necessary. 

The results for the quarter and year ended Match 31, 2022, we uvuiluble un the BSE Limited website (URL: www.bsvindia.cui), the 

National Stock Exchange of India Limited website (URL: www.nseindia.com) and on the Company’s website (URL: 

www.itiorg.com). 

For and on behalf of the Board 

The Investment Trust of India Limited 

Chintan V. Valia 

Mumbai, May 20, 2022 Chairman 

Please visit us at www.itiorg.com DIN: 05333936 
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THE INVESTMENT TRUST OF INDIA LIMITED 
Reporting of audited Consolidated Segment wise Revenue, Results, Assets and Liabilities 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

                

(@ in lakhs) 
Quarter ended Year ended 

Particulars 31.03.2022 31.12.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2022 31.03.2021 
Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited 

Segment Revenue 

Broking and related services 3,619,37 3,450,58 3,187 33 16,260.68 13,261.48 
Investment and Advisory services 860.58 786.85 867.20 4,035.26 2,638.58 
Trading activities 2,361.25 2,595.06 2,742.05 9,525.54 6,488.56 
Financing activities 1,134.51 1,075.26 4,356.05 5,847.28 11,431.26 
Asset Management activities 352.44 151.17 526.62 1,386.93 2,008.71 
Total 8,328.15 8,058.92 11,679.25 37,055,69 35,831.59 
Less: Inter segment revenue 96.62 506.30 374.35 3,121.63 1,901.64 
Net Income frum Operations 8,231.53 7,552.62 11,304.90 33,934.06 33,929.95 
Segment Results - Profit before interest and tax 
Broking and related services 1,248.62 935.60 1,026.92 5,640.92 4,997.63 
Investment and Advisory services 149.71 (41.69) 121.21 983.79 (402.57) 
Trading Activities 48.23 102.64 199.10 391,54 602.74 
Financing activities (15,98) 9.88 731 66 (54.24) 2,298.03 
Asset Management activities (1,042.76) (974.47) (678.56) (3,263.27) (1,388.86) 
Total 387.82 31.96 1,400.32 3,698.74 6,106.96 
Less: Finance cost 511.46 566.91 878.25 2,884.50 4,105.78 
Profit/(Loss) before tax (123.64) (534.95) 522.07 814.24 2,001.18 

Segment Assets 

Rroking and related services 61,614,98 4,482.21 41 RAS RS 61,614.98 41,845.85 
Investment and Advisory services 48,695.94 62,846.78 56,953.55 48,695.94 56,953.55 
Trading activities 3,122.62 3,153.42 3,100.54 3,122.62 3,100.54 
Financing activities 39,356.78 43,287.07 $2,179.11 39,356.78 52,179.11 
Asset Management activities 8,133.22 8,486.18 13,538.62 8,133.22 13,538.62 
Inter segment assets (60,233.65) (55,007.29) (53,541.96) (60,233.65) (53,541.96) 

1,00,689.88 1,03,248.36 1,14,075.71 1,00,689.89 1,14,075.71 

Segment Liabilities 

Broking and related services 38,594.38 21,040.79 23,443.62 38,594.38 23,443.62 
Investment and Advisory services 7,274.09 18,849.22 16,220.62 7,274.09 16,220.62 
Trading Activities 141.96 1.43 21.29 141.96 21.29 
Financing activities 12,749.40 16,771.25 25,501.65 12,749.40 25,501.65 
Asset Management activities 1,770.60 1,054.45 5,957.45 1,770.60 5,957.45 
Inter segment liabilities (19,968.78) (14,992.17) (17,370.38) (19,968.78) (17,370.38) 
Total 

40,561.65 42,724.95 53,774.25 40,561.65 53,774.25     
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THE INVESTMENT TRUST OF INDIA LIMITED 

Statement of Consolidated Assets and Liabilities 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

@ in lakhs) 
Sr. F Asat As at No. Baeticalats 31.03.2022 | 31.03.2021 

Audited Audited 
I |ASSETS 

1.)Non-current assets 

(a)Property, plant and equipment 788.02 492.64 
(b)Right-of-use assets 

2,071.84 516.50 
(c) Capital work-in-progress 

3.78 19.12 
(d) Intangible assets 

282.71 501.61 
(€) Goodwill on consolidation 

803.28 803.28 
(f) Investments in Subsidiaries and Associate 9,791.96 9,409.17 
(g) Financial Assets 

(i) Investments 
9,073.61 8,841.97 

(ii) Loans 
3,904.04 813.74 

(iii) Other financial assets 1,050,42 4,266.57 
(h) Deferred tax assets (net) 4,020.32 3,863.77 (i) Other non current assets , 2,113.09 2,550.62 

2.)Current assets 

(a) Inventories 
736.95 2,915.89 

(b) Financial Assets 

(i) Investments 4,483.77 0.18 
(ii) Trade receivables 

7,995.97 5,413.44 
(iif) Cach and cash oquivalents 18,802.53 12,367.57 
(iv) Other balances with Bank 10,525.61 11,307.84 
(v) Loans 

19,494.59 42,597.74 
(vi) Other financial current assets 3,149.79 5,174.62 

(c) Other current assets 
1,597.61 2,219.44 

Total Assets 
1,00,689,89 114,075 71 

TT EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

1.JEquity 

(a) Equity share capital 5,152.03 5,152.03 
(b) Other equity 

54,930.88 54,947.87 
Total equity attributable to equity share holders 60,082.91 60,099.90 
(c) Non-controlling Interest 

45.33 201,56 
Total Equity 

60,128.24 60,301.46 

2.| Liabilities 

i.{Non-Current liabilities 

(a)Financial Liabilities 

(i)Borrowings 
2,415.57 2,194.01 

(ii)Lease liabilities 
1,888.89 573.72 (b)Provisions 

404.25 338.04 
ii.] Current liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 
10,371.76 25,608.41 

(ii)Lease liabilities 
416.08 66.49 

(iii) Trade payables 
19,694.31 17,123.49 (iv) Other Financial Liabilities 
3,998.69 6,423.16 (b) Other current liabilities 

1,207.58 1,177.94 
(c) Provisions 

164,52 268.99 
Total Liabilities 

40,561.65 53,774.25 
Total Equity and Liabilities 

1,00,689.89 1,14,075.71           
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(A) 

(B 

(c 

THE INVESTMENT TRUST OF INDIA LIMITED 

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 

Particulars 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Net profit before tax and extraordinary items 

Adjustments for : 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Amortisation of share issue expenses 

(Gain}/Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 
Net (gain)/ loss on fair valuation of investments through profit and loss 
Share based payment 

Net (gain )/ loss on sale of investments 

Interest pertaining to lease liability 

Net (gain )/ loss on Lease Modification 

Loss allowances on receivables 

Provision for non performing assets written back 

Provision for standard assets written back 

Assignment receivables written off 

Bad Debts / Sundry balances written off (net) 

Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligations 

Gains and losses arising from translating the financial statements of foreign operation 
Loss allowances on loans 

Share of profit of associates 

Provisions for employee benefits 

Interest expense 

Operating Profit before Working Capital Change 

Adjustments for : 

(Increase )/ Decrease in Trade and other receivables 

(Increase)/Decrease in margin money deposit, fixed deposit and other bank balances 
(Increase)/dacroaso in inventories 

Increase/ (Decrease) in trade and other payables 

Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) 

NFT CASH INGIOWI(OUTFLOW) PROM QPENATING AGTIVITICG 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment aiid liilangible assets 
Sale of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets 
Capital work in progress 

(Incroace )/ Docrease in non current investivenls 

NET CASH INFLOW/{OUTFLOW) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Net proceeds from borrowings 

Purchase from Minorities 

Interest expense 

Payment of lease liabilities and interest 

NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {A+B+C) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Asat 

March 31, 2022 

1,197.01 

22,371.04 

1,565.39 

7b 

179.23 

31,019.71 

(775.00) 

SU tH AL 

  

  

(359,85) 

15.34 
(4,633.40) 

(5,177.91) 

(15,015.09) 
(369.34) 

(2,562.36) 
(685.05) 

(18,631.84) 
6,434.96 

  

  

12,367.57 

18,802.53 

(@ in Lakhs) 

As at 

March 31, 2021 

2,471.42 

965.34 
9.21 
(6.13) 

(1,185.86) 
68.03 
(3.77) 

107.98 
(99.62) 
223.02 

(2,085.00) 
(77.05) 
56.13 

2,968.72 
22.96 
(3.76) 

1,353.40 
(470.24) 
152.82 

3,975.28 
8,442.88 

7,718.85 

(531.75) 
Aye by 

5,182.78 

25,335.44 
(440.34) 

24,895 40 

(150A) 

1.80 

0.87 

(1,072.44) 

(1,218.83) 

(10,052.89) 

(3,975.28) 
(519,12) 

(14,547.29) 

9,128.98 
3,238.59 
12,367.57 
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Independent Auditor's Report on the Quarterly and Year to Date Audited Standalone Financial 

Results of the Company Pursuant to the Regulation 33 and 52 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended 

Independent Auditors Report 

To the Board of Directors of The Investment Trust of India Limited 

Report on the audit of the Standalone Financial Results 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying statement of quarterly and year to date Statement of 
standalone financial results of The Investment Trust of India Limited (the "Company") for the 

quarter and year ended March 31, 2022 ("Statement"), attached herewith, being submitted by 

the Company pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 33 and 52 of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (the "Listing 

Regulations"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us, the Statement: 

i) is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Regulations in this 

regard; and 

ii) gives a true and fair view in conformity with the applicable accounting standards and 

other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the net loss and total 

comprehensive loss and other financial information of the Company for the quarter 

ended March 31, 2022 and net profit and total comprehensive income and other financial 

information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 

section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended ("the Act"). Our responsibilities 

under those Standards are further described in the "Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of 

the Statement of Standalone Financial Results" section of our report. We are independent of 

the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 

standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and 

we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and 

the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Management's Responsibilities for the Statement of Standalone Financial Results 

The Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and presentation 

of the Statement that gives a true and fair view of the net loss and total comprehensive loss 

and other financial information of the Company for the quarter ended 31% March’z 2 and A 

net profit and total comprehensive income and other financial information of the Companysfor 

the year ended 31% March 2022 in accordance with the recognition and surement 

principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standard 34, ‘Interim Financial Reporting et 
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under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting 

principles generally accepted in India and in compliance with Regulation 33 and 52 of the 

Listing Regulations. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the 

Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 

application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 

reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 

internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 

completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 

Statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 

to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Statement, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the 

Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 

going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors 

either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 

but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 

process . 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Statement of Standalone Financial 

Results 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statement as a whole 

is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not 

a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the Statement. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judqment and maintain 

profeceional ekepticiem throughout the audit. We algo: 

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statement, whether due 

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 

than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the 

Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has 

adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements 

in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors. 

e Evaluate the appropriateness and reasonableness of disclosures made by the Board 

of Directors in terms of the requirements specified under Reguiation:33. of tie Listing 

Regulations. oN 
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors' use of the going concern 

basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 

Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related 

disclosures in the Statement of standalone AS financial results or, if such disclosures 

are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or 

conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Statement, including the 

disclosures, and whether the Statement represents the underlying transactions and 

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the Standalone Financial 

Results of the Company to express an opinion on the Standalone Financial Results. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Results that, 

individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 

knowledgeable user of the Standalone Financial Results may be influenced. We consider 

quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and 

in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the Standalone Financial Results. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and fa cammuiinicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 

anc where appllcable, related! safeguards 

Other Matter 

The Statement includes the results for the quarter ended March 31, 2022 being the balancing 

figure between the audited figures in respect of the full financial year ended March 31, 2022 

and the unaudited year-to-date figures up to the third quarter of the current financial year, 

which were subject to a limited review by us, as required under the Listing Regulations. 

For Ramesh M. Sheth & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

(ICAI Firm’s Registration No. 111883W) 

Place of Signature: Mumbai 

Date: 20.05.2022 

UDIN: 22101598AJHPKK8890    
(Mehul R. Sheth) 

(Partner) 

(Membership No. 101598)
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THE INVESTMENT TRUST OF INDIA LIMITED 

Registered Office: ITI House, 36 Dr.R.K.Shirodkar Road, Parel, Mumbai 400012 

CIN: L63910MH1991PLC062067; Email: cosecretary@itiorg.com; Website: www.itiorg.com 

Statement of audited standalone financial results for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2022 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

  

  

  

  

    

  

  

  

  

    

(€ in lakhs) 

Quarter ended Year ended 
oa Particulars 31.03.2022 31.12.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2022 31.03.2021 

Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited 

1 Revenue from operations 2,756.55 2,943.85 3,096.42 11,500.95 7,654.00 
2  |Other income 107.98 288.39 244.23 929.98 991.13 
3__|Total Income (1+2) 2,864.53 3,232.24 3,340.65 12,430.93 8,645.13 
4 |Expenses 

a) Purchase of trading goods 2,359.96 7,431.20 2,602.86 9,138.32 5,900.14 
b) Changes in inventories of stock in trade 31.45 26.01 (30.16) 63.58 53.48 
c) Employee benefits expense 113.92 109.39 102.11 500.38 476.80 
d) Finance costs 257.89 392.54 334.76 1,394.25 1,452.06 
¢) Depreciation and amortisation expense 115.68 106.02 78.35 474.13 490.14 
f) Administration and other expense 262.90 263.19 100.97 834.10 625,04 
LOtal Expenses (atb+ce+d+etf) 3,141.80 3,328.35 3,188.89 12,404.76 8,997,66 

5 |Prufit( Luss) before exceptional items and taxes (3-4) (277.27) (96.11) 151.76 26.17 (352.53) 

6 {Exceptional Items - - - - - 
7_|Profit((Loss) before tax (5+6) (277.27) (96.11) 151.76 26.17 (352.53) 
8 |Tax Expense: 

- Current tax - - - - - 
- Tax in respect of earlier years (6.22) - 16.27 (6.22) 16.27 
- Deferred tax (18.11) (20.01) (49 79) (63.01) (84,86) 

9 |Pruflu(Lugs) utter tax (/-8) (252.94) (76.10) 185.28 95,40 (283.94) 
10 |Other Comprehensive Income 

A_ |(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 2.91 - 8.43 4,25 2.68 
iat relating to items that will not be reclassified to (0.72) . 227) (1.06) (0.67) 

B_ |(i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - - - - - (ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to . . . . . profit or loss 

11 |Total Comprehensive Income/(loss) (9+10) (250.75) (76.10) 191.44 98.59 (281.93) 

12 |Paid-up equity share capital (Face value = 10/- per share) 5,152.03 5,152.03 5,152.03 5,152.03 5,152.03 
{3 /Other Equity (excluding revaluation reserves) - - - 37,970.90 37,872.31 
14 |Earning per Share (Not annualised) 

(on weighted average number of shares) ( Face value of £10/- 
each) 

- Basic (%) (0.49) (0.14) 36 0.19 56) - Diluted (%) (0.49) (0.14) 0.36 0.18 56) 
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Notes: 

!) 

2) 

3) 

4) 

The above results have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and subsequently approved by the Board of Directors 
of The Investment Trust of India Limited ("the Company") at its meeting held on May 20, 2022.The Statutory 
Auditor of the Company have carried out an Independent Auditors' Review of Interim Standalone Financial Results. 

These results have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard (referred to as “Ind AS”) 
Financial Reporting prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time. 

The figures for corresponding previous quarter/year ended March 31, 2021 have been restated/regrouped, 
rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary. 

The results for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2022, are available on the BSE Limited website 
(URL: www.bseindia.com), the National Stock Exchange of India Limited website (URL: www.nseindia.com) and 
on the Company’s website (URL: www.itiorg.com). 

For and on behalf of the Board 

The Investment Trust of India Limited 

pes. 
Chintan V. Valia 

Mumbai, May 20, 2022 Chairman 
Please visit us at www.itiorg.com DIN: 05333936 
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  THE INVESTMENT TRUST OF INDIA LIMITED 

Statement of standalone Assets and Liabilities 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

          

(@ in lakhs) 

Particulars As at As at 
31.03.2022 31.03.2021 

Audited Audited 
ASSETS 

Non-current assets 

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 18.08 1255 
(b) Right-of-use assets 

1,423.17 487.05 
(c) Intangible assets 

1,59 4.42 
(d) Investments in subsidiaries and associates 40,872.04 48,296.05 
(e) Financial Assets 

(i) Investments 
1,820.34 1,655.07 

(ii) Loans 
300.18 442.65 

(f) Deferred tax assets (Net) 739.36 677.41 
(g) Other non current assets 1,020.57 877.71 

Current assets 

(a) Inventorics 
- 63.58 

(b) Financial Assets 

(i) Trade receivables 
3,034.25 3,310.85 

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 
19.87 226.43 

(iii) Loans 
2.00 555.95 

(iv) Other financial current assets 261.58 1,425.77 
(c) Other current assets 

304.03 532.19 

Total Assets 
49,817.06 58,567.68 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Faquiry 

(a) Equity share capital 
9,152.03 5,152.03 

(b) Other Equity 
37,970.90 31,812.31 Total Equity 43,122.93 43,024.34 

Liabilities 

Non-current liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 
(i)Borrowings 

1,879.59 1,715.45 
(ii)Lease liabilities 

1,174.46 542.82 
(b) Provisions 

22.42 29.11 

Current liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 
(i) Borrowings 

2,748.75 10,728.52 (ii)Lease liabilities 
416.08 66.49 

(iii) Trade payables 
141.96 130.70 

(iv) Other Financial Liabilities 
133,97 2,060.82 

(b) Other current liabilities 
136.59 224.30 

(c) Provisions 
40.31 45.13 

Total Liabilities 
6,694.13 15,543.34 

Total Equity and Liabilities 49,817.06 58,567.68 
  

  

   

Page 169



THE INVESTMENT TRUST OF INDIA LIMITED 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

(€ in Lakhs) 
Particulars 

Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Audited Audited 
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Net Profit before tax as per statement of Profit and Loss 26.17 (352.53) 
Adjustments for : 

Depreciation and amortisation 
474.13 490.14 

Corporate guarantee charges (106.65) (102.50) 
Assignment receivables written off 19.45 56.13 
Profit on sale of property Plant and Equipment - (2.46) 
Provision for employee benefits (Net) - 4.92 
Loss allowance on receivables 

24.48 48.44 
Provision for expenses 

24.49 
Amortisation of share issue expenses 9.00 5:24 
Bad debts / sundry balances written off (Net) 13.00 - 
Interest income 

- (6.31) 
Net (gain)/loss on fair valuation through profit and loss (143.20) (185.53) 
Share based payment 

- 68.03 
Loss / (Gain) on Modification of Lease Liability (11.99) (99.62) 
Interest expense pertaining to lease liability 168.21 104.28 
Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligations 4.25 2.68 
Interest expense 

1,225.86 1,347.73 
Dividend income 

(32.15) (17.01) 
Operating Profit before working capital change 1,670.56 1,390.09 

Adjustments for : 

(Increase) / Decrease in trade and others receivables 2,261,52 1,261.33 
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 

63.58 53.48 
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables, other payables and provisions (2,004.72) 519.74 

1,990,94 377474 
Uireel lax paid (ner) 

(136,64) 484.53 
NET CASH INTLOW /(OUTFLOW) FROM OPERATING ACIIVIIIES 1,854.30 3,709.17 

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets (13.26) (0.76) 
Sale of property, plant and equipment 

- 3.13 
(Increase) / Decrease in investments in subsidiaries 7,530.66 (2,200.00) 
Interest income 

- 6.31 
NET CASH INFLOW /(QUTFLOW) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 7,517.40 (2,191.32) 

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Net borrowings 
(7,815.63) 463.51 

Payment of lease liabilities 
(536.77) (500.89) 

Interest expense 
(1,225.86) (1,347.73) 

NET CASH INFLOW / (OUTFLOW) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (9,578.26) (1,385.11) 

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) (206.56) 132.74 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 226.43 93.69 
Cash and cash equivalents transferred through Scheme of Arrangement on account of merger a : = 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 19.87 226.43 

  Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary, to confirm the current year's classification. 
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RAMESH M. SHETH AND ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

402/403, Time Chambers, 4th Floor, S.V. Road, Andhert (West), Mumbai 400058
Tel: +91 2240126767/49676768 M No: 9820297310 email: office@rmsassociates.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of The Investment Trust of India Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Investment Trust of India
Limited (hereinafter referred to asthe 'Holding Company") and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as "the Group"), its associates, whichcomprise the consolidated Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the consolidated statementof Profit and Loss(induding Other
Comprehensive Income», the consolidated statementof changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flows Statement for the year then ended. and notes to the consolidated financial statements,including a
summary of significant accounting policies (hereinafter referred to as Mtheconsolidated financialstatements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to uS,the
aforesaid consolidated financial statementsgive the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in co,"!formitywith the accounting principJesgenerallyaccepted in
India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its associate as at March 31,2021, of
consolidated profitand total comprehensive profit, consolidatedchanges in equity and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditingspecified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilitiesunder those Standards are
further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the ConsolidatedFinancial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Groupin accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India(lCAI) together with the independence requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilledour other ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with these requirements
and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffICientand
appropriateto providea basis for our audit opinionon the consolidated financialstatements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most signifteance in our
audit of the consolidated financialstatements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidatedfinanciaJ statements as a whole and informing our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
How our Audit addressed the Key Audit
matter

We have considered following in addressing the
Key Audit Matter:

• Performed process walkthrough to identify the
key systems, applications and controls used in the
im airment allowance rocesses.
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• Assessed the design and implementation of
controls in respect of the Group's loss allowance
process such as the timely recognition of
impairment loss, the completeness and accuracy
of reports used in the impairment allowance
process and management review processes over
the calculation of impairment allowance and the
related disclosures on credit risk management.
• Tested the relevant general IT and applications
controls over key systems used in the impairment
allowance processe~.
• Evaluated whether the methodology applied by
the Group's and its associate is compliant with the
requirements of the relevant accounting standards
and confirmed that the calculations are performed
in accordance with the approved methodology,
including checking mathematical accuracy of the
workings.

• Tested the periods considered for capturing
underlying data as base to PO and LGO
calculations are in line with Group's and its
associate's recent experience of past observed
periods.
• Tested the accuracy of the key inputs used in the
calculation and independently evaluated the
reasonableness of the assumptions made.
• Challenged completeness and validity of
management considerations with assistance of our
financial risk modeling experts by critically
evaluating the risks that have been addressed by
manaQementthrouah overJavs.

The determination of loss allowance on loans is
inherently judgmental and relies on
managements' best estimate due to thefoJlowing:

• Increased level of data inputs for capturing the
historical data to calculate the Probability of
Default ("POs") and Loss Given Oefau~ ("LGO"),
wherever applicable, and the completeness and
accuracy of that data.
• Use of management considerations for the
probability weighted scenarios, the forward
looking macro-economic factors and the timing
of cash flows.
• Criteria selected to identify signifICantincrease
in credit risk.

Estimates, by their nature, give rise to a higher
risk of material misstatement due to error or
fraud. Given the size of loan portfolio relative to
the balance sheet and the impact of Loan loss
allowance on the Consolidated financial
statements, we have considered this as a key
audit matter.

Emphasis of Matter

1) We draw attention to Note No. 45 of the consolidated financial statements, which relates to
the Scheme of Arrangement rScheme") between United Petro Finance Limited ('UPFL' or the
'Demerged Company') and Fortune Credit Capital Limited ('FCCl' or the 'Resulting
Company') and their respective shareholders providing for the demerger of lending business
('Lending Business') of UPFL to FCCl (Wholly Owned Subsidiary of the Company), and issue
of equity shares and optionally convertible preference shares rOCPS") of the Company to the
shareholders of UPFL with effect from March 31, 2017 (appointed date) was approved by the
Board of Directors of the respective Companies on March 31, 2017.

The Company had filed application with National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai
bench and the Scheme has been approved by NCLT vide order dated 3rd December, 2020.

The Company acquired control over UPFl on 14th October 2018, since when aU three
Companies are under common control. In view of the same, this Scheme is accounted in
accordance with Ind AS 103 - Business Combinations as common control business
combination by following pooling of interest method with effect from the date of acquisition of
control and accordingly the figures of previous year are restated, as applicable.

As per the Scheme of Arrangement, the Company issued 4,96,500 fully paid Equity shares of
face value INR 10 each and 7,32,000 Optionally Convertible Preference shares of face value
325/- each, convertible into equal number of equity shares of face value INR 101- each. to the
shareholders of UPFL. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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2} We draw attention to Note No. 470f the accompanyingconsoJidatedfinancial statements, which
describes the management evaluation of impact of uncertainties related to COVID-19 and its
consequential effect on the operations of the Group and its associate. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

Other Matter

1} We did not audit thefinancial statements of twelve sUbsidiaries,three step-dO'Nnsubsidiaries and
one associate, whose financial statements reflect total assets (before consolidation adjustment) of
Rs. 62,980.32 Lakhs as at 31st March, 2021, total revenues (before consolidation adjustment) of
Rs. 15,046.98Iakhs and groups share of net cash inflows amounting to Rs. 2,054.20 lakhs for the
year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated
financial statements also include the Group's share of net profit after tax (before consolidation
adjustment)of Rs. 2,014.10 lakhs for the year ended 31st March 2021, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements, in respect of one Associate, whose financial statements have not
been audited by us. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports
have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries and associate, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of
the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and associate, is based solely on the
reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the
work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Information Other than the ConsolidatedFinanclal Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.The
other information comprises the informationincluded in the ManagementDiscussion and Analysis, Board's
Report includingAnnexure to Board's Report, Business ResponsibilityReport, Corporate Governance and
Shareholder's Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's reportthereon.

Our opinionon the consolidatedfinancial statementsdoes not cover the other informationand we do not
express any form of assurance conclusionthereon.

In connection with our audit of theconsolidatedfinancial statements, our responsibilityis to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materiallyinconsistent with
theconsolidatedfinancial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwiseappears to be materiallymisstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there isa material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothingto report in thisregard.

Responsibility of Management and Those charged with Govemancefor theConsolidated
FinancialStatements

The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consolidatedfinancial statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act,
2013 that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financialposition, consolidated financial
perlormance and consolidated cash flows of the Group including its Associates in accordance with
theaccounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act. The respectiveBoard of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its
associates are responsible for maintenance of adequate accountingrecords in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds
andother irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonableand prudent; and the design, implementation andmaintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively forensuring accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation andpresentation of theconsolidated
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financial statements thatgive a true and fair view and are free from materialmisstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose ofpreparation of the consolidated financial
statements by the Directors of the Holding CompanY,as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial stater:nents, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and of itsassociates are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of its
associates to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unlessmanagement either intends to liquidate the Groupor to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associatesare
responsible for overseeing the financialreporting process of the Group and of its associates.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether theconsoJidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with BAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financialstatements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether dueto fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that issufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
ofnotdetecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of intemalcontrol.

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in orderto design audit
proceduresthat are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of suchcontrols.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made bymanagement.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associates to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group and its associates to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidatedfinancial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether theconsolidatedfinancial statements represent the undertying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fairpresentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individuallyor inaggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
consolidatedfinancial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (iO to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidatedfinancial statements.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and tiTling of the audit and significantauditfindings, indudingany signffJcantdefICienciesin internal
control that we identifyduring ouraudit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them aUrelationshipsand other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
relatedsafeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doingso would reasonably be expected to outweigh the publicinterest benefits of suchcommunication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1) As required by Section 143(3)of the Act, based on our audit we reportthat:

a) We have sought and obtained aU the infonnaUon' and explanations which to
thebestofourknowledgeand beliefwere necessary for the purposes of ouraudit.

b) In our opinion,proper books of accou~t as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as itappears from our examination of thosebooks.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the ConsolidatedStatement of Profit and Loss includingOther
Comprehensive Income, ConsolidatedStatement of Changes in Equity and the
ConsolidatedStatement of Cash FIaNdealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant
books ofaccount.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaidconsolidatedfinancial statements complyoNiththe Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on 31st March, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the HOlding
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, associate
companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies, its associate
companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31st March, 2021 from being appointed
as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls (iver financial reporting of the
groupand the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
"Annexure A". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Group's internal ftnancial controls over financiafreporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16)of the Act, asamended:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, theremuneration
paid by the Group to itsdirectors during the current year is inaccordance with the provisions of
Section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinionand to the best
of our information and according to the explanationsgiven to us:
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i. The consolidatedfinancial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the financial
position of the group, its associate in Note no. 42 of the consolidated financial statements.

ii. The Group and its Associatesdo not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material forceable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferringamounts, required to be transferred, to thelnvestor
Educationand Fund by theGroup and its associate in accordance with the provisions of the
Act, and rules made thereunder.

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 26.05.2021
UDIN No.:21101598AAAAFC9583

For Ramesh :vi. Sheth & Associates
Chartered Accountants

(ICAI Firm's Registration No. 111883W)

~.Sheth)
(Partner)

(Membership No. 101598)
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•
Annexure - A to the Independent Auditor's Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in our
Independent Auditor's Report to the members of The Investment Trust of India Limited of even
date for the year ended March 31, 2021.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls of Consolidated Financial Statements under
Clause (I) of Sub-section 3 of the Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and
for the year ended March 31, 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of The Investment Trust of India Limited ("the Holding Company") and its subsidiary
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Company, subsidiaries ar.d aSSociate company are
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective companies considering the
essential components of internal contrQI stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 'Guidance Note')issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (UICAIU). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
respective Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's, its subsidiary companies' and its
associate company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
establishment and maintained and if such' controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedure selected depends on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the
other auditors of the subsidiary companies and associate company, which are companies
incorporated in India, in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting of the Company, its subsidiary companies, its associate
companies, which are companies incorporated in India.
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• •
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that:

pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatement due
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company, its subsidiaries and associate company have, in all material respects, an adequate
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the respective Companies considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.

Other Matter

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting in so far as it relates to
twelve subsidiary companies, three step~down subsidiaries and one associate company, which
are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of
such companies incorporated in India.

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 26.05.2021
UDIN No.:21101598AAAAFC9583

For Ramesh M. Sheth & Associates
Chartered Accountants

(ICAI Firm's Registration No. 111883W)

~R.Sheth)
(Partner)

(Membership No. 101598)
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THf INV[STMENTTRUSTor INOlALIMITED

CCNSOLJOATEOBALANCE5HErTA5ATMARCH31, 2021

Particulars Note No.
Asat

March 31, 2021

(f in takhs)

Asat
March 31, 2020

" U94.01 2,094.15

20 573.72 1.488.1:>

" 338.04 293.&9

n 25,608.41 35,76],16

66.-19 55,77

23 17,123.49 13,125.71

" 6,419.87 &.389,33

>S 1,171.94 827.59

" 2fi.8.99 88-02

U4,072 42 1.18.807.67

Ito 2
3t048 --------

I~
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(alProperty, plant and equipment

(b)Right.of.u~e a~sets

{clCapital wo,k.,n-p'ogres~
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(elGoodwili 011 cOll~olidallOn

. (f)ln~estments in a\hJCi~tes

(glfinancial k;sets
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(ii)loans

(hlDeferred tax a~sets (Net)

(ilOther Non-current assets

2 Current assets
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(ii) Trade receivables

(iii)Cash and cash equi~alenu

(i~)Other balances with bank
(~) loam

(vi)Other financial current asset!

(c)Other Current Assell
TOTALASSETS

II ~_Q!!lJYi\_N\l.J,li\.BI~lTIf5
1 Equity

(a)lquity 5Mre Capital

Ib~Other Equity
Non Controlling Int('(PSt

2 liabililies
NOIHullenlliabilities

(a)financial Liabilitie~

(illlorrowings
Mle;,se lialJ,lities

(b)Pro"isions

CUllent liabilities

(a~financi<.lliabiht'es
(ilBorrowings

(ii)lease liab,lilif's
liii)Trad<:'pay~bles (Illeludes duf's to micro and small

enterpnses:Rs.I.55 lakhs (March 31. 2010: Nil)

(iVlOther financial liabilities
(b) Other current liabilitif's
{c)PrO\lisions
TOTALEQUITYANDL~A8111TIES

Significant accounting policies
Notes forming Pilr' of the finanCial Statenlf'nt,

l
3(a)

3(b),
5

6,
12,
9

"U
"13
""16

"16

492.64 545,07

516,50 1,425,66

19.12 19.99

501.61 743.55

803.28 803,28

9,409.17 8,938.93

8,838.68 7,762,47

5,080.31 11,8&0,88

3,863.71 3,889.63

2,55O.Ei2 3,027.23

2,915.89 7.438.57

0.18 0,18

5,413.44 8,055.09
12,367.57 3.23859
11,307.84 9.590,23

42,597.74 43,663,65

5,174.62 4,692.69

2,219.44 3,111.98

1,14,072.42 1.18.807.61

5,152.03 5.152.03
54,947.87 53,361.40

201.56 171.11

...ry

Company Secretary

r:--"
Khyali C.Valia

Non-heclltive Oi,{'~o
lOIN:03445571)

~~~-
Harooll Mansur,

Fur and on bel,alf of
TIlE INVESTMENTTRUH Of INDIAlIMlnD

~~.
Chlntan V valia
Non-heculiv~ Chairman

lOIN:OSH393&)

~------
S.~ Mulhu I(ummar

ChLefFinancial Officer
Mumbai. May 26, 2021

for RAMESHM. SJUTH& ASSOCIATES

(hartNed Account.nts
firm Registration No 111883W

ASper our Rf'port of even date

PartnN
Membership No, 101598
Mumbai, M~y 26, 2021
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THE INVESTMENT TRUST Of INDIA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND lOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

particulan
Note No.

yea. ended March

31,2021

(~ in lakhsl

Year ended

March 31. 2020

Khyati C. Valia

Non-Executive Directo

~~-
Haroon Mansur!

Companv Secretary

(104.19)

(25.17)

232

()O,l1)

8.86

(1.02)

(1,01)

(5}0,10)

(162,841

>.60
(21,25)
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(1,0&7.67)

455.18

(682,'141

470,44

(550.21)

/153.9g)

16.397,91

(US,lS)

10,262,24

6,04713

1,241,48

13,131.80

46,965,41

(601.74)

37998

(227.76)

45,941:..36

411.31

46.357,61

29.99

(7.031

929.7S

(10.72}

19.04

'.60
942.61

1,528.7S

5,9011.14

53.48

10,02S.41

4,10S.18

96S34

10,818.S6

31,928.71

2,001.18

470.24

2.471.42

32,164.64

1,165.31

33,929.9S

22.96

1,SS1.71

1,506.78

21.97

14.54

8.42

1,521.32

~.39

" 2.95

2.92

31

32

"30

"2B

Chintan V. Valla

Non-~ .eculi.e Chairman

(DIN;OS333936)

I to 2
3t048

For and on behalf of

THE INVESTMENT TRUST OF INDIA lIMlnD

~?.

~---
S.lr"Muthu Kummar

Chief financial Officer

Mumbai, MaV 26, 2021

For RAMESH M. SHHH & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regiwatioll No. 111883W

Significant accounting polici!,!

NoteS forming part of the Financial 5tillemen\!

As per our Report of even date

X Earnings per equity share of ~ 10 each:

(1)8i1sICm

III Diluted (t)

Income

Revenue from operations

Other Income

Total Income

II hpenses;

Purcha,eS of Stock-ln.Trade

Changes in inventories of StOCk-In. Trade

Employee Benefit hpense

finance C05ts

Depreciation and amortisation e.pens~

Other expense

Total hpense

III Profit/llossJ befo'e share of profit of associates and ta. (I.IIJ

IV Share of profit of associates

V Profit/II05S) before tax (III + IV)

VI Tax expense;

Currentta.

_MAT Oedlt Entitlement

Deferred ta.

Tax in respen of earlier Vears

Total Tax hpenses

VII Profit/II05SI for the year IV - VI}

VIII Other Comprehensive Income

ItemS that will nol be reclassified to p.ofit o.loss

(il Remeasurements of post emplovmem benefit Obligation!

(iiJ Income Ta. relating to these items

ItemS Ihal may be reclassified to profit or loss

[iJ Gains and losses arising from translating the financial

statemenls of foreign operation

Other Comprehensive Income for the year

IX TOlal Comp.ehenslve Income for Ihe yea. (comprising Profit

I(loss) and other comp.ellenslve Income for Ihe yearl

Profit amlbulable to;

Owners

Non Controiling Interest

Other Comprehensive Income/lLoss) attributable to;

Owners

Non Controlling Interest

Total Comprehensive Income/(toss] allrib,i'table to:

OWners

Non Cont/oiling Interest

l
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THE INVESTMENT TRUST OF INDIA LIMnED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT Of pRom AND lOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Pankulars Note No.
Year ended March

31,2021

(~ ,n Lakh~1

Year ended

March 31, 2020

22.96

1,551.11

1,506.18

21.91

14.~

8.42

1,521.32

3(1.39

" 2.95

2.92

Income
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Other Income

Total Income

II hpen~:
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Changes In in~entories of Stock. In. Trade

Employee Benefit E.pense

Finance Costs

Depreciation and amortisation e.pense

Other expense
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IV Share of profit of associates

V Profil/l'oss) before tax (III •. lV)

VI Tax expense:

Cuuent lax

- MAT (redit Entillement
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Ta. in respect of earlier years

Total Tu txpenses

VII Profit/llossJ for the year IV. VI)

VIII Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified 10 profit or loss
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jii) Income Ta. relating to these Items
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(i) Gains and losses arising from translating the financial

statements of foreign operation

Other Comprehensive Income for the year
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Owners
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Non ContrOlling Interl'\l

K Earnings per equily stlam of t 10 each:

(1)8asic(~)

(2) Diluted (f)

""

29
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32
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1,165.31
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53.48
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2,001.18

410.24

2,411.42
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(10.12)

19.04

'.60
942.61

1.528.15

29.99

(1.03)

45.946.36

411.31

46,357.67
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10,262,24
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1.241.48

13.131.80

46.965.41
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319.98

(221.76)

470.44

1,052.41
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455.18
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2.32

>'60
(21.25)

(704,19)

{520.10}

(162.84)

(30.11)

886

(SSO,21)

(l53,98)

(1,02/

(l,01)

~b
KhyaU C. Valla

Non.Executive Oireeto

(DIN,CH45571j

~
Company Secretary

Ito 2
3t048

For and on behalf of

THE INVESTMENT TRUST OF INOlA UMITEO

~0;7.
Chintan V. Valia

Non-t xecutive Chairman

(0IN:OS33H36)

5. G. Muthu Kllmmar

Chief Financial Officer

Muonbai, May 26. 2021

~ -------

For RAMESH M. SHETH & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 111883W

M~
Mehur~

Partner

Membership No. 101598

Mumbai. May 26, 2021

Significant accounting policies

NOles forming pan of the Financial Statements

As per our Report of e~en date
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THE INVESTMENTTRUSl OF INDIA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATEDSlATEMENTOFCHANGES IN EQUtTYfOR THEVEAR ENDEDMARCH 31, 2011

A. EQUITYSHARECAPITAL

As at Marcil 31, 2019
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(f in lakh,)

",.

S4,COl.7S

IS10,10)
14.64I1.CO
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p'om for the ~U'

12628

32G.99 1.367.52

B496

1,348.41

11.09

11.09 6.754.45 28,155.55 7l4.11 901.83

($S021)

.10181

.142

.1.18

.7997

.13496

13,7"-35

1.S0li78

(S50111

U0281)

92,92

(llll)

(79971

Sl,361.40

1.$0678

14.54 14.$4

Total romp'ehen<i"e income fe, the .,.,a,

Addn'cn during the ~ur

Share ,,,u~ during the Vear
Balance", at Marm 31, 20n

68.03

38'Mll 1.367.52 1,348.41

(288)

8,1l 6.754.45 18,155.55 7l4.11

901.83

90181

901.83

1.521.32

15,298.67

1,521.32

966.98

901.83
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----~=-c= -'"
S. G. Muthu Kummar

Chit'! financial Qffoce.

Mumba" Mav 26. 20ll

,)'-- .
..[

(DIN OS333936)

Fe<.ndon behalf 01

Ii) INVHY~~OF INO;";:
~v~' .hyali C. Valia

Non.hec'l1iye (/la_man Non-E.ecutiye Orrec'",

Partner

Membe"hip Nc 101S98

Mumbar. May 16. 2021

AI pe< our Report of even dale

For IlAMESHM. $HETH& ASSOCIATES

Chartered I\(countanl'

Firm Rrgima!ion No. 111883W

Page 182



THEINVESTMENTTRUSTOF INDIA LIMITED
Notes forming part of tonS(llidated finandal statements for the year e•••ded Marth 31, 2021

1 COMPANY OVERVIEW
The Investment Trust of India Limited (the 'Company') and its Indian ~ub~idiaries (collectively referred to a~ the HGroup") is one of
the hybrid players in the business that are present both in corporate finante as well as entire bro~ing spef:lrum. The 'Group'~ full

~ervice portfolio tonSists of inve~tment ban~ing and torporate finance activities 011 the tapital mar~et side as well as advi~ory

servites, brokillg services in the ca~h and derivatives segmeills along with depository services, currency derivatives, commodities,

Mutual fund business, lendillg businesses and other wealth and distribution related servites.

Z SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES

a) Basis of preparation

(i) Compliante with I•••d AS
In accordance with the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the company has adopted Indian Accounting

Standards (referred to as "Ind AS") notified under the Companies llndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 with eHect from

April 1, 2016. These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Ind AS as notified by Ministry of

Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Compallies Act, 2013 ('Act') read with of the Companies (Indiall Actountillg

Standards) Rules,201S as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(ii) Basis of tonsolidation
The Company tOllsolidates all entities which are controlled by it.
The Company establishes COlltrol when; it has power over the entity, is exposed, or has rights. to variable returns from its

involvement with the elltity and has the ability to affect the entity's returns by using its power over relevant activities of the

entity. Entities controlled by the Company are consolidated from the date COlltrol commences until the date control ceases.

All inter-company transactions, balances and income and expenses are eliminated in full on conS(llidation. Changes ill the

Company's interests in subsidiaries that do not result ill a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactiolls. The

carrying amount of the Compally's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their

relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controllillll interests are adjusted

and the fair value of the consideratioll paid or received is reCOllniseddirectly in equity and attributed to shareholders of the

Company.

(ill) Historkal cost convention
The financial statemeots have beeo prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the followiog:

1) certain financial assets that are measured at fair value;

2J defined benefit plaos - plan assets measured at fair value;

(iv) Current non-turrent classlfitation
All assets and liabilities have been classified as currellt or non-current as per the Company's n?rmal operating cycle (twelve

months) and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Act.

(b) Useof e!>timates and judgmeots

The estimates and judgments used io the preparation of the financial statements are continuously evaluated by the Company
and are based on historical experience and variOUSother assumptions and fattors (including expectations of future events) that

the Company believes to be reasonable under the existioll circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Differences between actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are knowil/materialised.

The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred after that date but

provide additional evidence about condltiolls existing as at the reporting date.

Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, which may cause a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, is in respect of impairment of investment, useful lives of

property, plallt and equipment, valuation of deterred tax assets, provisions and contingent liabilities.
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THE INVESTMENTTRUSTOF INDIA liMITED

Notes forming p~rt of consolidated financi~l statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Ic) Property, pl~nt and equipment

The Company has applied for the one time transitioll exemptioll of considering the carrying coS! on the transition date l.e, April

1, 2016 as the deemed cost ullder IND AS.HellCe regarded thereafter as historical cost.

All items of property, plant and equipment ~re st~ted at cost less depreciation and imp~irment, if any. Historical cost includes

expenditure th~t is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequellt costs are included in the asset's carrying amoullt or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is

probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Compally and the cost of the item can be

measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate ~sset is derecognised when replaced. All

other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Lossduring the reporting period in which they are

incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and resldoal valoe

Depreciation on all the fixed assets except leasehold imprOllements and goodwill are provided on a Written Down Value Method

over the estimated useful lives of assets. Leasehold improvements are amortised over the period of lease on Straight line

Method. Goodwill, on the other hand, is amortised on Straight line Method.

The Company depreciates its properly, plant ~nd equipment over the useful life in the manner prescribed in Schedule II to the

Act, and management believe that useful life of asset, are same as those prescribed in S<hedule Uto the Act,

The re,idual values are not more than S%of the original co,t of the asset.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the Statement

of Profit and loss.

Id) Lease
As a lessee
With effect from 1 April 2019, the Company has applied Ind AS 116 'leases' for all long term and material lease contf~cts

covered by the Ind AS. The Company has adopted modified retrospective approach as stated in Ind AS 116 for all applicable

leases on the date 01adoption.

Measurement of lease liability
At the time of Initial recognition, the Company measures lease liability as present value of all lease payments discounted using

the Company's incremental cost of borrowing.

Subsequently, the lease liability is-

(i) increased by interest on lease liability;

(ii) reduced by lease payments made; and
liii) remeasured to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications specified in Ind AS 116 'Leases', or to reflect revised fixed

lease payments.

Measurement of Right-of use as>ets
At the time of initial recognition, the Company measure, 'Right-of-use assets' as present value of all lease payments discounted

using the Company's incremental cost of borrowing w.r,t said lease contract, Subsequently, 'Right-of.use assets' is measured

using cost model i.e. at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses adjusted for any

remeasurement of the lease liability ,pecified in Ind AS116 'Leases',

Depreciation on 'Right-of-use assets' is provided on straight line ba,is over the lease period.

Theexception permitted in Ind AS 116 for lOw value a>setsand short term leases has been adopted by Company

ASa lessor
Lease income from operating lea,es where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basisover the le~se

term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general illflation to compensate for the excepted

inflationary cost increases, The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature,
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THEINVESTMENTTRUSTOFINDIALIMITED
Notes forming part 01consolidated flnantialstatemenu lor the year ended March 31, 2021

(1'1Cashand Cash Equivalents
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, balances with
ban~, deposits held with banks or highly liquid short term investments with maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to ~nown amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificantris~of changes invalue.

(f) Inventories

Inventories of Stoc~.in.lrade are stated 'al cost Ofnet realisable value, whichever is lower'. Cost comprise all cost of purchase,
cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost lormulae
used are 'First-in-First.oul'. Due allowance is estimated and made for defective and ob.olete item., wherever necessary,

(g) Financial Instruments
(I)Classification

TheCompany classilies ilSfinancial assets in the followingmeasurement categories:
(I) those to be measured subsequently at lair valUe(either through other comprehensive income, or through the Statemenl

of Profit and Loss),and

(21those measured at amortised cost.

(ii)Measurement
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value. Transaction costs of financial assels carried at
fair value through the Profit and Lossare expensed in the Statement 01Profit and toss,

Debt lnstrumenlS:
TheCOmpanyinitially recogniles debt instruments issued on the date that they originate, Allother debt instruments that do
not meet the Cfiteriafor amortised cost are measured at lair valUethrough Profit and Loss.Financial liabilitiesare recogniled
initiallyat fair valUeplus any directly attributable transaction COSIS.Subsequent to initial recognition, these financialliabilitie.

are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method,

Equity instrumenU:
The Company measures its equily investment other than in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associateS at fair value through
profit and loss. Howevel whcre the Company's management makes an irrevocable choice on initial recognition to present fair
value gains and losses on specific equity investments in other comprehensive income, Ihere is no subsequent reclassification,
on sale or othelwise, 01fair value gains and losses to the Statement of Prolit and Loss.

(iii) Impairment of finandal assets
The Company measures the expected credit loss associated with its assets based on historical trend, industry practices and
the business environment in which the entity operates or any other appropriate basis. The impairment methodology applied

depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

(iv) Income recognition
Interest income
Interest income from debt instrumcnts is recognised using the elleclive interest rate method.

Dividends
Dividendsare recognised in the Statement of Profit and toss only when the right to receive payment is established.

(h)Segment Reporting
Operating segments afe reported in a manner consistent with Ihe internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision

maker.

(I)Borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognised and measured at amortised cost. Subsequent to initial recognilion, these borrowings are
measured at amortized cost using the ellc(tive interest method, less any impairment losses.
Prelerence shares, which are mandatorily redeemable on a specific date are classilied as liabilities. The dividend on these

preference shares is recognised in Statement of Profit and toss as finance costs.

UIBorrowing costs
Interest and other borrowing costs attributable to qualifying assets are capitalised. Other interest and borrowing costs are

charged to Statement 01Profit and loss using ellective interest method.
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THE INVESTMHlT TRUSTOf INDIA LIMITED
Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31. ZOZl

(k) Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is

probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present

obligation at the end of the reporting period.

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events but their existence will be

confirmed by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the conlrol of the

Company or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of resources or where a reliable

estimate of the obligation cannot be made.

(I) Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of control of promised products or services to
customers in an amourlt that reflects the consideration, which is expected to receive in exchange for those products or services.

ProviSion for sales rewrn, based Orl the historical resultS, measured on net basis of the margin of the sale. Therefore, a refund

liability, included in other current liabilities, are re<ognized for the products expected to be returned.

The contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the Cllstomer and payment by the

customer exceeds one year are not expected. As a consequence, it does not adjust any of the transaction priceS for the time

value of money.

If one of the following criteria is met, condition of a performance obligation and recognition of revenue over time is satisfied.

1 The customer simultarleously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the performance.

2 The performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

3 The performance does not create an asset with an alternative use and an entity has an enforceable right to payment for

performance completed to date.
for performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point in time at which

the performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue from sale of products and services are recognised at a time on which the performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue from sale of advisory services are recognised at a time on which the performance obligation is satisfied.
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THEINVESTMENTTRUSTOF INDIA LIMITED
Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31. 2021

(m) Employee benefits
(l) Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit plans, the cost 01 providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial

valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in the other

comprehensive income for the period in which they occur. Past service cost both vested and unvested is recognised as an

e~pense at the earlier of (a) when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs; and (b) when the entity recognises related

restructuring costs or termination benefits.

The retirement benefit obligations recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefil

obligations reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value

of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the scheme.

Iii) Defined contribution plans
The Company's contribution towards Provide"t Fu"d and Family Pe"sion Fund, which are defined co"tribution, are

accounted for on a" accrual basis and recognised i" the Statement of Profit & toss in the year i" which they incur.

(iii) Compensated absences

Comprmsated absences are provided for on the basis of a" actuarial valuation, uSi"g projected u"it credit method, as at the

date of the bala"ce sheet, actuarial gai"s / losses, if a"y, are immediately recognized in the statement of profit a"d loss.

(iv) Employee Options
The fair value of options gra"ted is recognised as a" employee be"efit expellse with a correspo"ding increase i" equity_ The

total amou"t to be e~pensed is dNermilled by reference to the fair value of the optio"s granted:

i"cli;di"g any market performance cond,tiOfls
excluding the impact of any service and "on.market performa"ce vesting conditio"s, and

i"cluding the impact of any "o,,-vesting conditions

(1'1) Foreig" currency translation
(i) Function ••l and presentation currency

The financial stalements are presented in Indian rupee (lNR), which is Company's functional and presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances
Transaclions in foreign currencies are recognised al the prevailing exctlange rates on ttle transaction dates. Reall!>l'dgains

and losses on settlement of foreign currency transactions are recognised in ttlI' Statement 01 Profit and Loss.
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THE INVESTMENTTRUSTOF INDIA LIMITED
Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(oj Income ta~
The income ta~ expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's ta~able income based on the
applicable income ta~ rate adjusted by changes in deferred ta~ assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to

unused tax losses.

Deferred income tax is pro~ided in full, using the liability method on temporary differences arising between the ta~ bases of

assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the financial statement. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates land

laws! that ha~e been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are e~cepted to apply when the

related deferred income ta~ assets is realised or the deferred income ta~ liability is settled.

Deferred ta~ assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses, only if, it is probable that

future ta~able amounts will be a~ailable to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax aHets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and

when the deferred tax balances relate \0 the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and ta~ liabilities are off set where the

Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the

liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items

recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the ta~ is also recognised in other comprehensi~e

income or directly in equity, respectively.

Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognised when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay

normal income tax during the specified period.

(p) Earnings per share
The basic earnings prr share is computed and disclosed by di~iding the net profit alter tax attributable to equity shareholders for

the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted a~erage number of equity shares outstanding during

the year, adjusted for the effects of all diluti~e potential equity shares, if any.

lq) Impairment of financial Assets:

hpected credit loss IECl) modello! measurement and loss allowance of loss allowance is applied on following:

1 Trade recei~ables and lease recei~ables
2 Financial assets measured as at amortised cos.t(other than trade receivables)

In case of Trade receivables. and lease recei~ables, simplified approach is followed, wherein an amount equal to lifetime ECl is

meas.ured and recognised as loss allowance.

In case of other assets, it is determined, if there has been significant increase in credit risk of financial asset since initial

recognition. If the credit risk of such assets has not increased significantly, an amount equal to 12 months ECLis measured and

recognised as loss allowance.

Subsequently, if the credit quality of financial asset impro~es such that there is no tonger a sigf'lificant if'lcrease in credit risk

since initial recognition, impairment loss allowance is recognised again, based on 12 months ECl,

Eel ISthe difference between all contractual cash fiows that are due in accordance with Contract and all the cash flows that the

entity expects to recei~e (i.e. "II cash shortfallsl, discounted at the original eflecti~e interest rate.

lifetime Eel are e~pected credit losses resulting from all possible default e~ents over the expected life of financial assets. 12

months ECt are a portion of Lifetime ECt which result from default e~ents that are possible within 12 months from the reporting

date.

ECLare measured in a manner that, they reflect unbiased and probability weighted amounts determined by range of outcome,

taking into account the time value of money and other reasonable information available as result of past e~ents, current

conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

As a prilctica) expedient, pro~ision matri~ is used to measure lifetime ECl on its portfolio of trade receivables. The pro~ision

matrix is prepared based on historically obser~ed default rates o~er the expected life of tr"de recei~ables and is adjusted for

forward looking estImates. At each reporting date, the historicaily observed default rates and change in forward looking

estimates are updated.

ECl impairment loss allowance (or re~ersal) recognised during the period is recognised as income I expenses in Statement of

Profit and toss under the head 'Other expenses'.
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Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Ir) The details of subsidiaries and the interest of the Company therein, included in the Consolidated Financial Statements are as

under:

Proportion of ownershIp of Interest

Name of the company Relationship As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

ITI Securities Braking Limited (ITISBl) Subsidiary 100% 100%

Fortune Credit Capital Limited (FCCl) Subsidiary 100% 100%

JTJAsset Management Limited Subsidiary '100% -100%

Fortune Management Advisors Limited Subsidiary 100% 100%

Antique Stock Braking Limited (ASBl) Subsidiary 100% 100%

ITI Capital Limited ( ITI Cll Subsidiary 100% 100%

IDistress Asset Specialist Limited Subsidiary 100% 100%

ITI Mutual Fund Trustee Private limited Subsidiary 100% 100%

Antique Stock Braking (IFSC)Limited Subsidiary of ASBl 100% 100%

Neue Aflianz Corporate Services Private Limited Subsidiary of ITI Cl 66.67% 66.67%

Intime Multi Commodity Company Limited Subsidiary of ITISBl 100% 100%

ITI Gilts Limited Subsidiary 100% 100%

ITI Growth Opportunities llP Subsidiary 80.00% 80.00%

ITI Nirman Limited Subsidiary 100% 100%

IRCCredit Management Services Limited Subsidiary 100% 100%

ITI Alternate Funds Management Limited Subsidiary 100% 100%

United Petro Finance Limited Subsidiary .78.24% .78.24%

• Includes shares held through wholly owned subsidiary "FCCl"

(sl The details of associates and the interest of the Company therein, included in the Consolidated Financial Statements are as under
Proportion of ownership of interest

Name of the company Relationship As at Asat

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Fortune Integrated Assets Finance Limited (FIAFL) Associate 25.00% 25.00%

Wind Construction Limited (WCl) Subsidiary of FIAFl " 25.00% If 25.00%

ToplinkAdvisors llP (TAL) Subsidiary of WCl If 25.00% " 25.00%

Ventana Power Generation llP Subsidiary of TAL If 25.00% " 25.00%

If Indirect holding through associate "FIAFL"
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Notes forming part 01 consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

tt) Disclosure required by schedule III of COmpanies Act, 2013 by way of additional information.

2020-2021

Net Assets
Share in Profit/tloss) Share in Other

Share In Total COmprehensive

ITotal Assets. Total Liabilities) COmprehensive Income Income

Name of the Company
As" of As%of

Amount
As" of As" of

consolidated
Amount

consolidated consolidated
Amount Amount

~ in Lakhs) ~ In Lakhs) ~ In Lakhs)
consolidated

~ In Lakhs)
net assets profit or 1055 profit or 1055 profit or 1055

Parent

The Investment Trust 01 India Limited 71.59 43,024.34 (26.82) (283.94) 8.75 2.01 {26.07) (281.93)

Subsidiaries
-

III Securities Broking limited 6,97 4,187.39 31.92 337.91 (23.43) (5.38) 30,75 332.53

Intime Multi Commodity Company Limited 0.63 378.66 (4.07) (43.05) 2.61 0.60 (3.93) (42.45)

Fortune Credit Capital limited 41.93 25,200.08 (22.94) (242.77) (83.41) (19.1S) (24,22) (261.92)

III Asset Management limited 11.83 7,109.30 (169.89) {1,798.281 9,67 2.22 (166.08) (1,796.06)

Fortune Integrated Home Finance limited 0.83 498.10 3.91 41.36 - - 3.82 41.36

Antique Stock Braking limited" 18.39 11,049.73 291.87 3,089.49 9.71 2.23 285.88 3,091.72

III Capital limited" 1.89 1,138.52 (0.11) (1.161 5.62 1.29 0.01 0.13

Distress Asset Specialist limited (0.65) (389.02) (19.98) {211.50) - - {19.56) (211.50)

III Gilts limited 4.64 2,787.34 10.72 113.45 2.00 0.46 10.53 113.91

III Mutual Flmd Trustee Private limited 0.01 8.31 0.48 5.04 - - 0.47 5.04

III Growth Opportunities llP (0.10) (57.19) (1.11) (11.78) - . (1.09) (11.78)

ITI Nirman limited 0.00 0.41 (0,15) (1.&41 - - 10,15) (1.641

IRCCredit Management Service limited 0.06 35.60 (3.25) 134.45) - - (3.19) (34.45)

III Alternate Funds Management limited 0.89 533.57 (1.11) (11.80) - - (1.09) (11.80)

United Petro Finance limited# 1.56 935.70 10.55 111.62 168.47 38.68 13.90 150.30

Inter company elimination anll consolidation

adjustments (60,47) (36,340.94) 0.00 0.01 . - 0.00 0.01

Total 100.00 60,099.90 100.00 1,058.51 100.00 22.96 100.00 1,081.47

Non controlling interest . 201.56 - 21.97 - 8.42 - 30.39

Associates (Investment as per Equity Method)

Fortune Integrated Assets Finance Limited" . - - 470.24
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2019-20

Net Assets Share In Profit/(Loss) Share In Other Share In Total Comprehensive

(Total Assets. Total Uabilities) Comprehensive Income Income

Name of the Company
As%of As%of As%of As%of

consolidated
Amount

consolidated
Amount

consolidated
Amount

consolidated
Amount

net assets
rt' in Lakhs)

profit or loss
rt' in Lakhs)

profit or loss
rt' in Lakhs)

profit or loss
rt' in Lakhs)

Parent

The Investment Trust of India Limited 7346 42,286.77 52.50 (558.05) 39.06 {8.30) 52.24 1566.35)

Subsidiaries

III Securities Broking Limited 6.66 3,833.61 39.90 (424.12) 30.12 (6.40) 39.71 (430.52)

tntime Muiti Commodity Company limited 0.73 420,86 1.35 (14.38) (5.04) 1,07 1.23 (13.31)

Fortune Credit Capital Limited 29.20 16,811.34 26.22 (278.66) 2.40 (0.51) 25.75 (279.17)

ITI Asset Management Limited 12.86 7,404.68 (88.12) 936.67 (8.47) 1.80 (86.56) 938.47

Fortl.me Integrated Home Finance Limited 0.79 456.74 16.36 (173.89) - - 16.04 (17389)

Antique Stock Braking Limited' 13.81 7,948.40 (20.31) 215,84 19.44 (4.13) (19.S3) 211.71

ITI Capital limited' 1.98 1,138.45 44.34 (471.28) 79.67 (16.93) 45.03 (488.21)

Distress Asset Specialisllimited (0.31) (177.72) 7.15 (76,05) - - 7.01 (76.05)

ITI Gilts limited 2.86 1,648.68 123.22) 246.77 8.56 (1.82) (22.59) 244.95

III Mutual Fund Trustee Private Limited 0.01 3.27 1.57 (16,69) - - 1.54 (16.69)

III Growth Opportunities LLP (0,09) (49.37) (0.75) 7,94 - - (0.73) 7.94

III Nirman Limited 0.00 2.05 0.10 (1.07) - - 0.10 (1.07)

'IRC Credit Management Service Limited 0.12 70.03 (3.16) 3359 - - (3.10) 33,59

ITI Alternate Funds Management limited 0,43 245.38 (0.08) 0.83 - - {0.08) 0.83

United Petro Finance limitedll 16.50 9,499.76 32.02 (340.36) (65.74) 13.97 30.11 (326.39)

adjustments (59,02) (33,975,07) 14.11 (150.00) - - 13.84 (150.00)

Total 100.00 57,567.86 100.00 (1,062.91) 100.00 (21.25) lOQ.oo (1,084.16)

Non controlling interest - 171.17 - (162.84) - 8.86 - (153.98)

Associates (Investment as per Equity Method) - - - 379.98

* Figures for Antique Stock Braking Limited, ITI Capital Limited and Fortune Integrated Assets Finance Limited are after consolidatin8 with their subsidiaries Antique Stock Broking (IFSC)

Limited, Neue Allianz Corporate Services Private Limited and Wind Construction Limited (including its subsidiaries) respectively.
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Electrical Office Furniture and Leasehold

Installations
Computers

equipmenn fixtures
Vehicles

improVl!ments

3.56 48030 228.49 93,25 777.08 18047

0.27 86,82 47.76 33.40 15.70

0.88 8.77 30,63

THE INVESTMENT TRUST OF INDIA LIMITED

Notes forming part 01 consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 11, 2021

, Property, plant and equipment

Gross Carryins Amount

Balance at March 11, 2019

Add,tions

Disposals

Addition on account of acquisition of

subsidiarv

Balance at March 31, 2020

Additions

Disposals

Reclassilied as held lor sale

Balance at March 31, 2021

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance at March 31, 2019

Additions

Disposals

Addilion on account 01 acquisition 01

subsidiary

Balance at March 31, 2020

Addilions

Disposals

Reclassified as held lor sale

Balance at March 31, 2021

Net Carryins Amount

Balance at Marth 11, 2020

Balance at March 31, 2021

3.83

3.83

3.24

0.06

3.30

0.53

3.83

0.53

566.24 267.48

94.18 48.71

4.78 8.96

655.64 307.23

255.66 86.39

146,41 70.81

0.86 7.28

401.21 149.92

98.23 51.89

0,80 11.23

498.64 190.58

165.03 117.56

157,00 116.65

126.65 792.78

21.57 6.91

3.17 13.35

145.05 786.34

22,13 635,72

22.42 54.95

44.55 690.67

22.63 21.48

3.10 12.68

64.08 699.47

82.10 102.11

80.97 86.87

149.84

29.78

120.06

49.06

38,07

1503

72.10

23.71

26.90

68.91

77.74

5US

It in lakhsl

Total

1,763.15

183.95

40.28

1,906.82

171.37

60.04

2,018.15

1,052,20

332.72

23.17

1,361.75

218.47

54.71

1,525.51

545.07

492.64

3(a) Right of use assets

Balance at Marth 31, 2019

Additions

Deduction/Adjustment

Depreciation during the year

Balance at March 11, 2020

Additions

Ded"etion/ Adjustment

Depreciation during the year

Balance at March 31, 2021

3(b) Capital Wor\( In ProSfeU

Balance at March 31, 2020

Balance at March 31. 2021

(~ln Lakhs)

2061.91

636.25

1,425.66

418.29

490.87

516.50

It' In Lakhs)

19,99

19.12
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THEINVESTMENTTRUSTOF INDIA LIMITED

Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

130.12 2,439.84 2,569.96

17.84 17.84

3.78 3.78

147.96 2,436.06 2,584.02

64.64 1,489.26 1,553.90

28.46 244.05 272.51

93.10 1,733.31 1,826.41

11.93 244.07 256.00

105.03 1,977.38 2,082.41

37.02 706.53 743.55

42.93 458.68 501.61

4 Intangible assets

Gross Carrying Amount

Balance at March 31, 2019

Additions

Disposals
Addition on account of acquisition of subsidiary

Balance at March 31, 2020

Additions

Disposals

Reclassified as held for sale

Balance at March 31, 2021

Accumulated Amortisation

Balance at March 31, 2019

Additions

Disposals
Addition on account of acquisition of subsidiary

Balance at March 31, 2020

Additions

Disposals

Reclassified as held for sale

Balance at March 31, 2021

Net Carrying Amount

Balance at March 31,2020

Balance at March 31, 2021

Computer Software

130.12

Goodwill

2,439.84

(~ in lakhs)

Total

2,569.96
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THE INVESTMENT TRUST OF INDIA LIMITED

Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

S Investments in Associates
As at March 31, 2021

No. of units Amount

(~in Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2020

No. of units Amount

Unquoted

(ii)Equlty Instruments at cost

Fortune Integrated Assets Finance Limited

Total

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and Market value there of

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of Investments

48,29,545 9,409.17

9,409.17

9,409.17

48,29,545 8,938.93

8,938,93

8,938.93

6 Non-Current Investments
As at March 31, 2021

No. of units Amount

(~ in Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2020

No. of units Amount

Quoted

At Fair Value through Profit and loss

(i) Investment in Equity Shares

Cords Cable Limited

Parag Milk foods Limited

(Ii) Investment in Mutual Funds

ITI Arbitrage Fund

1TIBalanced Advantage Fund

lTIlong Term Equity Fund

1TILiquid Fund

1TIMuJticap Fund

ITI Overnight Fund

ITI Small Cap Fund

1TIBanking & PSU debt fund

lTIlarge cap fund

ITI Mid cap fund

Unquoted

At Fair Value through Profit and Loss

(i) Investment in Equity Shares

Aryan Foods & Confectioneries Private Limited

MF Utilities India Private Limited

At Amortised cost

(ii) Investment In Preference Shares

N2N Technologies Limited

At Fair Value through Profit and loss

(iii) Others

1TILong Short Equity Fund

ITI Growth Opportunities Fund

Total

Aggregate amount of quoted Investments and Market value there of

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

Aggregate amount of Impairment in value of investments

51,677 39.55 51,677 24.45

1,50,000 95.93

5,00,000 5U5 5,00,000 51.47

5,00,000 48,40 5,00,000 37.81

5,23,766 69.07 3,00,000 22.44

4,999 53.99 4,999 52.45

4,85,190 64,57 4,85,190 38.52

5,000 52.53 5,000 51.01

5,00,000 63.78 5,00,000 32.43

4,99,975 50.84

4,99,975 54.32

4,99,975 49.99

9,00,000 9,00,000

5,00,000 14.75 5,00,000 14.75

30,00,000 212,78 30,00,000 272,48

5,048 6,712,86 5,048 5,783.71

1,280 1,298.11 1,280 1,285.02

8,838.68 7,762.47

600.18 406.51

8,238.50 7.355.96

150.00 90.00
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Notes forming part of consolidated financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

10 Current Investments
AS at March 31, 2021

No. of units Amount

(t in Lakhs)

Asat March 31, 2020

No. of units Amount

Quoted

At Fair Value through Profit and loss

Investment in Equity Shares

HDFCbank limited

GOl Offshore limited

Titan Company limited

Total

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and Market value there of

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments

10 0.08 10 0.08
3,33,500 3,33,500

10 0.10 0.10
0.18 0.18

0.18 0.18
261.12 261.12
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Notes lorming pan of consolidated financial statements lor the year ended March31,2021

7 Non-Cuffent Loans

Unsecured, considered good

Loan Portfolio

$l'CUrityDeposit

Deposit with I.'~changes

Others
Total

8 Other Non-Current Assets

Unsecured, considered good

Advance ta~ and ta~ deducted at source (Net:

MATcredit entitlement

Prepaid e~penses
Total

9 Inventoril'$

Stock-In-trade
Quoted securities (At fair value)
Traded goods (At lower of cost or net realisable value:

Total

11 Trade ReceIvables

Trade receivables consists of the following:

(a) Unsecured, Considered good

(b) Unsecuf!!<l,Considered dOUbtful

Less: Allowance for doubtful receivabll.'!

Total

(t in takhs).." Asal
March 31, 2021 MarCh 3t, 2020

813.74 6,97t.68

3,606.11 4,355,48

660.46 sun
5,080.31 11.860.88

(t in lakhsJ

Asat ,,,'
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

2,490.51 3,020,62

53.64
6,47 6,6]

2,550.62 3,027.23

(t in lakhsJ

Aut As at

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

2,S52.3] 7,32151

63.5S 117,06

2,915.89 7,438.$7

(t in lakhs)

Aut ,,,'
March 31,2021 Marth 3], 2020

5,413.44 8.055,09

134.99 24,14

5,S48.43 S,079.23

134,99 24,14

5,413.44 8.05$.09
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Notes forming part of consolidated finan(ial statements for the year ernled MalCh 31,2021

12 Cash and cash equIvalents

Cash on hand

Foreign currency on hand

Balance with banks

Fi.ed Deposit having maturity of less than 3 months

TOlal

13 Other Balan(es with bank

fixed Deposits With Banks lien tow~rds Bank Guarante(

Depos'ts with o,iginal maturity for more than 3 months but less than 11 months

Fi.ed deposits with more than 12 months maturity, held as

margin money or security against borrowings, guarantees

Total

14 Current Loans

Considered good

Loan portfolio

Se(ured

Unsecured

Related party

Others

Less: loss aUowances on financial assets

Security deposits

loan to employees

5ub.5tandard assets

Doubtful assets

Less: loss allowances on financial assets

Tolal

15 Other Current Financial A••eu

Unsecured, considered good

Interest Accrued and due

.Related party

-Other
Interest accrued but not due

Other receivable

Assignment receivables

Advance for investments

Collection receivable

Sale of NPA receivable

Exgratia receivables

Receivables from related party

Total

(~ in Lakhsl

Aut As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

94.09 56.04

9324

5,612.35 2,555,75

6,&61.13 533.56

12,367.57 3,238.59

[~ in Lakhs)

Asal Asal

March 31, 2021 March 31. 2020

6,762.69 8.635.75

4,537.65 95448

7,50

11,307.84 9,590,23

(~in Lakhs)

Aut ,,.,
March 31, 2021 MarCh 31, 2020

15,756.97 20,014.91

11.073.50

11,656.82 21,398.99

-2.155,43 (905.60)

0.39 6,01

12.78 20,53

36,345.03 40,S~,84

6,252.71 3,128.81

7,303.93 9,388.93

7,303,93 9,388,93

6,252.71 3,128,81

42,597.74 43,663,6~

(~ in lakhs)

Asal AS at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

1,580.94 450.00

1,040.47 2,834.02

62.96 110.36

60.65 293,77

174.06 36549

325.50 300.50

932.27 308,75

868.00

116.87

12.89 29.80

5,174.62 4,692.69

Page 197
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Notes forming part of consolidated financIal statements fortl!.e year ended Marcl!. 31,2021

16 Otl!.er cultent assets

Aut

Marcl!. 31, 2021

(~ in takl!.s)

As at

Marcl!. 31, 2020

Unsecured, considered good

Prepaid expenses

Balances witl!. autl!.orities

Una mortised sMre issue expenses

Advance to "editors

Advance for investment in properties
Other amounl recovefable in casl!. or kind or lor value to bt' re<:eived

Total

228.65

1,327.16

9.00

137.98

237.69

278.%

2,219.44

93.35

1,154.67

18.21

95.72

259.19

1.490.84

3,111.98

19 Non.cultent bolrowings

Aut

Marcl!. 31, 2021

(~in lakl!.s)

As ilt

Milrcl!. 31, 2020

secured

Vehicle Loan

0.58

(secured by Hypothecilt,on of vehicle ilnd repaYilble in thirty

nine equilled monthly instalments althe rille 019,75% p.a,)

UnsKured
Redeemable cumulalive preference shares ~

0,01% Non.redeemilble, non. cumulative compuisorily

convertible preference shares 01' 1 each@

Optionilily convertible preference shares. Debt suspense'

Optionally converllble Preference Sl!.ares c1assilied as Liability'

Total
Nature of Security and terms of repayment fornor'l-CuHent bOrlowings

Nature 01SKu,It
Terms of Conver110n and/or Re II ment

225,000 1% Redeemable cumulative preferenre Shilres ol~ Repayable on January 1, 2023. Rate of intereSll.00% p,a.

100 each
0,01% Non-redeemable, non_cumulative compulsorily Repayilbie in August 2023. Rate 01 interest 0.01% p,a.

convertible prelerence sl!.Mes 01' 1 eilcl!.
Pursuant 10 demerger 01 lending business of United Petro linilnce Limited (UPH}in to Fortune Credit Capital limited under the Scheme of

Anangement without paymenl being received in cilsh, on the date 01 acquisition 01 control by the Company 01 UPFL, Le. on 1st October 2018,

consideration payable by tile Company in form of 4,96,500 Equity sl!.ares of Rs. 100 each and 7,32,000 Optionally Convertible Preference 511are

(OCPS) of Rs. 32S/. each lully pilid up recorded by splining Equity and debt elements sep,lriltely under Equity share capital suspense, OCPS

Equity suspense and OCPSdebt suspense respectively.
Aller receipt of Merger order, from 1st Jilnaury 2021. Equity sl!.are capital, OCPSEquity and OCPS Debt were recorded in books, by reversing

suspense account,

•
@

(~ in lakhs)

Aut Alat

" Lease liabililles Marcl!. 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

lease liabilities
573.72 1,'188.15

Total
513.72 1,488.15

(~in lakhs)

Au' Aiat

" Non--(urrent provisions
Marcil 31, 2021 Marcl!. 31, 2020

For employee benelit

Unavailed leave
219.19 170.33

Gratuity

118,85 12336

Total
338.04 29369
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THEINVESTMENTTRU5TOf INOtALIMITED
Notes forming part of ,onsolidated financial statements for the year ended Mar,h 31, 2021

17 Share ,,",pltal

Authorised.
35.10,10,000 equIty shares of' 10 each (Mar,h 31,2020: 35,10,10,000)

Total
Issued, subscribed and fultv paid.up

5,15.10,21>7equity shar"s 01~ 10 ead" (Marek 31, 1:110, 5,:0,13.7(7)

Share ,,",pital Suspense
NIL(March 31,2010' 4,96,500 Shares of' 10 eack to be "sued as lully paid-up pursuant under tke S<;kemeof Arrangement witkout payment being recelv"d in cask)

Total

(~in lakks)

As at As at

Man:h31, March 31,

2021 "''''
3S,101.OO 35,101,00

35,101,00 3S.101.OO

5,152.03 5,102.38

4965

5,152.03 5,151.03

• Autkorised capital of 2,25,000 1% Redeemable Preference shares of' 100 each lMarch 31. 2020: 2,25.DOD)is not considered above. Redeemable p.eference skares issued kilve been conSidered as borrowings in

• Authorised cap,tal 017,32,000 0% Optionally Convert,bh' Preference Shares of' 325 eack (Milrch 31, 2020: 7,32,000) 's nOl considered above.Redeemable preference shares issued have been conSIdered as

borrowing! in accordil"ce wllh requirement of InclAs

lOllReconciliation of number of shares

Parti,ulars

As a1 Man:h 31, 2021

No.of unit!. Amount

(f in Lakhs)

As al March 31, 2020

No. of units Amount

Equity Shares

Opening Balance

Issued during the year
Closing Balance

5,10,23,767

4,96,500
S,15,20,261

5,102.38

49.65

5,152.03

5,10,23,761

5,10,23,767

5,102,38

5,102.38

(bl 5hares held by shareholders holding more than 5" 011hll aureute shares in the Company

Name of the Shareholder

Neesta' Developers LLP
Aditya InfoTech Private limited

As at March 31, 2021

No. of shares "of holding

2,31,42,082 46.08

1,21,54,262 23.59

As at March 31, 2020

No of shares "of holding

2,37,42,082 46.53

1.21,54,161 23,g2

IclTerms I Rights attached to Equity share}
The Comp~ny has only one class of equity shares h~ing a par value of' 10 per sha.e. Eilchholder of an equity share is entitled to one vote per share on every resolution placed before the Company on the right to re
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{( in lakns)

Equity

Foreign
c.omponent of Equity

5hllre based
Capital

51l1tutory Currency Caplt"l securities General
compound component of

Retllined
18 OTHEREQUITY R•••••rve on

Reserve Transllliion Reserve Premium R••se~
flnancilll compound Total

paymenl E"milllls
amalgamation

Reserve
instrum ••nb flnllncial

suspense instruments

"o;count

Balance liSat MlIrch 31, 2019 194,71 1,367.52 1,213.45 6,797,48 28,155,55 72421 901,83 14,648.00 54,002.75

Prol't fo. the v••ar (520.10) (S20,101

Olne' ~cmpr ••nemive income lor It>t-Vea' (30.11) (30.11)

101111comprehensive income lor tnI' yea. (550.211 (5SO.21)

Trans,tional adjustment on account of

IIdoptlon of Ind AS116 Lellses (102.81) (102.81)

Add't'on during tnI' yellr 126,28 1109 (H03) (1.42) 9292

S!'lIre Issue e.penses
(1.28) (1.28)

Adj"stment on lIccount 01 investments ,n

subsid.aryl associ lites
(79,97) (7997)

lransfers within other equity 134% (134.96)

Balance liSlit March 31,2020 320.99 1,367.52 1,348.41 11.09 6,7S4.45 28,155.55 724.21 901.83 13,777.35 53,361.411

profit fo' the Vear 1.506,78 1,50678

Other compr ••hensive income for the veil' 1454 1454

lollli comprehensive income for Ihe yea. 1,521.32 1,521.32

Add,tion during the year 68.03 (2.88) 901.83 966,98

Snilr•• issued durong year 901.83 901,83

Baillnee as at March 31, 2021
389.02 1,367.52 1,348.41 8.21 6,754.45 28,155.55 72''1.21 901.83 15,298.67 54,947.87

Securities premium reserve
Selurit'es I'remium reserve is used to record the I', ••mium on issue of shilres. These reserve will be ut,lised in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

Capital reserve
Cilpitlll reS"tv ••will be utilised in accordance with provision of th ••Act
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(~In Ukhs)

Aut A~ at

March H, 2021 March 31, 2020

2,619.52 14,166,65

"'.
7,241.64 460.77

o..n 3,431.24

THE INVt5TMENT TRU5T Of INDIA UMlTED

Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the Ylla. ended March 31,2021

22 Current Borrowings

Secure4

Term loan

(Secured agaln~t pledge of fixed deposit, re~eivables and

corporate guarantee of holding CompanYl

Vehicle loan

(Se~ured by hypothecation of vehicle)

Bank overdraft

(Secured by Government securlt;es and bond~ issued by

PSU~, Banh and Corporate~ Non.convertible Oebenture~1

Ca~h Credit

(Firs! Exclusive charge on the performing ioan receivable~ by

way of Hypothecatlonl

Unsecure4

loans repayable on demand

(I) Related party

(iiI Others

Total

15,746.35

25,608.41

450,00

17,252.50

35,761.16
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Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,2011

23 Trade payables

Amount due to micro and small enterprises (Refer Note No. 46:

Others

Total

24 Other Currenl Financial Uabilities

Unsecured, considered good

Undaimed dMdends

security deposit

Current Maturity 01 long term debts

Preference dividend payable

Dividend distribution tax on preference dividend

Loan aSSignment collection payable

Other payables

Amount payable to related ~rly

Mtm Margin Equity Inde./Stock F&O Received

Interest accrued and due

Related parties

Others

Total

25 Other CUHent Uabililles

Statutory liabilities

Total

26 Current Provisions

ProviSion for employee benefit

Un<lvailed leave

Gfatuity

lOSSallow<lnces on fin<lncial assets

Provision for expenses

Total

If in lakhs)

"' .. AS<lt

March 31, 2011 M<lrch 31, 2020

155

17,121.94 13.12571

17,123.49 13,125,71

If in Lakhs)

"' .. AS<lt

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

0,05

2,75

2.19

7.52 7.51

0.16 0.16

67385

2,993.07 2.311.15

3.98

81.98

83.90

3.419.12 3,221.81

6,419.87 6,389.33

(f in lakhs)

"' .. As at

March 31, 2011 M<lrch 31, 2020

1,171.94 827.59

1,117.94 827.59

(f in takhsl

"' .. As at

March 31, 2011 MMCh 31, 2020

90.65 28.12

98.07 52.13

26.62

53.65 7.77

268.99 88-02

Page 202



THE INVESTMENT TRUST OF INOlA UMITEO

Notes forming pan 01 consolidat~ financial statemenh for the year ended MarCh 31,2021

27 Revenue from OJH'ratlons

Sale of Product

Traded goods

Prolit on trading in debt securities

sale of Services

Advisory / Consultancy income

Brokerage and related operational income

Distribution and professional income

Trusteeship fees

Other Operation Revenue

Interest on loans

Income from assignment receivables

Interest on fixed deposits

Interest on debt secuII{ies

Gain/(loss) in Dealing In Shares / 5ecuflties

Handling Charges on Wan

Profit on loan Book ASsignment

Provision for non performing assets written bad

Provision for standard assets written bac.

Other Operating Income

Total

28 Othe,lncome

Interest income
Net gain on fair valuation through profit and los~

Net gain on sale of investments

Finance income

Dividend income

Gain / (loss) on lease modifications

Net gain on fail valuation through profit and los!

Provision for gratuity wfluen back

Provision for leave wflltt'n bac.

Profit on sale of assets

Rent income

Miscellaneous income

Sundry balances written back

Total

29 Employee Benefit hpense

Salar,es. bonus and allowances

Conlfibutrons to gratuity, provident and other fund~

Share based payment (Refer note 391

5t.ft weifare expenses

Total

:w Finance Cost

interest e'pense on borrOwings

Interest e.pense on preference shares

Corporate guarantee charges

Bank charges

hchange rate difference

Total

Year ended

M;Jr~h 31, 2021

6,488.56

460.70

667.60

9,S4U5

437.40

18.65

10,514.93

4.95

33759

529.54

741.82

8.54

2,085.00

77.05

250.46

32,164.64

Year ended

March 31, 2021

142.37

1,185,86

3.77

20.80

3.75

99.62

6,13

276,33

18.74

7.94

1,765.31

Year ended

March 31, 2021

9,440,25

439,02

68.03
78.17

10,025.47

Year ended

March 31, 2021

3,91528

49.15

79,90

1.4S

4,10S.78

(~in takhs)

Year ended

March 31, 2020

16,837.89

715,45

1,529.73

9,427.22

17.67

3.17

IS,618,92

20,00

687.55

391.57

181.41

13.82

148.17

293.79

4S,946.36

(~ in lakhs)

Year ended

MarCh 31. 2020

SSM

26.39

67,45

8.17

218.80

1.35

065

1,36

6.04

9.41

16.22

411.31

(~ inlakhsj

year ended

March 31. 2020

9,498,29

465.S1

126,28

1n.16
10,262.24

(~ inlakhsj

Year ended

March 31. 2020

5,908,13

25,83

19.10

93.97
0,10

6,041.13
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Notes formine part of consolidated financial statements for the year ended March

31 Other Expense

Stamp duty and stamp charges

Turnover/TransaClion charges

SEBI turnover fees

Brokerage/Sub-brOkeragl'

loss from dl'aling error

Dl'pository charges

Commission l'xpl.'nsl's

Loss in Oealing in SharI'S / Securitil'S

Nl'tloss on fair valuation of investml'nlS through profit and los~

loss on sale of Investments

Other opl'ralional expenses

Exchange and rl'guiator expensl'S

Rl'nt Expenses (Refer NOtl' No, 40)

Rates and taxes

Printing and stationery

Postage and couril'r charges

Travelling and conveyance expenses

Motor vehicle eXpl.'nses

Electricity charges

Communication expenses

Advertisement expensl's

legal and professional f",es

Auditors' remuneration

.Statutory audit

.Tax audit

.Other services

Rl'pairs and maintenance

-Machinery and equipments

.Building

.Others

Membership and Subscription

Business promotion eXp£'nses

Insurance l'xpemes

Donation

Corporate social responsibility expense~

Assignment rl'ceivables wrilll'n ofl

Directors' sining fees

loss on Sale of non performing assets

Provision on Delinquent Moratorium Assets

Bad dl'bl5/Sundry balances wrillen oft

loss allowilnces on loans

Loss allowances on receivables

Computer and (omputl'r software expenses

Amortisation of share is,ul' l'xpenses

lOSSon sale of property

Miscellaneous expensl's

Total

31, 2021

(~in lakhs)

Year ended Year ended

Mal'(h 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

54.08 19636
916,32 896,11

25,06 4420

894.74 420.22

149.80 1.105.61
30.82 27.30

13.36 709.15

631.52

60.00 289,47

83.19
38.91 74,02

39,20 51.08

422.22 523.30

127.71 230.99

49.98 IB43

23.25 )0,25

230.26 441.34

56,41 68.43

123.39 198.48

174.71 174.64

164.97 14t.26
983,93 1,871.65

36,92 29.33

13.15 11,34

3.47 11.58

22.50 25.37

24.50 60.42

202.10 197.87

29.61 35.71

32016 665,69

141,93 172)

25.15 10045

52,72 4238

56,13 36.54

31.40 35.05

460.22
25.71

2,968,72 2,022.54

1,353.40 286.68

198.53 11.40

670.64 634.18
9,21 921

30.70

54.80 136,67

10,878.56 13,131.80
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(~in lakhs)

32 Income taxes

Year ended Vearended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Income tax expense recorded in Profit and Loss

Current tax

Current tax on taxable income for the year
929.75 470.44

929.75 470.44

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax charge/lcredit)
19.04 1,052.41

MATCredit (taken)/utilised
(10.72)

8.32 1,052.41

Tax in respect of earlier years 4." 11,067.67}

4." (1,067.671

Total Income Tax expense/(credit)
942.67 455.18

I~ in lakhs)

Year ended

March 31, 2020

27.82%

1227.76)

(63.36)

Vearended

Man;h 31, 2021

27.55%

2,471.42

680.88

Particulars

Enacted income tax rate in India apphcable to the Company

Profit before tax
Current tax expenses on Profit before tax expenses at the enacted income tax rate in India

(A) Reconciliation of the income tax expenses to the amount computed by applying the statutory Income tax rate to the profit

before income taxes Is summarized below

Tax effect of the amounts which are not deduetlble/(taxable) In calculating taxable income

Profit of share in associate not taxable

Permanent Disallowances

Income exempted from Income taxes
Effect of (recognition)/non recognition of deferred tax asset on losses/provision

MATCredit
Allowances under Income Tax Act 1961

Business Loss carried forward

Tax in rl!spect of earlier years

Tax on other comprehensive income

Tax impact on demerger

Change in tax rates

Others
Tolallncome tax expense/(credit)

(129.55)

18.82

127.67

(10.72)

(0.42)

690.54

4.87

1.96

3.14

(444.51)

942.67

(63.98)

97.76

(52.46)

785.20

(17.20)

6.33

2.32

(196.00)

(5.29)

(38.14)

455.18
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(8)The movement in deferred taK assets and liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021

(i) Components of deferred taK assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2021

l~ in Lakhs)

Particulars

Depreciation

Provision for Employee benefits

Business lOss

loss allowances on loans

Others
Total

Year Ended

March 31, 2020

22S.33

176.11

592.20

2,784.00

111.33

3.889.63

Ctedlt/(charse)

In statement of

profit or loss

(indudlng 00)

84.51

(129.71)

48.24

73.27

(102.17)

(25.86)

Deferred tu on

basis adjustment

Year Ended

March 31, 2021

309.84

47.06

640.44

2,857.27

9.16

3,863.77

(Ii) Components of deferred taK insets and liabilities as at March 31, 2020
(~in LakhsJ

Particulars

Depreciation

Provision for Employee benefits

8usiness Loss

Loss allowances on loans

Others
Total

oefelTl!d Tn Asset

Difference between book and tax depreciation

Provision for Employee benefIts

8usiness Loss

Loss allowances on loans

Others
Net Deferred TaKAssets

Year Ended

March 31, 2019

322.74

72.18

1.456.06

2.764.21

340.48

4.955.67

Credit/(charse)

in statement of

profit or loss

(Including OCIJ

(97.41)

1()4.59

(8H86)

19.79

(213.20)

(1.050,09)

Deferred UK on

basis adjustment

(15.95)

(15.95J

AS at
MarCh 31, 2021

30984

47.06

640.44

2.857.27

9.16

3,863.11

Year Ended

March 31, 2020

225.33

176.11

592.20

2,784.00

111.33

3,889.63

l~ in Lakhs)

Asat

March 31, 2020

225.33

176.77

592.20

2,784.00

111,33

3.889.63
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33 Financial RiskManagement

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, induding market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's risk
management assessment and policies and processes are establistled to identify and analyze the risks faced by ttle Group, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor suCtlrisksand compliance wittlttle same. Riskassessment and management policies

and processes are reviewed regularly to reflect ctlanges in market conditions and ttle Group'Sactivities.

Credit risk
Credit risk is ttle risk of financial loss to ttle Group il a Cllstomer or counterparty to a financial instrumentlails to meet ils contractual
obligations, and arises principally from ttle Group's receivables from customers, loans and investments. Credit risk is managed ttlrougtl
credit approvals. establistling cred,t limits and continuously monitoring ttle creditworttlmess of counterparty to wtlictl ttle Group grants

credit terms in ttle normal course of business.

l~ in laktlS)

••••
Marctl 31, 2020

••••
Marctl 31, 2021Partlcula~

Trade receivables
The Group has used expected credit loss (ECl)model for assessing the impairment loss. For ttle purpose, the Group uses a provision
matrix to compute ttle expected credit loss amount, The provision matrix takes into account external and internal risk factors and

tlistoricaldata of credit losses from various customers.

Financialassels for whktlloss allowances ismeasured using the expected credit loss

Trade receivables
less than 180 days
180 - 365 days
beyond 365 days

Total

4,994.90
222.47
196.06

5,413.44

6,736.25
949.53
369.31

g,OS5.09

liquidity risk

Liquidityrisk is ttle risk thaI ttle Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Group manages its
liquidityrisk by ensuring, as far as possible, ttlat it willalways have sufficient liquidityto meet its liabilitieswtlen due, under boltl normal

and stressed conditions, wittlout incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the Group's reputation.

The table below provides details regarding ttle f;ontraclual maturities of significant financial liabilities :

Partlcula~
Asat Marctl31, 2021
Borrowings(includes current maturities of long term debt}
Trade and Oltler payables

Lessthan 1 year

25,608.41
23,609.85

49,218.26

(~ in Laktlsl
1.3yean

2,194.01
513,72

2,761.13

Asat Marctl 31, 2020
Borrowings (indudes current maturities of long term debt)

Trade and other pavables

35,763.35
19,568.12
55,331.47

2,094.15
1,488.15
3,582.30

Page 207



Market Risk
Exposure to interest rale risk

Particulars

Total Borrowings (includes current maturities of long term debt)
"of Borrowings out of above bearing variable rate of interest

As at
March 31,2021

27,802.42
26.05

(~ in takhs)
Asat

March 31, 2020
36.380.33

10,70

Sensitivity (Impact of change In interest rates)
Achange of SObps in inlerest r~tes would have following Impact on profit before taK

Particulars

SObp increase would de(fe~w the profit before taKby
so bp decrease would Increase the profit before tax by

Yearern:led
March 31,2021

36.21
36.21

(~ in takhs)
Year ended

March 31,2020
19.46

19.46

(f in takhS)
As at

MarCh31, 2020
36.380
0.18
3,239
9,590

23,551
58,685
0.40

••••
March 31, 2021

27,802

0.18
12,368

11,308

4,121

60,301

0.01

Debt (includes non-current. current borrowings ~nd current m~turit;es of long term debt)

Less:Current Investments
Less:Cashand c~sh eqliivalenlS
Less:Other balances with bank
Net debt
Total equity
Net debt to total equity ratio

(I)Debt equity ratio

34 Capital RiskManagement
The Group ~im to manages its capital efficiently so ~s to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns to

our sh~reholders.
TheGroup monitors capital on the b~sis of the carrying amount of debtless cash ~nd cash equivalents as presented on the lace of the

financial statements,
TheGroup's objective for capit~1man~gement is to m~intain ~noptimum over~lIljn~ncial structure.
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35 fAIRVAlUEMEASUREMENT
financial Instrument by category and lI'erarchy

The fa" valu", 0' the 'mancial alSets and liabilit•••s are ,ncluded at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged ,n a cum"nt transaction bEotwe••n wIllingparties, other than in a forced or 1''1u,dalion sal••,

The loliowing methods and assumplions were used to "Slimat ••Ihe lair values:

1. Fair value of cash and sllort.term deposits, trade and othe, short term receivables. trade payables, other currenlliabilitles. short te,m loans from banks and other financial inllitulions appro ••mate their carrying
amounts la'gely due lO short lerm maturities of thrse ,nstrumenlS,

2, Fi""ncial inSlruments with fixed and variilblO'inte'esT rates are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as Interest rates and individual (red,t worthiness of the counterparty, Based on this evaluation.
allowances are taken to account for e"pected losses of these receivabl,.s. Accordingly. fa" value of such instruments is not mateflally different from Iheir carry,ng amounts.

The fair values for loans. security deposits and investment m preference shares were calculated baled on caSh flows discountl.'d using a current lending rate. They a'e Classified as level 3 fair values in the fall value
hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inp~ts including counter party credit ,is.

The fair values of non-current borrowings a'e based on dIScounted cash flows using a current borrowing rale, Thf"l are claSSifiedas level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs.
induding Owncred,t mk.

For f,nanCial asset. and Iiabiiit,es that are measured at fa" value. the carrying amounts are e<.tualto the fai, values.

The Company uses the foliowing hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of flnancial inSlrumenl! by ""Iualion lecllnique:
level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active ma,kets fo' identkal assets or liabilities.

level 2: other techniques for wllicll all inputs whIch lIave a s,gnrt"ant effect on th•• r••corded lall vaiue are observable, eIther dlfectly or indlleClly.
level 3: techniqu ••s which us•• inputs that have a sI8n,f,can! effect on the record ••d fair value tllat are not based on obs ••rvabl••ma,ket data

(t in laklls)
financial A<iiieiSand liabilities

Non Current Cur~nt Total Fair ""Iue Ihrou h Profit and loss Fal. ""Jue throu 00 carried al amortised COSI
Total Amounlas al March 31, 2020 ~vell Level 2 Level 3 Total level 1 ""'"" ""''' Total level 1 Level 2 ""'"" Total

financial A<isets
Investments
,quil instruments 54.30 018 54.48 3973 - 14.75 5448 - - - 54.43
Mutual funds 560.63 560.63 560,63 - - 560.63 - - - 560.63
P,••fe, ••nce sha'es 21278 21278 - - 212.78 212.78 - 212.78
Others 8,Ql097 8.0lD,97 6,712.86 1,298,11 8,01097 - - - 8,010.97
Olher assets

Cash and cash "QUival••nlS 12.367.57 12,367.57 - - - - - 12,367.57 12,367.57 12,361.51
T'ade receivables - 5,41].44 5,4l3.44 - - - - - 5,41],44 5,4l3.44 5,413.44
Other balances with bank - 11,307.84 11,301.84 - - - - - - - - - 11,307.84 IU07,84 11,301.84
loans to ,••Iated arti ••s 11,07350 11,07350 - - - - - - 11,07350 11,07350 11,013.50
loans to employees 12.78 12.78 - - - - - - - - - 12.18 12.18 12.18
loans to others 31,51101 31.511,01 - - - - - - - - - 31,511.07 31,511.01 31,511.01
Olller !onancialass••t~ - 5.17462 5,17462 - - - - - - - 5,11462 5,174.62 5,174.62
Security d•• sill 5,08031 0.39 5.080,70 - - - - - - - - - 5,080.70 5,080,10 5,0lI0.10

Total 13,918,99 76,86l.39 90,180.3-8 1,313.22 - 1,525.64 8,838.86 - - - - - - 81,941.52 81.941.52 90,180.3-8

Finandalilabilities
Borrowin s 2,19401 25,608,41 27.802.42 - - - - - 27,802.42 27,802,42 21.802.42
Trade Pa abies 17,12349 17,12349 - - - - 11,123.49 17,lH,49 11,123.49
Olher Financia bol,li••• - 6.41981 6.41987 - - - - - 6,419.87 6,419.81 6,419.81v. ,T C~Total 2,194,01 49,151.n 51,345.18 - - - - - - - - 51,345.18 51,345.18

51,345.18 :\T ru ~~.r ......-<1i, ~~!o,( 'hI'>
~r ,~~lAUOJTORS)O .,r \
~r 1~\,0)\ M.ND, ;f!
S\ Jt::'i-b- 10159B..1.;-

~_.J<o~ ~~'--&*C.A.* ".(*9~-,
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35 FAIRVALUEMEASUREMENT(Continued}

If in lakhsl
FInancial Assets and lIabllllles

Non Current Current TOUI
Fair Villuf!throu h Proilland Loss Fair value th,ou h 00 Carrted at amortised cost

ilSilt March 31, 2020 Levell If!wl2 Lewl3 Total lew1! Lewl2 lo:'wll Total Levell lo:'vel2 lo:'vel3 Total
Total Amount

Financial Assel$
lnwstmenu
Equity iMtrument~ 13513 0,18 135.31 135,U . . 135.31 . . . . . . . 135.31
Mutual fun(i~ 286,13 286.13 286.13 . . 286.13 . . . . . 286.13
Preference shares 27248 27248 . 27248 272.48 . . . . 272.48
Others 7.068,73 7,06873 5,78371 . l.28S.02 7.068,73 . . 7.068.73
Other a~sets
Cash and «Ishe uivalenl~ 3,238.59 3.138,59 . . . . . . 3,238.59 3.238.59 3.238.59
Trade re(eovables 8.055.09 8,055 09 . 8,05509 8,055.09 8.055,09
Other baian(es wllh bank 9,590.23 9.590.23 . . . . . . . . 9,590,13 9,S9023 9,590,23
Loan~\0 employee~ 20.53 20,S3 . . . . . . . . . . 2053 20.53 20.53
loaM to other~ 6,97168 43,663,65 50,635,13 . . . . . . . 50,635,13 50,635,33 50,63533
Other finan('al assets 4,666,15 4,666,15 . . . . . 4,666,15 4,666.15 4,566,15
Se(ul<ty deposits 4,88920 6,01 4,895,21 . . . . . 4,89521 4,895,21 4,895,21

Total 19,623.35 69,240.43 88,863.78 6,205.15 . 1,557.50 1,162.65 . . . . . 81,101.13 81,101.13 88,863.78

Financialliabiliti6

Borrow," ~ 2,094,15 35,761,16 37,85S,31 . . . . . . 37,855,31 37,855,31 37,855,31
Trade Pa abies 13.l25.71 13,125,71 . . . . . . H,125,71 13.l25.71 13,125,71
Other finan(;alliabiiities 6,389,33 6,389,33 . . . . 6,38933 6,389,33 6,389,13

Total 2,094.15 55,216.20 51,370.35 . . . . . . . . . 57,370.35 51,310.35 57,310.35
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36 SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments:

a. B,oo"'g and 'elated .ervitM

b. lnve.lmem and Adv,so<y servkM

t. Trading Activil'M

d Financing att",iliM

ldoentili<.ation of segments:

The ch,el ope'ational detilion ma.e' mon,lo" the operating relultl of ,IS BUliness .egment separMely for Ihe ",,'pose of mak,ng decision about reSOurce allocation and performance a•• essment, Segmenl

perf"rmance is evaluated ba.edon prof,t 0' Ims and i. measured consistently w,th p,ofn or loss in the "nancial stalements, Operating segmem have been idenlilied on Ihe basis of nawre of products and
OIher quantitative crileria Ipecif,ed in Ihe Ind AS 108

segment revenue and re.ults:

The expenses and income which are nOI di'ectly attribulable 10 an~ business segment are shown •• unallotable expenditure (net of allocable income),

Segmenl ••••• 1Sand liabilities:

'>egmen: assets include all op"raling ass,," uled by the operating '''gment and mainly consilt of properly. plant and equipment., trade receivables, Invenlory and oth"r "perating a"ets. '>egmenlliabilitie.

pr;ma"ly ,ncludeSlrad" payabl" and oth"r I'abilili" •. Commonalletl and habilitie. which can not be allocated 10 any of the bUIII""1,egml"nt ar" .hown •• unallocable assets/llab,ht'e.

Inter 5egment t",n.fer.

Inle, S"gmenl revenues are rl"cognlsed at •• Ies price. Thl" •• me is based on maroel prrce and bus, ness "Ik •. P'olit 0' 10" on ,nter .egment

Disclosure pursuant to lnd AS 108 .OlM'rating Segment

BrokillJlancl related Investment and
TradillJl Actlllltle, Fina""lng activiti ••• Eliml""tion TOlal

Particula~
servi<::ei. Adlllso services

2020-21 2019.W 2020-21 2019.20 20200-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 202().21 2019.20
Segment revenue

E.ternal'""enue 13,100.02 1l,S4Ul 1,555.34 1,636.93 6,488.56 16.831.89 12,186,04 16,H9.14 - 33,929.95 46,357.67
Inter segment ,evenue 164.46 42809 1,083.24 1,028.27 - 653.93 2,931.19 11,901.64) (4,387551

Tot~1 :evenue 13,264.48 11.971.20 2,638.58 2,665.20 6,488.56 16,837,89 13,439.91 19,270.93 1I,901.64) (4,387.551 33,929.95 46,3S7.67
Segmenl Re.ult 5,062.59 U66.3l (283.44) 11,007 (2) 602.74 68211 725.01 4,398.58 - 6,106.96 S,439.39
Inlere,t expen,e 741,43 913.37 - 2,444.98 - - 4,105.18 6,047,13
Prol;t beiare Ia. 4,315.16 1,366,32 U,I96.81) U.007.(2) 602.74 682,11 (1,719.91) 4.39858 - 2,001.18 (607,74)
Previ,ion for la~

CU'fent Ia. - - - - - 919.03 470.44
Delerred Ia. - - - - - - - 19.04 1,052.41
Currenl tax relating to p'ior ye~rs - - - - - - - - - ..'" 11.061,67)
Prefit after la'iafte' exceptional ilem.) - - - - - - - - - 1,058,51 11,062.92J
Share ot P,of" ,n Associates - - - - - - - - - - 470.24 37998
Nel Prof" - - - - - - - - - 1,528.15 1682.94)
Other lnfo'malion

Se ment a ••ets 41,845.85 31.173.14 56,953.$5 56,098.40 UOO,54 2,414.14 65,714.44 7U4165 (53,541.96) (48,219,&61 1,14,072.42 1,18.807.67
Segment h"bilit,e, 23,443.62 23.32160 16,220.62 15,234.18 21.29 86790 31,455.Bl 37,040,8S \11,370.38) (16,342.06) 53,770.91 60,123.07
Nl"tSegmenl A••ell 18,402.23 13,851.54 40,732.93 40,863.62 3,019,2$ 1,546.24 34,258.63 34,300.80 136,t1t.S9} 131,877.601 60,301.45 58,684.60
Cap'tal e.penditu'e 50.81 28.10 2.12 26.87 - - 136.28 12838 - - 189.21 183950." , 79.43 12685 499.64 661.13 - - 386.21 4S3,5O - - 965.34 124148

~~~

l'!t''J1i ~n~~~ by "It'; single (Ultomer in "It'; of Ihl" operating .egment •. wIlether reportable or otherwi'e, doe. not exceed ten percent of the g'oup', 100al 'evenue'" "'---..-1" I/~ \~~'I' ">S'..,,
::>of I=-:l; [ AUOITORS)g "( ~
- 1.Q:i"~ M,NC.)_ .,1

i-\.I[]lS9a.l~ ~>-{::-~ .••.. _ .•... ",'" * I'"~'*C.A.*
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37 Related party Transactions
a) Names of related parties and nature of relationship

I) Enterprises having significant influence
Fortune Integrated Assets Finance Limited

Wind Construction Limited

ii) Key managerial personnel and their relatives

Mr. Prateek laval
Mr.Rajesh Kumar Acha

Mr. S.G.Muthu Kummar
Mr. Haroon Mansuri

b) Details of transactions with related parties referred to above

Associate
Subsidiary of associate

Manager (upto 31.05.2020)

Manager (from 01.07.2020)

Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary

l~ in LakhsJ

Transaction amount

Nature of Transactions

1. Remuneration
Mr.Prateek laVal
Mr.Rajesh Kumar Acha
Mr. S.G.Muthu I(ummar

Mr. Haroon Mansuri
2.Contibution to Provident fund

Mr.Prateek laval
Mr.Rajesh Kumar Acha
Mr. S.G.Muthu Kummar
Mr. Haroon Mansuri

3. Interest received
Fortune Integrated Assets Finance Limited

4. Interest paid
Fortune Integrated Assets Finance Limited

5. Assignment collection received
Fortune Integrated Assets Finance Limited

6. loan given to
Fortune Integrated Assets Finance Limited

(Maximum balance aut5tanding during the period)

7. loan received back
Fortune Integrated Assets Finance Limited

8. Loan taken from
Fortune Integrated Assets Finance Limited

(Maximum balance outstanding during the period)

9. loan repaid to
Fortune Integrated Assets Finance limited

2020-21

9.55

25.27

24.30

14.60

0.45

0.97

0.36

0.62

1,709.13

31.46

11,641.25

14,812.50

10,754.75

2019-20

S5.06

20.53

14.08

1.35

0.30

0.62

1,291.69

93.24

106,96

1,878.33

13,946.00

2,928.00

2006.47

5,716.67
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c. Amount due to/from related parties

Nature of Transactions

1. Interest Receivable
Fortune Integrated Assets finance Limited

2. Interest Payable
Fortune Integrated Assets Finance Limited

3. loan receivable
Fortune Integrated Assets Finance Limited

4. loan Payable to
Fortune Integrated Assets Finance Limited

S. Assignment collection receivables
Fortune Integrated Assets Finance Limited

6. Other receivables
Fortune Integrated Assets Finance Limited

7. Remuneration Payable
Mr.Prateek layal
Mr.Rajesh Kumar Acha

Mr. $.G.Muthu Kummar
Mr. Haroon Mansuri

Related parties are identified by management and relied upon by auditors.

Aut

March 31, 2021

1,580.94

11,073.50

13.76

74.55

2.73

3.36
1.45

It In Lakhs)
As at

March 31, 2020

1,120.92

83.92

10,637.00

4$0.00

28.36

3.07

2.47

1.31

Page 213



THEINVE5TMENTTRU5TOFINDIA UMITED
Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the vear I'MI'd March 31, 2021

38 Disclosure plIrsuant to Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 19 ~Emplovee Benefits~

a) Defined Benefit Plans
The Group pro~ldes for gratUIty for employee~ in IndIa as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1912. Employee~ whO are in
continuous seNice lor a period of 5 year~ are eligible lor gratuity, The amount 01 gratuily payable on
retirement/termination is the employees 1asl drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately lor 15 days salary

multiplied lor the number 01 years 01 seNice. The gratuity plan is a lunded plan and the Group makes contributions to

recognised lunds in India.

Particulars

Changesin defined benefit obligations
Presenl value of obligation a~at the beginning ollhe year

Current seNice cost

Interest cost

Benelit Paid from fund

Benefit paid by company

Due to Change in financial assumptions

Due to change in demographic assumption

Due to experience adjustments

Present ~alue of obligation asatlhe end of the year

II Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets

Fair ~alue 01plan assets at the beginning 01the year

Inlerest Income

Benelit Paid

Adjustment to the Opening fund

Contributions by employer

Return on plan assetsexcluding amounts included In interest income

fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

III Net employee benefit expenses for the year

Current ser~ice cost

Net intere~t cost

Adju~tment to the Opening lund

Net employee benefit expenses for the year

Other Comprehensive Income for the current period

COmponents of actuarialgain/losses on obligations:

Due to Change in financial assumption~

Due to change in demographic assumption

Due to expenenre adjustments

Return on plan a~setse.eludinS amount~ included in interest income

Other Comprehensive Income for the current period

IV category of fair value of plan asset

Policy of insurance

It In Lakhsl

•••• ••••
March 31, 2021 March :H, 2020

4S5.03 372.67

110.05 98.56

32.37 27,71

(9.98) (45.64)

(8.011

2.89 44.71

(0.45)

(63.16) (12.53)

549.21 485.03

309.53 278.95

23.16 27.35

(9.98) (45.64)

(22.09)

23.06 23.02

(14.57) 47.94

331.21 309.53

110.05 98.56

9.21 0.36
. 22.09

119.26 121.01

2.89 44.71

(0.45)

(63.161 (12.52)

14.57 (47.95)

(45.70) ltG.21)

100% 100%
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V Assumptions
With the objective of presenting the plan assets and plan liabilities of the defined benefih plans and post retirement
medical benefits at their fair value on the balance sheet, aHumptions under Ind AS 19 are set by reference to market

conditions at the valuation date.

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

i) Financial Assumptions:
Discount rate [ per annum)

Salary escalatIon I per annum)

iii Demographic Assumptions:
Published rates under the Indian Assured LivesMortality (2005.08) urt table,

6.85%

S.OO%

6.90%

5.00%

VI sensitivity Analysis
Impact on defined benefit obligation due to change in assumptions

Discount rate Sensitivity

Increase by 0.5% 521.23 459.37

[%change} -5.08% -5.28%

Decrease by 0,5% 579.54 512.91

[%change} 5.54% 5.75%

Salary growth rate 5ensitivlty

Increase by 0.5% 577.65 511.76

(%change) 5.20% 5.53%

Oecreaseby 0.5% 522.24 460.71

(%change) -4.90% .$.00%

Withdrawal rate (W.R.) 5ensitivity

W.R. x 110% 550.85 48563

(%change) 0.30% 0,33%

W.R. x 90% 547.48 483.36

(%change) --0.31% -0.34%

VII Maturity profile 01defined benefit obligation is as follows:

Within the next 12months 38.21 31,66

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 99.05 82,32

Later than 5 yeal 256.69 221.32

The future accrual is not considered in arriving at the above cash-flows.
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VIII Risk hposure
Through its defined benefit plans, the Group is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant

i) Actuarial Risk It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This
can arise due to Adverse Salary Growth hperience,
Variability in mortality rales and Variability in withdrawal

rates

ii) Investment Risk

iiilliquidity Risk

ivl Market Risk

vI legislative Risk

For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the

assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may not
be the fair value of instruments backing the liability, In such

cases, the present value of the assets is independent of the

future discount rate. This can result in wide f1uctuatiOM in

the net liability or the funded statuS if there are significant

changes in the discount raIl." during the inter-valuation

period.

Employees with high salaries and long durations or
those higher in hierarchy, acwmulate significant leV(!I 01

benefits. If some of such employees resign/retire Irom the

Companylhere can be strain on the cashflows.

Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to
lhe changes and fluctuations of the financial markets. One

actuarial assumption that has a material effect is the

discount rate. The discount rate rellects the time value of

money. An increase in discount rate leads to decrease in
Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa.

This assumption depends on the yields on the

corporate/government bonds and hence the valuation of

liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the

valuation date.

legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or

reduction in the plan assets due to change in the

legislation/regulation. The government may amend the
Payment of Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay
higher benefits to the employees. This will directly affect the

present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the

same will have to be recognized immediately in the year

when any such amendment is effective.

bl Details of Defined Contribution Plan
The Group also has certain defined contribution plans. Contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees at
the rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations. The contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by
the govemment. TheObligatiOnof the Group is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any
constructive obligation. The expense recognised during thl." year towards definl."d contribution plan is ~ 243.92 lakhs

(Previous year ~ 340.711akhsf in the Statement of Profit and toss for the year I."nded March 31, 2021 under defined

contribution plan.

cl Compensated absences

Compensated absencesare provided for on thl."basisof an actuarial valuation, using projectl."d unit credit method, as at the

date of the balance sheet, actuarial gains J losses, if any, are immediately recognized in the statl."ment of profit and loss.
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". Particulars
No.

Remarks

1 Date of rant 19th April,201B 23rd November, 201B

2 0 tions ranted 3,00,000 3,00,000, 0 tions vested Nil Nil

, o 1ions exercised Nil Nil

5 The total number of shares arisin as a result of exercise 01 0 tions Nil Nil

6 o;:;t;ons la sed Nil Nil

, vestin date
For 2,50,000 options. 19'" For 3,00,000 options-

April,2019 23rd November, 2020

For 50,000 OptiOns' 1"

June. 2020

8 Assumed exercised eriod in ears

For 2,SO,000 options .19'" for 3.00,000 options - 2.5

April, 2019- 2 years years

for SO.OOOoptions' 1"

June, 2020 - 3.17 years

9 the exercise roce t 247,25 t 220.85

10 variation in terms ot options Not a licable Not a liuble

11 money realised b exercise of 0 t,ons No' et due tor exercise No' et due for exerc,se

12 total number of 0 tions in force 3.00,000 3,00,000

13 em 10 ee wise details of options ranted to:

a) Ke Mana erial Personnel Nil Nil

b) any other employee who receives a grant of options in anyone year 0 M'. Rajesh Bhatia ."' M, . George Heber Joseph

options amounting to five percent or more of total options granted durin granted 3,00,000 Options, ••• granted 3,00,000

that year
o t,ons,

c) Identifil'd employees who were granted options. during anyone year, Not a licable Not a I,cable

" any matenal change to the scheme and whether such schem!' is in No NO

39 Employee Stock Option Scheme

The Company has formulated an Employee Stock Option Scheme known as FFSIL Employees Stock Option Plan 2017 ("ESOP - 2017") in

accordance with the provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014.

Details of Employee Stock Options

The fair value has been calculated using Black Sholes Options pricing Model and significant assumptions made in this regard are as follows:

Particulars Vest dated April 19, 2019 Vest dated June 01, 2020
Vest dated November 23,

2020

1 Stock Price (t) 247.25 247.25 22S.1S

2 Strike/ Exercise Price 247.25 247.25 220,85

,
"

ted life of 0 tions (no, of years) 2 3.17 25

, Risk free rate of interest (%) 7.-48 7.48 "
5 1m liedVolati;.t facto'l%) 31.12 31,12 ]3.25

6 Fair value per Option at ear end (t) 59.5 78,52 67.01

In respect of options granted under ESOP, accounting is done as per requirements of Ind AS 102 Share based Payments Expenses on account

of Share based payments dliring the yea. amounts to t 68,03 lakhs.
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Summary of Employee Stock Option Schemes ('ESOS')
For the Period from 01/04/2018 to 31/03/2019
Sr,NO, Particulars of Options / Scheme ESOP2017

1 Outstandin as at be innin of the Period 6,00,000
2 Griinted durin the Period ...
3 Date of Grant 16/04/2018 &

23/11/2018

• Forfeited durll"l the Penod ...
S Cancelied durin the Period ...,
" sed durin the Period ...

7 hercised durin the Period ...
8 Allotted durin the Period ...
9 Number of shares arisin as a result of exercise of options ...
10 Mone realiled b exercise of 0 tions (INRI, if scheme is im lemented directJ b the com "

...
11 Number of 0 tions vested durin the Period ...
12 Outstandin as at the end of the Period 6,00,000

13 Exercisablealthe end of the Period 6,00,000

" Wei hted averJ e remainin contractual hfe (in ears 2.5 years

15 Wei hted avera e fair value of options ranted 6227
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40 lEASE5

(i) As a leasee

(AI Following are the changes In the carrying value of right of use assets

Particulars

Opening Balance as at April 01, 2020

Movement during the year

Depreciation during the year

Closing Balance as at March 31, 2021

Particulars

Opening Balance as at April 01, 2019

Movement during the year

Depreciation during the year

Closing Balance as at March 31, 2020

(e) Movement In lease liabilities

Particulars

Opening Balance as at April 01, 2020

Movement during the year

Add: Finance cost accrued during the period

Less: Payment 01 lease liabilities

Balance as at 31 March 2021

Particulars
Opening Balance as at April 01, 2019

Movement during the year

Add: Finance cost accrued during the period

Less: Payment 01 lease liabilities

Balance as at 31 March 2020

It In lakhsl

1,425.66

.418.29

490.87

516.50

(t In lakhsl
1,913.09

148.82

636.26

1,425.66

It In lakhsl

1.543.42
.492.06

107,98

519,12

640.21

(t In lakhsl

2,015.90

46.11

179.93

698.52

1,543.42

(C) Break up value of the Current and Non. Current Lease Liab1l1tles

Particulars

Current Lease Liilbilities

Non.Current Lease LiilbilitieS

Total

(0) Amount recognised in statement of profit& loss

Particulars

Finance cost on lease liabilities

Depreciation on ri8ht of use assets
Rental hpenses recorded fo, short.term lease pilyments ilnd payments lor I,

Year ended March

31.2021

66.49

573.72

640.21

Yur ended March

31,2021

107.98

49O,1l7

422.22

It In lakhs)

YearendI'd

March 31, 2020

55.27

1,488.15

1543.42

(t In Lakhsl

YearendI'd

Marth 31, 2020

179.93

636.26

523.3
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(E)Amount recognised in statement of cash flows

Particulars
Year ended March

11,2021

Total cash outflow for leases 519,12
further there are no short term or low value leases, for which Company carries any material commitments.

(~in ukhs)

Year ended
Mard131. 2020

698.52

Particulars

Not later than one year

later than one year but nOllaler than five years

later than five years

Year ended March
11.2021

324.41
399,01

65.16

(t in ukhs)

Yearendl!'d
March 31, 2020

699,76

1,462,98

79.45

41 Earnings Per Share

Basicand diluted earnings per share computed in aCCOrdancewith Indian Accounti"'g Standard 33 tIAS-33) "Earning Per

Share"

Particulars

Basic

Net profit after tax (t in lakhs)

Weighted average number of outstanding equily ~hares
Basicearning per equity share (in t)

face Value per equity share {in t}

Diluted
Net profit after tax (t in lakhsJ

Weighted average number of outstanding equity shares

Diluted earning per equity share (in t)
face Value per equity share (in t)

••••
March 11. 2021

1.506.78

5,10,23,767
2.95

10

1,506,78

5,16,23,767
2.92

10

Asat
March 31, 2020

(520.10)

5,10,23,767
(1,02)

10

(520.10)

5,16,23,767
(1.01)

10

42 Contingent liabilities and commitmenu ( to the extent not provided for)

a) Contingent liabilities
i) Corporate guarantee issued in favour of banks to secure credit facilities sanctioned by the banks to subsidiary

companies t 41,000 lakhs ( PreviOUSyear t 42,300 lakhs)

ii) Guarantees given by banks on behalf of the Group In respect of capital adequacy, daily margin and other contractual

commitments for capital markN operations of the Group is f 10,148.75 lakhs (Previous year t 4,957.50 lakhs)

iii) Claims against the Group not adnowledged as debts
_Related to Income tax t 14,411akhs ( PreviOUSyear t 10.261akhsl

_Related to stamp duty t 20,14 lakhs (Previous year f 20.14Iakhs)
_Related to tax deducted at source t 34.74 laktls ( PreviOUSyear f 34.75 lakh51

_Others f 108.411akhs ( PreviouSyear t 108.41Iakhs)
b) In respect of litigations filed by the Group for recovery amOl.lntof t 469.381akhs (Previous year f 469.38 lakhs), no
provision has been made as the management is of the opinion that entire amount is fully recoverable,

c) Estimated amount of contracts remain,"g to be e'l.'cuted on capital account Nil (PreviOUSyear Nil)
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43 Particulars of unhedged foreign currency e~posure as allhe reporting dale:

Particulars

Creditors for bpenses

Trade Receivable

TOlal

44 Income & Expendilure in Foreign Currency

Particulars

a) Income in Foreign Currency:
sale of services

Other operalionallncome

b) E~penditure in foreign Currency
Brokerage 1Sub-Brokerage
Compuler and Computer Software Charges

BusinessPromolion hpenses

Travelling and Conveyance Expenses

A".
March 31. 2021

30.76

14.58
45.34

Year ended March

31,2021

41.71

87.39

9.55

60.75

0.43

If in Lakhsl
A",

March 31. 2020
33.90

0.22

34.12

(f In Lakhs)

Year ended

March 31, 2020

132.S7

81.02

3.09

57.36

0.56

32.26

4S The Scheme of Arrangement ("Scheme") between United Petro Finance Limited ('UPFL' or the 'Demerged Company) and

Fortune Credil Capilal Limiled ('FeCL' or the 'Resulting Company') and their respective shareholders providing for the
demerger of lending business ('lending Business') of UPFLto Feel (Wholly Owned Subsidiary of the Company), and IHue of

equity shares and optionally convertible preference shares ("OepS") 01 the Company to the shareholders of UPFl with

effect from March 31. 2017 {appointed date) was approved by the Board of Directors of the respt'l:tive Companies on

March 31. 2017.
The Company had fill'd application with National Company law Tribunal (IIICLT), Mumbai bench and the xhl'ml' has been

approvl'd by IIICLT vide order dated 3rd December, 2020.
Thl' Company il~quired control over UPFl on 14th OCtober 2018, since when all three Compilnil's ilre under common

control. In view of the same, this Scheme is ilccounted in accordance with Ind AS103 - Buiness Combinations as common

control business combination by following pooling of interest ml'lhod with effect from the date of acquisition of control

and accordingly the figures of previOUSyear arl' restated. as applicable.
As per the Scheme of Arrangement, thl' Company issued 4.96500 fully paid Equity shares of face value' 10 each and

7,32,000 Optionally Convertible Preferencl' shares of face value' 325/- each, convertible into equal number of equity

shares of face value' 10/- each. to the shareholders of UPFL.
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(t In Lakh$)

2019-20

1.55

2020.21Particulars
i. The principal amount and the interest due thereon lto be shown
~eparately remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of accounting

year,

ii. The amount of interest paId by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the

Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development act, 2006, along with

the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appomted

day during accounting year.

iii. The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay ,n

making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appomted day

dunng the period} but without adding the interest specified under MitrO

Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

46 The Group hil~ requested its tred,tor~ to confirm the applicability to them under the Micro Small and Medium Entt'rprises
Development Act 2006. Based on the responses received by the Company, the detail~ of dues to micro enterpri~es and

small enterprises iI,e as under:

iv_The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of

accounting year.

v. The amount of furthl'f interest remaIning due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until sULh date when the interest dues as above are

actually paid to the small enterprises for the purpose of disallowance as a

deductible e~penditure under section 23 of the Micro small and Medium

enterprises Development act, 2006,

Note: The information as required t('l be disclosed under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has

been determined to the extent such parties have bl'en identIfied on the basisof information available with the company.

47 Tht' outbreak of Corona virus (COVID.19)pandl!mic globally and ,n India is caus;ng SIgnificant disturbance and slowdown of

economic actiVIty. The Impact of the same is uncer:ain and WIlldepend on the spread of Covid.19, the effectiveneH of

current and future steps taken by the governments to mitigate the economic impact and other variables. The capital

markets, Mutual fund and banking seNices being declared as essential seNices, the Group has been in operation

consistently during lock down and no impact on the bu~iness.
Ne<essaryprecautions to ensure hygiene, safety, and wellbeing of all our employees at all offices have been impiemented_

TheGroup has considered the possible effects CDVID.19may have on the recoverability and carrying value of ItSaSSl'ts.

Based on current indicators of future economic conditIons. th ••Group e~pects to re<over the carrving amount of these
assets.The situatIon is changmg rapidly gLvingrise to inherent uncertainty around the edent and timing of the potential
future impact of the COVID-19which may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of th",~(' results. The

Group will COntmue10closely monitor any f'latl!f1al change~ansing of tuture economic conditions and imp~ct on its

busine~s

48 Previous year's figures Me reworked, regrouped, rearranged and recla~sified wherever necessarv. to conform to d~ecurreM

year's classification.

For and on behalf of
THEINVESTMENTTRUSTOF INDIA LIMITED r
~~. u

J

Chlnlan V Villia ~t, CVal,a
Non.Executive Chairman Non-Executive Dire<tor

As p"r our RepOlt of ever<date

For RAME'.iHM. SHE,H & ASSO(IATt$

Chartered Accountants
f'irm Registration No. 111883W

,
Mehul R. Sheth

PartnH
Membership ~o.

Mun>ba1.May 2b. 2021

IDIN: (5333936)

----=-~~~-~~ ----------
S.G. Muthu Kummar

ChIef Financial Officer
Mumbai, May 26, 2021

~--'---
Haroon Mansuri -
Company Secretary
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Tel: +912240126767/49676768 M No: 9820297310email: office@rmsassociates.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of The Investment Trust of India limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of The Investment
Trust of India Limited("the Company"), which comprise the Baiance Sheet as at March
31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other Comprehensive Loss),the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on
that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred toas"the standalone financialstatements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaidstandaionefinanciai statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133
of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, the Lossand total comprehensive
Loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on thatdate,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs), Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report, We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India ("!CAl") together with the independence requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the statements under the provisionsof the Act and the
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics, We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinionon the standalonefinancialstatements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone financialstatements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial
statements as a whole and informing our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We do not have any matters that are considered as
Key audit matters during the year under consideration.
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Emphasisof Matter

1) We draw attention to Note No, 430f the standalone financial statements, which
relates to the Scheme of Arrangement ("Scheme") between United Petro Finance limited
('UPFl' or the 'Demerged Company') and Fortune Credit Capital Limited ('FCCl' or the
'Resulting Company') and their respective shareholders providing for the demerger of
lending business ('lending Business') of UPFl to FCCl (Wholly Owned Subsidiary of the
Company), and issue of equity shares and optionally convertible preference shares
("OCPS") of the Company to the shareholders of UPFl with effect from March 31, 2017
(appointed dale) was approved by the Board of Directors of the respective Companies on
March 31, 2017,

The Company had filed application with National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai
bench and the Scheme has been approved by NCLT vide order dated 3rd December,
2020.

The Company acquired control over UPFL on 14th October 2018, since when all three
Companies are under common control. In view of the same, this Scheme is accounted in
accordance with Ind AS 103 - Business Combinations as common control business
combination by following pooling of interest method with effect from the date of acquisition
of control and accordingly the figures of previous year are restated, as applicable.

As per the Scheme of Arrangement, the Company issued 4,96,500 fully paid Equity shares
of face vaiue INR 10 each and 7,32,000 Optionally Convertible Preference shares of face
value 325/- each, convertible into equal number of equity shares of face value INR 10/-
each to the shareholders of UPFl, Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

2) We draw attention to Note No, 46 to the standalone financial statements, which
describes the management evaluation of impact of uncertainties related to COVID-
19 and its consequential effect on the operations olthe company. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter,

Information Other than the StandaloneFinancial Statements and Auditor's
Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information, The other information comprises the information included in
theManagementDiscussionand Anaiysis, Board's Report inciuding Annexure to Board's
Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's
Information, but does not include thestandalonefinancia!statements and our auditor's
reportthereon.

Our opinionon the standalonefinancialstatementsdoesnot cover the other informationand
we do not express any form of assurance conclusionthereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalonefinancialstatements, our responsibilityis to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materiallyinconsistent with thestandalonefinancialstatements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materiallymisstated,

If, based on the work we have performed, we conciude that there isa materiai
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

{:
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Responsibility of Management and Those charged with Governance for the
Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(S)of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
orerror.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to doso.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
thestandalonefinancialstatements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to infiuence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalonefinancialstatements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that issufficientand appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internalcontrol.

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit
inordertodesign auditproceduresthat are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
hether the Company has adequate internai financial controls system in place and

r00;:'l!..th~.operating effectiveness of suchcontrols.
",'( '\'c' \
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• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosuresmade bymanagement.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditionsthatmaycast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosuresin thestandalonefinancialstatements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion.Our conclusionsare based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditionsmay cause the
Company to cease to continue as a goingconcern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fairpresentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individuallyor in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (Ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the standaione financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significantdeficiencies in internal control that we identify during ouraudit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have compiled
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, relatedsafeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
thestandalonefinancialstatements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes publicdisclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the pubilc
interest benefits of suchcommunication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by
the Centrai Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in
"Annexure AU a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order.

2) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we reportthat:

,:'H },)!Ie have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
i;.fr--:z~st of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flowdealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books ofaccount.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind
AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualifiedason March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of theAct.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in "Annexure B". Our report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company'sinternalfinancial controls over financialreporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, asamended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the company to its directors during the
current year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given taus:

i. The company's standalone financial statements disclose the impact of pending
litigations on the financial position of the company, in Note no. 41 of the
standalone financial statements.

ii. The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material forceable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred,
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company in accordance
with the provisionsof the Act, and rules made thereunder.

For Ramesh M. Sheth & Associates

Chartered Accountants

(ICAI Firm's Registration No. 111883W)

Place of Signature: Mumbai

Date: 26.05.2021

UDINNo.: 21101598AAAAFB6122

(Mehul R.Sheth)

(Partner)

(Membership No.Pf~'1/;98)
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Annexure - A to the Auditors' Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on other legal and regulatory requirements'
section of our report to the members of The Investment Trust of India Limited of even
date for the year endedMarch31, 2021.

(i) In respectto FixedAssets:

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its fixed
assets by which all the assets have been physically verified by the
Management during the year at regular intervals which in our opinion is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. According to the information and explanation given to us, no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c) According to the information and explanationsgiven to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company, the company does not
have any immovable properties. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (i) (c) of the
Order is not applicable.

(ii) According to the information and expianations given to us and based on our
verification of records, the Management has conducted physical verification of
inventory at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed in
physical verification. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is

reasonable.

(iii) The Company has granted unsecuredloans to a company covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 ('the Act') ; and with

respect to the same:

a) In our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms and conditionson which
the loans had been granted to the companies listed in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Act were not, prima facie, prejudicial to

the interest of the Company.

b) In the case of the loans granted to the companies listed in the register
maintained under section 189of the Act, the borrowers have been reguiar in
the payment of the principaland interest as stipulated.

c) There are no overdue amounts in respect of the loan granted to the
companies listed in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act.
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(v) As represented, and based on our verification of records,the Company has not
accepted any deposits from the public, during the year, within the meaning of
Sections 73 to 76 of Companies Act 2013 and the rules framed there under and
therefore provisions of paragraph 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the central
government under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business
activities carried out by the company. Thus, reporting under clause 3 (vi) of the
Order is not applicable to the company.

(vii) In respect to statutory dues:

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular
in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, investor
education and protection fund, employees state insurance, income tax,
sales-tax, Goods and Service Tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty,
cess and any other material statutory dues as applicable with the
appropriate authorities.

b) According to the information and expianations given to us and the records of
the Company examined by us, there are no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of dues of Provident Fund, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Goods and
Service Tax, Value added Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty,
Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2021 for a
period of more than six months from the date they become payable.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
verification of records, there are no dues of income tax, sales tax, service
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, goods and service tax or value added
tax, as applicable which have not been deposited as at March 31, 2021 with
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
verification of accounts, the company did not have any loans or borrowings from
Banks, Financial Institutions or government and has not issued any debentures.
Accordingly, Paragraph 3 (viii) of the Order is not applicable.

(ix) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the
Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable.

Page I 7

(x) Based upon the audit procedures performed and information and explanations
given by the management, we report that we have not come across any instances

_ of fraud by the Company, and no material fraud on the company by Its officers
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•
(xi) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has paid/provided for

managerial remuneration during the year in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the

Act.

(xii) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the
Company is not a Chit Fund Company/or Nidhi/ Mutual benefit fundi Society and
hence reporting under clause XII of the order is not applicable.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our

examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties

are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and

details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as

required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to usand based
on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made

any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or partly convertible
debentures during the year and hence para 3 (xiv) is not applicable.

(xv) According to information and explanation given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company/the Company has not entered into any

non-cash transactions with any of its directors and hence Para (xv) of the Order is

not applicable.

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our

examination of the records of the Company, the Company is not required to be

registered under section 45IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Ramesh M. Sheth & Associates

Chartered Accountants

(leAl Firm's Registration No. 111883W)

Place of Signature: Mumbai

Date: 26.05.2021

UDINNo.: 21101598AAAAFB6122
~
(Mehul R. Sheth)

(Partner)

(Membership No. 101598)
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Annexure - B to the Auditor's Report

Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in
our Independent Auditor's Report to the members of The Investment Trust of India
Limited of even date for the year ended March 31, 2021.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls of Standalone Financial Statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of the Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of The
Investment Trust of India Limited ("the company") as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction
with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company's management is responsible for establishment and maintaining internal
financial controls based in the internal control over financial reporting criteria
establishment by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICA!').
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financiai controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financiai Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financiai controls, both applicable to an audit of Internai Financial Controls
and, both issued by the !CAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was establishment and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedure selected depends on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
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• • We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinionon the company's internal financial controls
systems over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatement due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March, 2021/ based on the
internal control over reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the leAl.

For Ramesh M. Sheth & Associates

Chartered Accountants

(ICAI Firm's Registration No, 111883W)

Place of Signature: Mumbai

Date: 26.05.2021

UDIN No.: 21101598AAAAFB6122

~UI R.Sheth)

(Partner)

(Membership No. 101598)
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Particulars

I ASSETS

1 Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment

(b) Right-of-use assets

(cllntangible assets

(dllnvestments in subsidiaries and associates

(e}Finaneial Assets

(illnvestments

(1ljLoans

(f) Deferred tax (net)

(gl Other non-<urrent asS<'ts

2 Currenlasseu

(011 Inventories

(b) Finandal Assets

(ij Trade receivables

(iiI Cash and cash equivalents

(iii) Loans

(iv) Other financial current assets

(el Other Current Assets

TOTALASSETS

THE INVESTMENTTRUSTOF INDIALIMITED

BALANCESHEETASATMARDi 31, 2021

Note No.

,
3(a)

•
S

•
7

31

•
9

10
11

12

13

"

(~in Lakhs).." .."
Marth n,2021 March n,2020

12.55 23.75

487.05 1,313.80

4.42 9.27
48,296.05 45,993.55

1,655.07 1,469.54

442.65 320.03
617.41 593.22

877.71 1,318.51

63.58 117.06

3,310.85 4,297.20
226.43 93.69

555.95 503.95
1,425.77 2,019.71

532.19 451.80

58,567.68 58,651.08

11 EqUITIESAND LIABILITIES

1 Equity

(a) Equity Share Capital

(b) Other Equity
1S

16

5,152.03

37,872.31

5,152.03

38,086.21

2 Liabilities

Non-<urrent liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(I)Borrowings

(iiJLease liabilities

(b)Provisions

Current liabilities

(i) Borrowings

(ii/Lease liabilities

(iii)Trade payables
(includes dues to micro and small enterprises:NIL (March 31, 2020; NIL)

(iv) Other Financial Liabilities

(b) Other currl'nt liabilities

(c) Provisions

TOTAl EQUITYAND LIABILITIES

Significant accounting policies

Notes forming part of the Financial Statemenu

" 1,715.45 1,666.29

18 542.82 1,436.20

19 29.11 20.29

20 10,728.52 10,265.01

21 66.49 55.27

22 130.70 517.25

23 2,060.82 1.180.13

" 224.30 264.34

lS 4S.13 '.06
58,567.68 58.651.08

1to 2

3t047

For and on behalf of

THE INVESTMENTTRUSTOF INDIA LIMITED )'--

~~. ~ •..J
Chlntan V. Valla Khyatl C. Valla

Non-Executive Chairman Non-hecutive Director

~_- ~1I0~\ l--.
s. G. Muthu Kummar Haroon MOl"::::::'" L------
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Mumbai, May 26, 2021

As per our Report of even date

For RAMESHM. SHETH& ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountanu

Firm Registration No.111883W

~
Meh~

Partner

Membership No. 101598

Mumbai, May 26, 2021

{DIN:05333936) (DIN: 03445571)
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THEINVESTMENTTRUSTOF INDIAUMITED

STATEMENTOF PROFIT AND lOSS FORTHE ENDEDMARCH31, 2021

Note No.
Particulars

Year ended

March 31, 2021

(~In lakhs)
Yearellded

March 31. 2020

ContinulnlOperations

Income
Reyenue from operation$

Other Income

Totallntome

II Expenses:
Purchases 01 Stock-In-Trade
Changes in Imrentories offinlshed goods, work4n.progress and Slock-In-Trade

Employee benefits expense

FInance Costs
Depreciatioll alld amortisatioll expense

Other expense
Total Expense

III Profit! (loss) before exceptiOl'lalltems and tax

III loss before tax

IV Tax expen$l!:

Currellt tax
Deferred tax charge/(credit)
Exces5/(short) tax provision In respect of earlier years

Total Tax Expenses

V loss for the year

VI Other Comprehenslve Income
Items that wll1not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Remeasurements of post employmellt bellefit obligations

(Ii) Income Tax relatlllg to these items

Other ComprehensIve Income forthe year (net ofux)

VII Total Comprehensive Income for the year

VIII EarnIngs per equIty share of ~ 10 each:

(1) Basic (~)
(2) Diluted (t)
Significant accounting policies
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

26

27

••
"
30

"

40

lto 2

3t047

7,654.00 18.550.32

991.13 538.70

8,645.13 }9,089.02

5,900.14 16,397.91

53.48 (115.15)

476.80 561.05

1,452.06 1,166.71

490.14 647.52

625.04 1,244.24

8,997.66 19,902.28

(352.$3) (813.26)

(352.53) (813.26)

(84.86) 818.80

16.27 11,074.00)

(68.59) (255.20)

(283.94) (558.06)

2.68 (11.501

(0.671 3.20

2.01 (8.30)

(281.93) lS66.361

(0.55) (1.08)

(0.55) (1.08)

~"
Khyatl C. Valla
Non-Execut;ye Director

(DIN: 03445571)

Hamon Mansuri

Company Secretary
5. G. Muthu Kummar

Chief Financial Ollicer

Mumbal, May 26, 2021

Chlntan V. Valla

Non.Executive Chairman

(DIN: 05333936)

For and on behalf of
THE INVESTMENTTRUSTOF INDIAUMITED

~7.

Mumbai, May 26, 2021

For RAMESHM. SHETH& ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 111883W

ASper our Report of even date
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THE INVESTMENT TRUST OF INDIA UMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2021

Ye~r ended

M~n;I1J1.2021

(~in liIkhsl

Yeilrended

March 31, 2020

A CASH flOW fROM OP{RATlNG ACTMTIES

Net Profit before lOU ~s per statement of Profit ~nd loss

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortlsatk,n

Corporate guarantee charges

Assignment receivables written off

Profit on sale of property PI~nl and Equipment

Provision for employee benefits (Net)

loss allowance on receivables

PrOviSion for expenses

Amortlsallon 01 share issue expenses

Bad debts I sundry balanceJ written off (Net)

Interest Income

Netjgain)/loss on lair valuation through prof,t and loss

Share based payment

LoSJI (Gain) on Modification of LeaJe Uabllity

Net gain on sale 01 Investments

Inll~resl expense pertaining 10 lease liability

Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligations

Interest expense

Dividend income

Openotlng Profit before working capital chanae

Adjustments for:

(Increasell Decrease in trade and others receivables

(lncreasel/decrease in Inventories

Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables, other pavables and provisions

Oirect tax paid (netl

NET CASH INflOW I{OUTFLOW) FROM OPERATING AcnvmE5

8 CASH flOW FROM INV{STING ACTIVITI{S

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and Intan8ible assels

Sale of property, plant and equipment

(Increasell Decrease in investments in subsidiaries

(Incfeasel/Decrease in investmentsln non current investments

Increase / (Decrease)1n fixed deposits and other bank balances

Interest income

NET CASH INFLOW I{OUTFLOW) fROM INVESTING ACTIVITI{S

C CASH FLOW FROM F1NANONG AcnvlTlES

Net borrowings

Payment 01 lease liabilities

Interest expense

NET CASH INFLOW I (OUTFLOW) fROM fINANCING ACTIVITIES

(352.53)

490.14

(102,50)

56.13
(2.4a)

4.92

48.44

24.49

9.21

(6.31)

(185,53)

68.03

(99.62l

11)4.28

2,68

1,.347.73

(17,01)

1,390.09

1,261.33

53.48

519.74

3,224.64

484.53

3,709,17

(0.761...,
(2,200.00)

6.31

(2,191.32l

463.51

(500.89)

(1,341.73)

(1,385,11)

(813.26)

647.52

(96.69)

16.16

23.62

11.40

9.21

0.39

(44.39)

(2.96)

126.28

176.11

(150.00)

{Il.50l

1,166.25

(16.25)

1,041.89

8,093.61

(115,16)

(8,053.32)

961.02

(94.78)

812.24

(25.44)

(7,611.22l

0.66

1.12

44,39

(1,656,49)

8,492.76

(691.11)

(1,166.25)

6,635.40

Nfl INCR{ASE/(D{CR{AS{)IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B-<C) 132,14

Casll and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 93.69

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 226,43

Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary, to conf"m the current year's classification.

(148.8Sl

242.54

93.69

Company Secretary

As per our Report of even date

for RAMUH M, SHETH & ASSOOATU

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 111883W .' - --._

~
/;~'""'0,, /()v,.",..'-'-..-4-S-'

.•. :.:( ""\'-~'.\

" r;( $\.UO\"ORS~o
MehU R.Shelh \fl\ M. NO. )5;
Partner ~i-\.\O\S9a)~..•.
Membership No, 101598 p.~"- _ ..//1)
Mumbai, May 26, 2021 11 C.,!).,

Forand On behalf of

TH{ INVESTM{NTTRUSTOf INDIA LIMITED ~

~~ .. ~e-J
Chlntan V. Valla khyati C. Valla

Non-Executive Chairman Non.Executive Director

(DIN: 05333936) (DIN' 03445511)

~-,-.-,-m-m-.-,-~~~~
Chief Financial Officer

Mumbai, May 26,2021
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STf.TEMENTOFCHANGES.INEQUITYFORTHEYEARENDEDMARCH31, 2021

~A iQU"riYS,W&,CAPITAI
As It Mareh 31,2019

Changes in equity

As at Ma reh 31, 2020

Ch~ngel in equity
As at Mareh 31, 2021

(f,;ll!l.a sl
5,102.38

49.65
5,152,03

5,152.03

Balan~e 15at March 31, 2019

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive Income for the year

Tolal compfl,'hensive ln~ome for Ihe year

Addition due to merger

Addition during the year

Transitional adjustment on a"ount of

adoption of IndAS 116 teases
lIalance as at Mareh 31, 2020

Profit lor the year

other comprehensive income for the year

Total ~omprehensive Income for the year

Share issue expenses
I,sued during the year

Addition during the year

Balance as at Mareh 31, 2021

, OTHEREQUITY
Share baled

payment

194.71

126,28

3tO.9!'

68.03
389.02

S,711.97

s,711.!l7

5,711.97

27,963.44

27,963.44

27,963.44

439.18

439.18

439.18

Equ ty component

°tcompound
finan'~lal

instruments

~u5p~n5e ~c£ount

901.83

901.83

(901.83)

Equity component of
'compound financial

Instruments

901.83
SOl.83

Retalnl"d
earning,

3,418.27

(558.06]

(8.301

IS66.36)

{t.42)

(101.69)
2,748.8(;

(283.94)

2.01
(281.93)

2,466.87

l~ in lakhs)

TOlal

38,62!l.40

1558.06)
(8.30]

(566.36)

(1.42)

126,2:;

38,086.21
\283,!l4)

2.01
(281.931

{SOU3)

969.~G

37,872.31 ••

Khyati CValia

Non-Executive Director

(DIN:D344SS71}

~
Haroon Mansuri
Company secrerrrv--

ehlntan VValla

Non-Executive Chairman

(DIN:DS333936)

For and On behalf of
THEINVESTMENTTRUSTOF INDIALIMITED

~~.

~,.::=: J

S. G. Muthu Kummar

Ch,ef Financial Officer

Mumba!, May 26, 2021Mumbai, May 26, 2021

~
Meh~

Partner

Membel1hlp No, 101598

For RAMESHII" SHETH& f.SSOCIATES

Chartered Actountants

Firm Registriltion No. 111883W

As per our R••pcrtol even date
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THE INVESTMENTTRUSTOF INDIA LIMITED

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, lOll

The Investment Trust of India limited (the Company) was incorporated on June 14, 1991 as a private limited company. It was

subsequenlly converted into a public limited company on October 20, 1994. The company had made an initial publiC offer in

February, 1995. The Company is presently listed on BSElimited ~nd National Stock Exchange of India limited. The Company is

engaged in advisory services and Irading activities besides holding investment in subsidiaries. The Group business consists of

equity and commodity broking, mutual fund. financial selVices, lending business, investment banking and third party

distribution activities which are carried out by separate subsidiaries of the Company.

a) Basis of preparation

(I) Compliance with Ind AS

In a"ordance with the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Ihe company has adopted Indian

Accounting Standards (referred to as "Ind AS"} notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015

with effect from April 1, 2016. These financial statements have been prepared in a"ordance with the Ind AS as notified

by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') read with the Companies

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,lOlS as amended and other relevanl provisions of the Act.

(ii) Application of new accounting pronouncement
Effective April 01, 1018, the Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standard 115 (Ind AS 11S) -Revenue from contracts

with customers. The effect on adoption of Ind-AS I1S was insignificant.

(iii) Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for Ihe following:

11certain financial assets and liabilities Ihat are measured at fair value;

2) defined benefit plans - plan assets meawred at fair value;

(Iv) Current non-current classification
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle

(twelve months) and other criteria set out in the Sclledule III to the Act.

(b) Use of estimates and judgments
The estimates and judgments used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously evaluated by the

Company and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors (including expectationS of future

events) that the Company believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Actual results may differ from these

estimates. Differences between actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are

known/materialised.

The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred after that date

but provide arl: "C':lal evidence about conditions existing as at the reporting datf.

Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, which may cause a material adjustment to

the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next linancial year, is in respect of impairment of investment, useful

lives of property, plant and equipment, valuatIon of deferred lax assets, provisions and contingent liabilities.
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THE INVESTMENTTRUSTOF INDIA LIMITED
Notes forming part I'lf financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(cJ Property, plant and equipment

The Company has applied for the one time transition e~emption of considering the carrving cost on the transition date i.e.

April 1, 2016 as the deemed cost under IND AS,Hence regarded thereafter as historical cost.

All items of property. plant and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation and impairment, if any. Historical cost

includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition 01the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrving amollnt or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it

is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be

measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accoullted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced.

All other repair; and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Lossduring the reporting period in which they

are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation on all the fixed assets except leasehold improvements and goodwill are provided on a Written Down Value

Method over the estimated useful lives of assets. Leasehold improvements are amortised over the period of lease on

Slraightline Method. Goodwill, on the other hand, is amortised on Straight line Method.

The Company depreciates its properly. plant and equipment over Ihe usef<.lllife in the manner prescribed in Schedule II to

the Act, and management believe that useful life of assets are same as those prescribed in Schedule lito the Act.

The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amo<.lnt. These are included in the

Statement of Profit and Loss.

(d) Lease

Operating lease

As illessee
With eHect from 1 April 2019, the CompallY has applied Ind AS 116 'leases' for all 10llg term and material lease contracts

covered by the lnd AS. The Company has adopted modified retrospective approach as stated ill Ind AS 11& for all applicable

leases on the date of adoption.

Measurement of lease Liability
At the time of initial recognition, the COmpany measmes lease liability as present val<.leof all lease payments discounted

using the Company'S incremental cost of borrowillg.

Subsequently, the lease liability is-

(i) illcreased by interest on lease liability;

(ii} reduced by lease payments made; and
(iiil remeasured to reflect any reassessment cr lease modifications specified in Ind AS 116 'leases'. or to reflect revised fixed

lease payment$.

Measurement of Right-ol-use assets
At the time of initial recognition, the Company measures 'Right.ol.use assets' as present value of all leaSl' paymellts

discounted using the Company's incremental cost of borrowing w.r.t said lease contract. S<.lbsequently, 'Right-of.use assets'

is measured usillg cost model i.e. at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses

adjusted for any remeaS<.lrementof the lease liability specified in Ind AS11& 'leases'.

Depreciation on 'Right-of.use assets' is provided on straight lille basis over the lease period.

The exception permilled in Ind AS 116 for low value assets and $hort term leases has been adopted by Company

As a lessor

lease income from operatillg leases where the Company is a lessor is recogllised in illcome on a straight-line basis over the

lease term unless the receipts ilre structured 10 ill(fease in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the

e~cepted inflationary cost increases. The respective leased asset$ are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

,
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Notes forming part of financial state!Tlents for the year ended March 31, 2021

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, balances

with ban~, deposits held with banks or highly liquid short term investments with maturities of three months or less that are
readily LOnvertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(e) Cash and Cash Equivalents

(I) Inventories
Inventories of Stock-in.trade are stated 'at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower'. Cost comprise all cost of

purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Cost formulae used are 'First-in-First-out'. Due allowance is estimated and made for defective and obsolete items, wherever

necessary.

(g)lnvest~ents In subsidiaries, Joint ventures and associates
Investments in subsidiaries and associates are recognised at cost as per Ind AS27.

(h) Financiaf Instruments

(i) Oassificatlon
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
(l) those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through the

Statement of Profit and lOss), and

(2) those measured at amortised cost.

The Company initially recognizes debt instruments issued on the date that they originate. All other debt instruments that

do not meet the criteria lor amortised cost are measured at fair value through profit and losS. Financial liabilities are

recognized initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transacton costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these

financi"lliabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

(ii) Measurement
At initial recognition, the COmpany measures a finandal asset at its fair value. Transaction costs of financial assets carried

at fair value through the profit and loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit and losS.

Oebt instruments:

The Company measures its equity investment other than in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates at fair value

through profit and loss. However where the Company's management makes an irrevocable choice on initial recognition

to present fair value gains and losse< on specific equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no

subsequent reclassification, on sale or otherwise, 01 fair value gains and losses to the Statement of Profit and lOSS.

Equity InstrumentS:

(iii) Impairment of financial assets
The ('-,~1parlY measures the expected credit loss associated with Its:.' ct~ based 00 historical trend. iodustry practices
and the business environment In which the entity operates or any Olher appropriate basis. The impairmeol methodOlogy

applied depends 00 whether there has been a sigllificaol increase in credit risk.

(iv) Income recogoltion

Interest Income
Illterest income from deblillstrument. is recognised using the effective interest rate method

Oividends
Oividends are recognised in Ihe Statemel1l of Profit and toss only when the right to receive payment is established.

(i) segment Reporting
Operating segments are reported irl a manner consistent with the inlemal reportiog provided to the chief operating decision

maker.

Page 239
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Notes forming part 01 financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(j) Borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognised and 'rcasu~ed a~ilmortised ~ost. Subsequent to initial recognition, these borrowings are

measured at amortized cost using the elf~ctive interest method, less any impairment losses.

Preference shares, which are mandatori'y redeemable on a specific date are classified as liabilities. The dividend on these

preference shares is recognised in Statement of Profit and loss as finance costs.

(k) Borrowing costs
Interest and other borrowing costs attributable to qualifying assets are capitalised. Other interest and borrowing costs are

charged to Statement 01 Profit and Lossusin!: effective interest method.

II) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions 3re recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is

probable that an outflow of resources will be required to seule the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the e~penditure required to settle the

present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect 01 possible obligations that arise from past events but their e~istence will be

confirmed by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the

Company or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of resources or where a reliable

estimate of the obligation cannot be made.

(m)Revenue recognition
The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of traded goods and related services. The Company is also engaged in

offering advisory services in capacity of investment manager to 'Alternate Investment Fund', LOanprocessing services and

other professional services.
Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of perlormance obligation upon transfer of control of promised products or services to

customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in e~change for those products or

services,
The Company recognises provision for sales retum, based on the historical results, measured on net basis of the margin of

the sale. Therefore, a refund liability, included in other current liabilities, are recognized for the products expected to be

returned.
The COmpany does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or

services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. A5 a consequence, it does not adjust any of the

transacti.)n prices lor the time value of money.

The Company satisfies a performance cbligation and re(ognlses revenue over time, if one of the fOllowing criteria is met:

1 The customer simultaneously receive. and consumes the benefits provided by the Company's performance.

2 The COmpany's performance creates tJr enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is crl~ted or

enhanced; or
3 The Company's performance does not create an a>setwith an alternative use to the Company and an entity has an

enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point in time at

which the performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue Irom sale of products and services are recognised at a time on which the performance obligation is satisfied.

Amounts disclosed as revenue are exclusive of GST/ServiceTax as applicable,

Revenue Irom sale of advisory services are recognised at a time on which the performance obligation is satisfied. Amounts

disclosed as revenue are e~dusive of GSTas applicable,
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Notes forming p~rt of fin~ncial st~tements for tile ye~r ended Marcil 31, 2021

(n) Employee benefits

(i) Defined benefit pl~lls
For defined benefit plans, tile co~t of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with

ac;uarial Villualions being carried out at each b~lance sheel date. Actuarial gains and losses ~re recognised in full in the

{'titer comprehensive income for the period in which they occur. Past service cost both vested and unvested is recognised

as an e~pense at the earlier of (a) when the plall amendment or curtailment occurs; and (bl when the entity recognises

related restructoring costs or termination benefits.

The retirement benefit obligations recognised in the lxIlance sheet represents the present value of Ihe defined benefit

obligations reduced by the fair value of scheme assets, Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to the present

value of available refunds and redu,;~Dns in future contributions to Ihe scheme.

(ii} O~fjned contribution plans

The Company's contribution towards Provident Fund and Family Pension Fund, which are defined contribution, are

accounted for on an accrual basis and recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss in the year in which they incur.

(Hi) Compensated absences
Compensated absences are provided for on the basis of an acluarial valuation, using projected unit credit method, as at

the date of the balance sh2'Ct,actuarial gains I losses , if any, are immediately recognized in the statement of profit and

loss.

(iv) Employee Options
The fair value of options granted is recognised as an employee benefit e~pense with a corresponding increase in equity.

The total amount to be e~penscd is determined by reference to Ihe fair value of the options granted:

• including any market performance conditions
e~c1udingthe impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions, and

including the impact of any nonves!illg conditions

(0) Foreign currency translation

(i) functional and presentation currency

The 'inancial statements arc presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is Company's functional and presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies ~re recognised at the prl'\lailing e~change rates on the transaction d<ltes. Realised gains

and losses on settlement of foreign currency transactions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss.

(p) lncom •• la~
The in,,'.Jme ta~ e~pense or credit for the period is the ta~ payable 0 • the current period's ta~able income based on Ihe
applicable income ta~ rate adjusted by changes in deferred ta~ assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences

and to unused ta~ losses.

Deferred Income ta~ is provided in full, using the liability method on temporary differences arising between the ta~ bases of

assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the financial statement. Deferred income la~ is determined using ta~ rates

(and bwsJ that have been enacted or SlIbstantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are eKcepled to apply

when the related deferred income ta~ assets is realised or the deferred income ta~ liability is sellled.

Deferred ta~ assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused ta~ losses, only if, it is probable that

future ta~able amounts will be available I'J utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred ta~ assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset currenlla~ assets and liabilities

and when the deferred ta~ bOllancesrelate to the same ta~ation authority. Current ta~ assets and ta~ liabilities are off set

where the COmpany has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or 10 realize the asset

and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred ta~ is recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss, e~cept to the e~lenl that it relates to items

recogn:sed in other comprehensive income or directly in equily. In this case, the ta~ is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equ:ty, respectively.

Minimum Alternate Ta~ credit is recognised when and to the e~lent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay

normal income ta~ during th U!ed period ..' ."; , "-';.-',--:.:....,"
"or "\

, '( AUOITORI"" ~.;;
,till •.•.,)
\,ol M.No. )--1
"j.\.IOI59S.I.':;/

b-t!f'- _ -'" 0n,
*C.A.*
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Notes forming part of financial statemenb for the year enoed March 31, 2C21

(q) Earnings pel share

The basic earnings per share is computed and disclosed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to equity

shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

D~luted earnings per share is computed and disclosed usirlg the weighted average rlumber of equity shares outstanding

duri"g the year, adjusted for the effects of all dilutive poterllial equity shares, if any.

(r)lmpairment of financial assets

The Company applies expected credit lo,~ (ECL)model for measurement and loss allowance on the follOWing:

1 Trade receivables and lease receivables

2 financial assets measured as at amortised cost (other than trade rp.,eivables)

In case of Trade receivables and Lease receivables, the ComparlY follows simplified <Ipproach wherein an <Imount equ<l1to

lifetime ECLis measured <Indrecognised as loss allowallce.

In case of other assets, the Company determines if there has been significant increase in credit (isk of financial asset since

initial recognition. If the credit risk of such assets has not increased significantly, an amount equal to 12 months ECL is

measured and recognised as loss allowance.

Subsequently, if the credit quality of fillancial asset improves such that, there is no longer a sigllificant increase in credit risk

since initial recognition, the Company reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12months ECL.

Eel is the difference between an contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with Contract and all the

cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls). discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Lifetime ECLare expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of financial assets. 12
months ECl are a portion of Ufetime EeL which result from default events that are possible within 12months from the

reporting date.

Eel "re measured in a manner that, they reflect unbiased and probability weighted amounts determined by range of

outcome, taking into account the time value of money and other reasonable information available as result of past events,

current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to measure lifetime ECl on its portfolio of trade receivables.

The provision matrix is prepared based on historically observed default rates over the expected life of trade receivables and

is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At each reporting date, the hlstorically observed default rates and change in

forward looking estimates are updated.

ECl impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the perlod is recognised as income I expenses in Statement of
Profit and Lossunder the head 'Other expenses'.
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THE INVESTMENTTRUSTOF INDIALIMITED
Notes forming part of finantial statements for the year ended Marth 31, 2021

(~in Lakhsl

Computers
Furniture and Leasehold

finures !,mprovements
Total

12.22 1.09 3.85 18.44 35.60

8.84 0.62 0.27 15.71 25,44

21.06 1.71 4.12 34.15 61,04
0.76 0.76

B.35 13.35

21.8:l 1.71 4.12 20.80 48.45

9.93 0.61 1.04 14.68 26.26

3.00 0.45 0.71 6.87 11.03

12,93 1.06 1.75 21.55 37.29
3.15 0.34 0.48 7.33 11.29

12.68 12.68

16.08 1.40 2.23 16.20 35.90

8.13 0.65 2.37 12.60 23.75

5.74 0.31 1.89 4.60 12.55

r in lakhs)

1997.13

623.33
1,373.80

(412.74)

474.01

487.05

.~,

." ....
'.'" "'" ~.

Attumulated Depredation
Balante at Marth 31, 2019

Additions on attount of merger

Additions

Disposals

Retlassified as held for sale
Balance at March 31, 2020

Additions
Disposals

Redassified as held for sale
Balance at March 31, 2021

Net Carrying Amount

Balance as at Marth 31, 2020

Balance as at March 31, 2021

Gross Carrying Amount

Balante at Marth 31, 2019

Additions on attount of merger
Additions

Disposals

Redassified as held for sale
Balante at March 31, 2020

Additions

Disposals

Redassified as held for sale

Balante at M;lrth 31, 2021

3(aJ Right of use 'Isset
Balance at March 31, 2019

Additions

Deduction I Adjustment
Depreciation during the year

Balance at March 31, 2020

Additions
Deduttion I Adjustment
Oepretiation during the year

Balance at March 31, 2021

3 Property, Plant and equipment
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Notes forming part of financial statements forthe year ended March 31, 2021

4 Intangible assets

Gross Carrying Amount

Balance at March 31, 2019

Additions

Di~posals

Reclassified as held for sale

Balance at March 31, 2020

Additions

Dlsp0\.llis

Reclassified as held for \.lIle

Balance at March 31,2021

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance at March 31, 2019

Additions

Disposals

Redassified a~ held for \.lIle

BalaflCl!at March 31, 2020

Additions

Disposals

Reclassified as held for \.lIle

Balance at March 31,2021

Net Carrying Amount

Balance at March 31, 2020

Balance at March 31, 2021

7 Non-Current Loans

Unsecured, considered good

Security Deposit

Total

8 Other Non-Current Assets

Advance ta~ and ta~ deducted at source (Net)

Tot;ll

9 Inventories

Stock in trade (At lower of cost or net realisable value)

Total

10 Tr;lde Receivables

UnSoKured

la)Consldered good

(b)COnsidered doubtful

Le~s;Allowance for doubtful receivables

Total

•••••
March 31, 2021

442.65

442.65

•••••
March 31, 2021

877.71

877.71

•••••
March U, 2021

61.58

63.58

•••••
March 31,2021

3,310.85

67.53

3,378.38

67.53

3,310.85

(t in Lakhs)

Computer

Software

31.87

31.87

31.87

'"
13.16

22.60

4.85

27.45

9.27

4.42

It in lakhs)..."
March 31. 2020

320.03

320.03

(t In Lakhs)

"'"March 31, 2020

1,378.51

1,378.51

(t in taktls)

As at

March 31, 2020

117.06

117.06

(t in Lakhs)

A~at

MarCh 31, 2020

4,297.20

19.08

4,316.28

19.08

4,297.20
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Notes forming p~rt offin~ndal statements for Ihe year ended Mardi 31, 2021

5 Investments In sub:>idialles, associates

As at March 31, 2021

No. of Amount (~ln
Instruments Lakhsl

Asat March 31, 2020

No. of Amount (~in

imtruments lakhs)

A.lnvestments in Subsidiaries

Unquoted

(i)EqullVIn$lrumenU at con
nr Securties Broking limited

Fortune Credit Capital limited

rn Asset Management limited

Fortune Management Advisors Umitt'd

Antique Stock Braking limited
rn c~pa<JIlimiteil

Distress A.<~et5pecialistlimited

rn Gilts limited

ITtMutu<JlFund Trustee Private limited

IRCCredit Management 5ervlces limited

rn Nlrman limited
Uniteil Petro Fin~nce limited

ITIAltern<JteFund Man<Jgement limited

Sub total (i)

(illPreference Shares
ITtsecurities Braking limited
10% Redeemable cumulative preference share:

12.50% Redeemable cumulative preference shares

fortune Cledit Capital limited

0.01% Redeem~ble cumulative preference shares
Sub total (ii)

(II1)Oebenlures at cost

United Petro Fln~nce llmlted

Sub total fiii)

(Iv)Othrentitv
ITIGrowth Opportunities UP

Sub lotalliv)

(v)Other Investments

rn Securities Broking limited
Intime Multi Commodity Comjl<lnylimited

Fortune Credit Capital limited
Fortune Creo'it C<Jpitarlimited (Refer Note 43;

Antique 5tod Braking limited

ITtGilts limited
United Petro Finance limited

Sub lotal (vi

Total(A) ((i)+{ii)+(iiil+(iv}+(vlJ

1,66,50,000 3,769.70 1,66,50,000 3,769.70

5,00,00,000 12,550.00 5,00,00,000 12,550.00

7,20,000 4,535.00 6,48,000 3,635.00

20,00,000 550.00 20,00,000 550.00

3,50,00,000 3,700.00 3,50,00,000 3,700.00

69,91,810 1,006.30 69,91,810 1,006.30

1,')0,000 16.13 1,00,000 16.13

1,50,00,000 1,958.35 1,00,00,000 958.35

5,00,000 50.00 5,00,000 50.00

10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00

SO,OOO 5.00 50,000 5.00

2,31,20,000 3,B04.20 2,31,20,000 3,804.10

55,00,000 550.00 25,00,000 250.00

32,495.68 30,195.68

5,00,000 50.00 5,00,000 50.00

9,00,000 90.00 9,00,000 90.00

3,400 3,400.00 3,400 3,400.00

3,540.00 3,540.00

4,500 4,500.00 4,500 4,500.00

4,500.00 4,500.00

84.02 84.01

84.02 84.02

134.93 113.68

8.56 8.31

112.50 112.50

2,428.65 2,428.65

87.50 75.00

51.09 26.34

87.50 43.75

2,910.73 2,808.23

43,530.43 41,227.93

B.lnv"St~nl$ln Associates

Ullquoted
(i)EquiIVJnstruments at c<»t
Fortune Integrated Assets finance limited

Total (B) (11

Total(A+B)

Aggregate amollnt of quoted Investments and Market value thele of

Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments
Aggregate amount of Impairment In I/alue of inl/estments

4B,29,54S 4,765.62
4,765.62

48,296.05

4B,296.05

48.29.545 4,765.62
4,765.62

45,993.55

45,993.55

6 Non-Currenl iI, '~stmenu

As at March 31, 2021

No. 01 Amount (~in
In~truments Lakhs)

Asat March 31,2020

No. of Amount (~in

instruments Lakhs)

Unquoted
At Fair Value thlough Profit and loss

Other Inv"SlmenU
nr lon85hort EquitVFund
nr Growth OpportunitieS Fund

998.23

32.

1,334.14
320.93

998.23

'"
1.148.61
320.93

1.469.54

1,320.00
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Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

11 Cash and cash equIvalents

Balances with bank- wrrent account

Cash on hand

Total

12 Current Loans

Un5e(ured, considered good

Loans to related parties
Total

13 Other Current Financial AsseU

Un5e(ured, considered good

Interest Accrued and due

-Related party

-other
Preference dividend receivable from related party

Other receivable

Assignment receivables

Advance for investments (Refer note 42)

Receivables from related party

Total

14 Other current assets

Prepaid expenses

Balances with authorities

Unamortised expenses
Other amount recoverable in cash or kind or for value to be received

Related parties

Others

Advance to creditors

Total

17 Non-Current80rrowlngs

Un5e(ured
Redeemable cumulative preference shares II
Optionally convertible Preference Shares classified as Liability.

Optionally convertible preference shares. Debt suspense.

Total

(f in LakhsJ

Aut Asat

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

226.42 93.24

0-01 0.45

226.43 93.69

(f in Lakhs)

Aut As at

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

555.95 503.95

555.95 503.95

(f in LakhsJ

Aut As at

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

60.75 451.74

745.19 872.33

146.23 129.98

24.48 43.71

123.62 182.11

325.50 300.50

39.28

1,425.77 2,019.71

(f in LakhsJ

Aut Aut

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

1.67 0.99

362.78 419.76

9.00 18.21

66.05

6.30 6.30

86.39 1254

532.19 457.80

(f In lakhsl

Aut A",

Marth 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

201.85 189.12

1,513.60
1,471.17

1,715.45 1,666.29

Nature of security and terms of repayment for non-current borrowings

Nature of security,
225,0001% Redeemable cumulative preference shares off 100 each Repayable on January 1, 2023. Rate of interest 1.00% p.a .

• Pursuant to demergerof lending buSiness of United Petro finance Umlted (UPFt}in to Fortune Credit Capital Umlted under the Scheme of

Arrangement without payment being received in cash, on the date of acquisition of control by the Company of UPFt. I.e. on 1st October

2018, consideration payable by the Company In form of 4,96,SOO Equity shares of Rs. 100 each and 7,32,000 Optionally Convertible

Preference Shares (OCPS) of Rs. 325/- each fully paid up recorded by splitting Equity and debt elements separately under Equity share capital

suspense, OCPS Equity suspense and OCPSdebt suspense respectively.
Aner receipt of Merger order, from 1st Janaury 2021, Equity share capital, OCPS Equity and OCPS Debt were recorded in books, by reversing

suspense account.
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15 equity 5n•••••Capital

Authorised.
35.10.10.000 equily shares of' 10 each (March 31,2020: 35,10,10,0001
Total

Issued, subscribed and fully paid.up

5,15,20,267 equity shares oH 10 each (March 31, 2020: 5,10,23,767)
Sh~re Capital Suspense

Nil (M~rch 31.2020: 4,96,500 Shares 01' 10 uch to be issued as fully paid.up pursuant
under the Scheme of Arrangement •••ithoul payment being recei~d in cashl

Total

AS at
Mall'h 11, 2021

35,101.00
35,101.00

5,152.03

5,152.03

(f in loIkMI
As at

'~~rch 31, 2020

35,101.00
35,101.00

5,102.38
4965

5.152.03

• Authorise~ capiul of 2, '.5,000 1%Rerl~emab~ Pfeference shares of Rs. 100 each (Marth 31, 2020: 2,25,000) is not considered above. Redeemable preference sh~res issued h'''e been considered as borro •••ings in
~ccordance with the requirement of Ind AS.

• Authorised capilal of 7,32,0000% Optionally Convertible Preference Shares of Rs.325 each (March 31. 2020: 7,32.000) is nOI considered above. Redeemable preference shares issued have been considered as borrowings
in ~ccordance with the requirement of Ind AS.

A. at Mueh31, 2021
Amount

Asal March 31. 2020
Amount

No, of shares If in Lakhs)

fol Recgnclli,\lon of number of .hare.

Partitula •.•

Equity Shares
Opening e~lance

Issued during the year
CIo.ing Balance

No. of sha ••••

5,10,23,767

4,96,500
5,15,20,267

(~ In llokhs)

5,102.38

49.65

5,152.03

5,10,23.767

5,10,23,767

5,102.38

5,102.38

'hI Sharn held by shareholders holding mo•••than 5%pf Ihe aggregale share. In Ihe Comp<lny

N<lmeof the 5h<lreholder

Neostar Developers UP
Adily. InfoTeellPrivate Umited

As ~t Marth 31, 2021
No. of .hlr... % of holding

2,37,42,082 46.08
1,21,54,262 23.59

As at March 31. 2020
No. of shares %of holding

2.37,42,082 46.53

1,21,54,262 13.82

(e!Term. {Rights allacl>ed to Equity sharn
The Company has only o;.,eclas~of equity shares having a par value of~ 10 per share. Each holder of an equity share Is entitled to one VOleper share on every resolution placed before the Companv on Ihe ,ight to receive

dMdend.
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(t in takhs)
Equity Equity

compo ••••ntol component of

Sh~re b~sed Securities Premium
compound compound

" Oth~r Equity capital Rue~ General Reserve fin~l\Clal flnal\Cial Retained Eilrnlnss Totalpayment Account
lnltruments Instruments
suspense
account

Balal\Ce~s at March 31, 2019 194.71 5,711.97 27,963.44 439.18 901.83 3,418.27 38,629.40
Profit forthe year l558.06} (558.06)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (8.301 (8.30)
Total Comprehensive Income forthe year (566.36) (566.361
Addition due to merger 11.42) /1.42)
Addition during the year 126.28 126.28
Transitional amount on account of adoption
ollndAS 116 teases j101.69} (101,69)
Share Issue expenses
Balance as at M~rch 31, 2020 320.99 5,711.97 27,963.44 439.1B 90UJ 2,74B.80 38,086.21
Profotfor t!leye.r t283.94] (283.94)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year 2.01 2,01
Total Comprehensive tncome for the year (281.931 (281.931
Issued during the year 901.83 901.83
Addition during the year 68.03 901.83 969.86
Balance as at M~rth 31, 2021 389.02 5,711.97 27,%J.44 439.18 901.83 2,466.87 37,872.31

SMurltles p:emlum rese,ve

Securities premium reserve Is used to record the premium on Issue of shares. These reserve will be utilised In accord~l\Ce with the provisions of the Act.

capital reserve
Capital reserve willbe utilised In accordance with provision of the Act.

Equity component of compound final\Clallnstruments suspense account
496,500 Equity Shares of' 10!- each to be Issued ~s fullypaid-up pursuant tel demerger of lending business of United Petro finance Umited In to Fortune Credit Capital limited
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Notes forming part offlnanclal statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(f in Lakhs)

" lease liabilities Au' Au'
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Leaseliabilities 542.82 1,436,20

Total 542.82 1,436.20

(f In Lakhs)

19 Non-current provisions "''' Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Provision for employee benefit
Gratuity 11.08 8.07
Unavailed leave 18.03 12.22

Total 29.11 20.29

(f In Lakhs)

20 Current Borrowings "''' As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Un5e(ured
Loanfrom related parties 573.52 1,025.01

Loan repayable on demand 10.155.00 9,240.00
Total 10,728.52 10,265.01

"''' As at
21 Lease liabilities

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Leaseliabilities 66.49 55.27

Total 66.49 55.27

(f in Lakhs)

Trade payables "''' As at
22

March 31. 2021 March 31, 2020

Amount due to micro and small enterprises (Refer note 45)

Others 130.70 517.25

Total 130.70 517.25

If in lakhs)

"''' Asat
23 Other Current financial liabilities

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Unclaimed dividends 0.05

Security deposit 2.75

Preference dividend payable 7.51 7.51

Dividend distribution tax on preference dividend 0.11 0.11

Other payables 53.21 270.90

Interest accrned and due
Related parties 66.39 99.74

Others 1,933.60 799.07

Total 2,060.82 1.180.13

(f in Lakhs)

"''' As at

" Other Current Uabllitles March 31, 2021 March 31. 2020

Statutory llabllities 224.30 264.34

Total 224.30 264.34

(f In Lakhsl

"''' As at
2S Current provisions March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Provision for employee benefit
Unavailed leave 2.29 3.18

Gratuity 4.79 4.88

Provision for expenses 38.05

Total 45.13 8.06
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Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended Mar,h 31, 2021

26 Revenue from operatlons

Sale of Produd

Traded goods

SaleofServll:es

Professional and processing lees

Other Operating Revenue

Income from assignment re<:elvables

Interest Inoome
TOlal

27 Other Inrome

Interest on lnrome tax refund

Net gain on fair valuation through profit and loss

Corporate Guarantee charges

Interest In,ome

Finance Inrome

Dividend lnrome

Sundry balance written back

Net gain on sale of Investments

Renllnrome

Gain on lease modifications

Miscellaneous Income

Profit on sale of assets

Tolal

(f In Lakhs)

Year ended Year ended

Mar,h 31, 2021 Mar,h 31, 2020

6,488.56 16,837.89

490.26 1.CXJ9.96

1.70 9.60

673.48 692.87

7,654.00 18,550.32

(t In Lakhs)

Year ended Year ended

Maf'h 31, 2021 Maf'h 31, 2020

22.68

185.53 2.96

102.50 96.69

6.31 44.39

20.20

17.01 16.25

5.87

150.00

534.71 221.80

99.62

0.11 0.74

2.46

991.13 538.70
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28 Employee Benefit Expense

Salaries, bonus and atrowances

Contributions to gratuity, provident and other funds

Share based payment (Refer note 38)

Staff welfare e~penses
Total

29 Finance Cost

Interest e~pense on borrowings

Interest e~pense on preference shares

Bank charges
Total

30 Other Expense

Commission e~penses

Other operational e~penses

Rent (Refer note)

Rates and ta~es

Printing and stationery

Travelling and conveyance e~penses

Depository charges

Motor vehicle e~penses

Electricity charges

Communication e~penses

Advertisement e~penses

legal and professional fees

Auditors' remuneration

.5tatutory audit

.Ta~ audit

.others

Repairs and maintenance

.Building

-others

Membership and subscription

Business promotion e~penses

Donation
Assignment receivables written off

Directors' sitting fees
Amortisation of share issue expenses

Lou allowance on receivables

Computer Software Charges

Bad debts/sundry balances written off

Miscellaneous e~penses
Total

(f in La~hs)

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

394.72 406.50

13.19 15.15

6s.o3 126.28

0>, 13.12

476.80 561.05

(r In La~hsl

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31. 2020

1,402.86 1,140.42

49.15 25.83

0.05 0.46

1,452.06 1,166.71

(f In Lakhs)

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2021 Mardi 31,2020

96.92 694.03

1.93 32.81

128.]6 160.41

7.12 17.19

1.31 9.26

2.79 10.95

2.89

0.80 ].19

13.32 31.31

3.51 4.51

0.14 1.54

143.01 121.56

9.35 8.21

1.15 1.09

0.61 2.81

2].21 23.31

2.47 5.19

0.53 12.14

4.44 9."
0.35

56.13 16.16

11.80 10.15

9.21 9.21

48.44 11.40

24.73 27.13

0.39

33.04 3.13

625.04 1,244.24
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31 Income Taxes

Year ended

March 31, 2021

(f in Lakhs)

Year ended

March 31, 2020

A) Tax expense recognised In the Statement of Profit and loss

Current tax
Current tax on taxable income for the year

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax charge/(credit)

MATCredit (taken)/utllised

Excess/(short) tax provision In respect of earlier years

Total Income Tax expense/(credltj

(84.86J 818.80

(84.86) 818.80

16.27 (1,074JXl)

16.27 (1,074.00)

(68.59) (2!>5.20)

If in lakhs)

Year ended

March 31, 2020

27.82%

(813.26)

(226.25)

Year ended

March 31, 2021

25.17%

(l52.53)

(88.72)

Particulars

Enacted Income tax rate in India applicable to the Company

Profit before tax
Corporate Tax on Profit before tax using rate enacted in India

(B) A reconciliiltlon of the Income tax expenses to the amount computed by applying the statutory Income tax rate to the profit before

Income taxes Is summarlted below

Tilx effect of the amounts which are not deductlble/ltaxable) In calculating

taxable Income

Tax impact due to merger
Ellcess/(short) tall provision in respect of earlier years
Effect of (recognisition) / non recognistion of deferred tall asset on losses and provision

Tall on other comprehensive Income

Others
Toullncome tax expense/(credlt)

16.27

(84.19)

(0.67)

88.72

(68.59)

(196.00)

220.47

3.20

(56.62)

(255.201
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It In t,akhs)

Credit/(charge)In

Balance as at statement of Balal'lce as at

April 1, 2020 profit or toss March 31, 2021

(IncludIng OCI)

(3.26) 14.12 10.86

4.28 4.83 9.11

592.20 48.24 640.44

17.00 17.00

593.22 84.19 677.41

It In t,akhs)

Credlt/(charge)In

Balance as at statement of Balance as at

Apr1l1,2019 profit or loss March 31, lOlO

(Indudil'lg 00)

2.39 (5.65) (3.26)

3.42 0.86 4.28

1,456.06 (863.86) 592.20

(53.05) 53.05

1,408.82 (815.60) 593.22

(f in Lakhs)

Aut As at

March 31,lO21 March 31. 2020

10.86 (3.26)

9.11 4.28

640.44 592.20

17.00

671.41 593.22

Property, plant and equipment

Provision for Employee benefits

Business Loss

00,"
Net Deferred Tax Asset

Partitulars

Details of Deferred Tax Asset

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Provision for Employee benefits

Business loss

Others
Total

(ii) COmponents of deferred taxllssets and liabilities as at March 31, 2010

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Provision lor Employee benefits

Business loss

Others

Total

Particulars

(B)The movement In deferred ux assets and liabilitles during the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021

(I) Components of deferred tax assets and liabilities as at Match 31, 2021

Particulars
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32 Financial Risk Management

The Company's activities expose It to a variety of finandal risks, Including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's risk

management assessment and policies and processes are established to Identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set

appropriate risl: limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with Ihe same. Risk assessment and management policies and

processes are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial Instrument fails to meet its contractual

obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers, loans and Inl/estments. Credit risk Is managed through

credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of counterparty to which the Company grants

credit terms In the normal course of business.

Trade receivabln

The Company has used expected credit loss (fCL) model for assessing the Impairment loss. for the purpose, the Company uses a prOl/lslon

matrix to compute the expected credit loss amount. The provision matrix takes Into account external and internal risk factors and historical

data of credit losses from I/arious customers.

Particulars "' ..
March 31, 2021

(~In lakhs)

"' ..
March 31, 2020

financial assets for which loss allowances Ismeasured using the expected credit loss

Trade recell/ables

less than 180 days

180.365 days

beyond 365 days

Total

financial Assets are considered to be of good quality and there is no significant increase in credit risk,

3,112.22

94.10

104.54

3,310.85

3,186.36

847.33

263.51

4,297.20

Uquidity risk

Uquidity risk Is the risk that the Company will not be able 10 meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages its

liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that It will always hal/e sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and

stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the Company's reputation.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities :

Particulars

As at March 31, 2021

Borrowings

Trade and other payables

less th~n 1 year

10,728.52

2,191.51

12,920.03

(~in lakhsJ

1-3 yeaTS

1,715.45

1,715.45

As ~t March 31. 2020

Borrowings

Trade and other payables

10,265.01

1,697.38

11,962.39

1,666.29

1.666.29

Market Risk

Exposure to Interest rate risk

Particulars

Tot~l Borrowings

"of Borrowings out of above bearingl/~rlable rate of interest

"' ..
March 31, 2021

12,443.97

(~In Lakhsl

"' ..
March 31, 2020

11,931.30

The Company's interest bearing financial assets are prlmarilyfixed in nature. Hence. the Company is not signiricantly exposed to interest rate

ris~.
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33 Capital Risk Manalement

The Company aim to manages its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns to

our shareholders.
The Company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of debt less cash and cash equivalents as presented on the face of the

financial statements.
The Company's objective for capital management Is to maintain an optimum overall financial structure.

Debt equity ratio

Debt (includes non-current, current borrowings and current maturities of Jong

term debt)

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Less: Other balances with bank

Net debt

Total equity

Net debt to total equity ratio

.."
March 31,2021

12,443.91

226.43

12,211.54

43,024.34

0.28

(~in lakhs)

As at

March 31, 2020

11,931.30

93.69

11,831.61

43,238.24

0.21
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Note5formlllg p.rt ollill.nclal stalemellt510r Itle yur ended March 31. 2021

34 fAIRVALUEMEASUREMENT

Financiil Innrument by category ind hlerirchy

The filr values ollhe financialanets alld liibilllle5 !re included al (he !mount al which the Instrument could be exChinged In •.currenl transaction belweer. willing parties, other than In a forced or liquidation .ale.

The foliowinCmethods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

1. Fair value of Cilh and short-term deposit5, trade and Olher 5hort lerm rece ••••ables. trade payables, olher current l'abWI'e5, Short term loan5 from bank!; and other finanCial Institutions approximale their carrying
amounlS la'gely due 105hort term miturllles of these instruments.

2. Financial instruments with fl~ed and virlable interest rites are "",.Iu.ted by Ihe Company based on parametel"1 such as intere5t rale5 and Individual credil worthiness 01 the counlerpirty. Based en this ""'aluallon.
allowances are ta~en to accouot lor expected losses 01these rcceivibles. Accordingly. lair value of such Instruments is not materially different from their carrying amounts.

The fa;r value5 for lOins,security deposits and investmenl In preference shares w~'e calculated based on c,,,h floW5 discounted using a current lending rale. They are cla5slf'ed a5 level 3 fair values in Ihe fai, value
hierarchy .'ue 10 the inc':lsion of unot--ervabTe Inputs including counter party credit ris~.

Ttle fair v~luu of non.current borrowlng5 ire based on dlsc\>unted cash flows using a currenl borrowing rale. They are claulfled •• I"",el 3 fair value5 In the fair value hierarchy due10 the use of unobservable Inputs.
Including own credll rl5k.

For financial assets and liiblillie. that are measured at fairvilue. ttle carrying amounts are equal to the fair values,

The Compiny uses the following hierarchy for determlnlnll and dlsdo.ing the Iilr value 01 lInanclaiinstrument5 by valuatIon technique:
levell, qu\>ted (unadjU5Ied) prices in ietive markets for Idenlical assets or Iiabllilies.

Level2; othertechnlque5 10'which all Inputs which have a significant effect on Ihe recorded fair value ire oblervible, either d;rectly or Indirectly.
Level3: tectlnlques which use Inputl that have. slgnifkant effect on the recorded filr value that ire not baSed on oblervible markel data.

l~ in lakhs)
Flnandil A<sselland fillr vilue thrllugh Profit and lO55 fillr Vilue through 00 Carried at amortised cost

aT\>t:~UibUitles i:JaMarth 31, E
III ""'~ leve'31.~ ~evel2 I',lj Total

D ~,.Non Current C~ent level 1 level 2 le:ll level 2 le.".,13 T~,tal level 1 , ,t.~veI3 Amo,~~tti-!'
2021":1;V2 a ~

roo
financial AS5et5
Investments

Olhel"1 1.555.01 0 1,655.07 1,334.14 0 320.93 1,65S.07 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 1.6SS.ll7

Dthernset5

Cash alld cash e uwalentl 0 226.43 226.43 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 226.43 226.43 226.43
Tride receivables 0 3.310.85 3,310.85 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3.310,85 3,310.85 3,310.85
lOinS tll related parries 0 555.95 555.9S 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 555,9S 555.95 555.95
Interest receivible5 0 805.94 80S.94 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 805,94 805.94 805.94
Other linincial aS5ets 0 619.83 619.83 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 619,83 619.83 619.83

0Security depollts 412.65 0 442.65 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 442,65 442.65 442.65
T\>tal 2.097.72 5,S19.00 7,616.72 1,334.14 0 320.93 1,655.07 0 0 0 0 0 5,961.65 S,961.6S 7,616.72

F;ninclalllibmtle5

Borrowin s 1,715.45 10,728.52 12,443.97 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 201.85 12.242,12 12,443.97 12,443.97
leale liibilities 542.82 66,49 609.31 0 609.31 609.31 609.31
Trade Pi ablel 0 130.70 130.70 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 130.70 130.70 130.70
Other Financlilliabllilies 2,060.82 2,060.82 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2.060,B2 2.060.82 2,060.82
Total ~ 2.258.27 12.986.53 15.244.80 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 201.85 15,042.95 15,244.80 15,244.8 -e; rust ~;; \;>.;..:....: (~ ~\ ~~_,O~~",. ,,,,-'r ....•-</,. \

~ ((2)N ')a-
1'( ...••'.;:.,\
':::t
l

AUOITORS \.J'

t\ ~i~ M, No. i[!1
S\. 101598.1.~' ~.-J5fJ-.q..•••• _ -'" <", "J

.C.A.*.
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]4 FAIRVALUEMEASUREMENT(Continued)

l~ in La~hslFinan(;;! AsselS and FaIr value through Profit and lOSI Fair value througll 00 carried at lImort;.;ed cost
TOla1

1lOlLiab~lts as al March]1:;
;0::'1 ". ,'"2020. Non Cur~ent Cur~~nt level 1 Level 2 Level 3 'Jolal level 1 Level 2 Lev:~] T(ltal Levell Level 2 level,] T(ltal •.•Am::ntFinancial AnelS

Investments
Others 1469.54 , 1,469.51 1,148.61 320.!H 1,469.54 , - , - , - 1,469.54
Olher Assets

Calh and cash eCluivalents , 93.69 93.69 , - - - - - , - - , 93.69 93.69 93.69Trade rec:eivables , 4,297.20 4,297.20 - , - , - - - - 4,297.20 4,297,20 4,297.20OIher balances with ban~ , , - - - - - - - - - , -loans to related parties , 503.95 503.95 - , , - - - , , - , 503.95 503.95 503.9~Interelt 1,324.07 1.324.07 - - - - - , - - , - 1,324.07 1,324.07 1,n4.0,Olher financial a",eu 695.64 695.64 - , - , , - - , 695.64 695,64 695.MSecurity depo~lts 320.0l - 320.03 - , - - - , - - , nO.03 320.03 nomTotal 1,789.57 6,914,55 8,704,12 U48.61 - 320,93 1,469.54 - , - - , - 7,234.58 7,234.58 8,704.12
Financlaillabilille~
Borrowln s 1,666.29 10,265.01 11,931.30 - - - , , - - 189,12 11,742,18 11,931.30 11.931.30lease liabilities 1,436.20 55.27 1,491.47

1,491.47 1,49147 1.49147Trade Payables - 517.25 517.25 - - - - - , - - 517,25 517.25 517,25Other Financial liabilities - 1,180,13 U80.13 , - - - , - , , , 1,180,13 1,180.13 1,180,13Total 3,102.49 12,017.66 15,120.15 - , , - - - - , - 18!U2 14,931.03 15,120.15 15,120.15

,--••.---"._-~-----.'---
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Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

3S SEGMENTREPORTING

Operating Segments;

a. Advisor\' services and investment activities

b. Trading Activities

Identification of Segments:

The chif!f operational decision maker monitors the operating results of its Business segment separatel\, for the purpose of

making decision about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or

loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements, Operating segment have been identified on the

basis of nature of prn.:'ucts and other quantitative criteria specified in the Ind AS 10e

Segment revenue and results:
The expenses and income which are not directly attributable to any business segment are shown as unallocable expenditure

(net of allocable income).

Segment assets and Liabilities:
Segment assets i~c1ude all operating assets used by the operaUng segment and mainly consist of propertY, plant and

equipments, trade receivables, Inventory and other operating assets. Segment liabilities primarily includes trade payable and

other liabilities. Common assets alld liabilities which call not be allocated to any of the business segment are shown as

unallocable assets /liabililies.

Disclosure pursuant to lnd AS 108 "Operaling Segment
If in Lakhs)

p'i~ff~&s, ::' ikdV~ry serviceS:~ Trading Activities Total
inve~~e~t activities , ..,

2020-2021 2019-2020 2020.2021 2019-2020 2020-2021 2019-2020

Segment revenue

ElIternal revenue 2,156.57 2,106.46 6,488.56 16,982.56 8,645.13 19,089.02

Inter segment revenue - - - - - -
Total revenue 2,156.57 2,106.46 6,488.56 16,982.56 8,645.13 19,089.02

Segment Result 496.79 (231.17) 602.74 584.62 1,099.53 353,45

Interest eKpense - - - - 1,452.06 1,166.71

Profit before talC 496.79 (231.17) 602.74 584.62 (352.53) (813.26)

ProvisIon for talC

Current tal< - - - - - -
Deferred taK (84.8<;, 818.80 - - (84.86) 318.80

EKcess/(short) taK prOliision in respect 16.27 (1,074.ool - - 16.27 (1,074.00)

of earlier years

Profit after tax (before exceptional

items) 565.38 24.03 602.74 584.62 (283.94) (5S8.06)

ElIceptional items - - - - - -

Profit after tax (after exceptional

items) 565.38 24.03 602.74 584.62 (283.94) (558.06)

s;;ment assets 55,467.14 56,236.94 3,100.54 2,414.14 58,567.68 58,651.08

Segment liabilities 15,522.05 14,544.94 21.29 867.90 15,543.34 15,412.84

Net Segment Assets 39,945.09 41,692.00 3,079.25 1,546.24 43,024.34 43,238.24

Other Information

aJCapital eK;:;enditure 0.76 57.31 - - 0.76 57.31

b) Depreciation 16.14 647.52 - - 16.14 647.52
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Notes formilll;: part of fillallcial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2021

36 Related party Transaction.

il Names of related parties ind niture of relationship

I) Relatell parties where control exists

ITI ~ewrities Broking limited

Fo,,~ne Credit Capital Limited

ITI/.sset Management Limited

AnUque Stock Broklng Limited

ITI C.apital Limited

Distress Asset Specialist Limited

Fortune ~,\anagement Advisors Limited

ITI Mutual Fund Trustee Private Limited

ITI Gilts Limited

ITI Nirman Limited

IRe Credit Management Services Limiterl

n, Growth Opportunities LlP

ITI Alternate Funds Management Limited

United Petro Finaoce limiled

Intime Multi Commodity Company limited

Neue Allianz Corporate Services Private Limited

Antique Stock Broking (IFSCI Limited

iil Enterprises liaving significant influence

FO'lune Integrated Assets Finance limited

Winl! Construnion Limited

Wholly owned subsidiary

Wholly owned subsidiary

Subsidiary

Wholly owned subsidiary

Wholly owned subsidiary

Wholly owned subsidiary

Wholly owned subsidiary

Wholly owned subsidiary

Wholly owned subsidiary

Wholly owned subsidiary

Wholly owned subsidiary

Subsidiary

Wholly owned subsidiary

Subsidiary

Step down subsidiary

Step down subsidiary

Step down subsidiary

Associate

Subsidiary of associate

iii) Key manigerial pe~onnel and their relatives

Mr.PrateekTayal

Mr.Rajesh Kumar Acha

Mr. S.G.Mulhu Kummar

Mr. Haroan Mansuri

Manager (upto 31.05.2020)

Manager (from 01.07.2020)

Chief Financial Off,cer

Company Secretary

(~ ill lakhsl

Transadion amount

20,~q.2! 201,~l9

9.SS 55.06

2S.21

24.30 2053

]4.60 14.08

0.45 1.35

0.97

0.36 0.30

0.62 0.62

65.68 66.69

540.00 435.25

46.22

20;.71 37.05

4.08 41.92

31.1S 31.B5

95.41

Mj.ximum balance

outstandi.fg at ~nrtime during

2Q~.Q.;.~ 29.19-29,

2.Contibution to provident fund

Mr.Prat •••.~T ••yal

Mr,Rajes:l Kumar Acha

Mr. S.G.Muthu Kummar

Mr. Haroon Mansur;

4. Interest paid

Fortune Credit capital Limited

Fortune Managment Advisors Limited

In Alternate Funds Management limited

1. Remuneration

Mr.Prateek Tayal

Mr.Rajesh Kumar Acha

Mr. S.G.Muthu Kummar

Mr. Hamon Mansuri

S. Processing fees

Fortune Credit Capital Limited

United Petro Finance tlmited

3. Interest charged

DistreSS Asset Specialist Limited

United Petro Finance limited

Fortune Integrated Assets Finance Limited
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THEINVESTMENTTRUSTOFINDIA LIMITED
Notes forming p~rt 01fin~nd~1 SUI"ment~ for the ye~r nd~d r.,."h 31, 2021

6. Renl charged
ITIGilts LImited

Di$trl:'~ Asset Speciali$tlimited

ITIAsset Management Limited
IT! MuWal Fund Trustee Private LImited

Fortune Integrated Asseu FinanceLImited
ITI Mutual Fund Trustee Private limited

United Petro Finance limited
III Securilies Broking limited

Fortune Credit Capital Limited

7. Rent paid
Antique Stock Broking limited

8. Subscription of equity sh~res/capital contribution of subsldi~riu
ITIAs$etManagement Limited
In Gilts LImited

ITIMutual Fund Tru$tee Private limited
In Growth Opportunities LLP
ITIAlterr>ateFundManagement limited
United Petro Finance limited

9. Saleof equity sh~res to
ITISecurities Broking limited

10. Investmentln subsidi~ries

Fortune Credit Capital Limited

11. A.s.lilgnmentcollection received
Fortune Intel:rated AssetsFinaocelimited

2020-21

4.80

14.40

282.39

0.60

61.07

22.53

169.54

4.80

0.80

14.40

>.80

200.00

12. Lo~n t~ken from
Fortune Credit Capilal Limited
ITIAlternate Fund Management limited

Fortune Managmenl Advisors Llmiled

B. LoilO repaid to

Fortune Credit Capital limited
ITIAlternate Fund Management llmiled

fortune Managment Advisors limited

14. loan given to
Di~tre55As5el Specialist Limiled

15. loan received back
Fortune Credit Capital limited
DistressAsset Specialist limited
Fortune Integrated AssetsFinaocelimited

16. SubscrJptbn 10debentures
United retro Finance limited

1,983.76

502.75
51.00

555.95

990.16

574.50

541.95
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THE INVESTMENT TRUST OF INDIA LIMITED

Notes forMing part of finandal stalerr.ents for the year en~: t! M ••rth ;.'. 2021

c. Amount due to/from reliat('d parties

1. Loan payable to

IIIAlternate Fund Mana!lement Umited

Fortune Managment Advisors Umited

Fortune Credit Capital limited

2. Loan receivable from

Distress Asset Specialist Limited

Fortune Integrated Assets Finar'lCe limit~

3. Othcr rec~ivables

IIIGrowth Opportunities LlP

Fortune C,edit Capital Limited

ITI securities Braking Limited

3. Interest accrued and due on loan given

Distress Asset Sperialist Limited

United Petro Finance limited

4. Interest i1ccrued and due 01110;10taken

Fortune Credit Capital Limited

Fortune Managment A!.IvisO(s limited

IIIAlternate Fund Management Limited

s. Assignment collection receivilbles

Fortune Integrated Assets Finance limited

6. Remuneration

Mr.l'.<Iteek Tayal

Mr.Rajesh Kumar Acha

Mr. S.G.t...luthu Kummar

Mr. Haroon Mansuri

1. Guar.ntees given

ITI Sewrllies Broking limited

Antique Stock Braking Limited

Intime Multi Commodity Company limited

IT' Gilt< I td

United .'<tro Finar1Cl! Limited

Related parties are identified by management and relied upon by auditors.

(~in takhsJ
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31 D,sclosure pursuant LoIndian Accounting Standard (IndAS)19 "Employee Benefits~

A) Defined Benefit Plans

The Company provides for gr~tuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1912. Employee~who are in
continuous service for a perio.l of 5 years are elieible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on reliremenVtermination is
the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of year~
of service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the Companymakes contributions to recognised funds in India.

Changes in defined benefit obligations
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 28.S1 11.14

Current service cost 4.88 4.57

Interest cost 1.84 0.80

Components of actuarial gain/losses on obligations
Due to Change in financial assumptions 0.11 1.11

Due to change in demoeraphic assumption (0.03)

Due to eltperience adjustments (2.84) 9.12

Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 32.49 28.51

" Change In FairValue of Plan Assel5
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 15.56 14.49

Interest Income 1.11 1.17

Remeasurement Gain/(Loss)
Return on plan assets eltcluding;lmounts included in interest income (0.05) (0.10)

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 16.62 15.56

'" Net employee benefit expensf'S for the year
Current service cost 4.88 4.57

Net interest cost (0.36)

Net employee benefit expenses for the year 4.88 4.21

Other COmprehensive Income for the current period
Components of actuarial gain/losses on obligations:
Due to Change in financial assumptions
Due to change in demographic assumption
Due to eltperience adjustments

Return on plan assets eltcludingamounts included in interest income
Other Comprehensive Income for the current period

IV Category of fair value of plan asset
Policyof insurance'

(0.11) (1.11)
0.03

2.84 (9.12)
(0.05) {0.10)

2.68 (11.50)

100% '00%

V Assumptions
With the objective of presenting the plan assets and plan liabilities of the defined benefits plans and post retirement medical
benefits al their fair value on Ihe balance sheet, assumptions under IndAS19 are set by reference 10market conditions at the

valuation date.

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:
I) :'Inancial Assumptions:

Dis.counlrate (per annum)
Salaryescalation (per annum)

6.85%

5.00%

6.90%

5.00%

I

':j Demographic Assumptions:
Published rates under the IndianAssured LivesMortality (2012.14) table.
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ii) Investment Risk

VIII RiskExposure
Through its defined benefit plans, the COmpanyis uposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed

below:il Actuarial Risk It Is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This
can arise due to Adverse Salary Growth Experience,
Variability in mortality rates and Variability in withdrawal

rates.
For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the
assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may not be
the fair value of instruments backing the liability. tn such
cases, the present value of the assets is independent of the
future discount rate. This can result in wide fluctuations in
the net liability or the funded status if there are significant
changes in the discount rate during the inter-valuation

period.

iii)UquidityRisk Employees with high salaries and long durations or those
higher in hierarchy, accumulate significant level of benefits.
If some of such employees resign/retire from the company

there can be strain on the cash flows.

iv)Market Risk Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the
changes and fluctuations of the financial marketS. One
actuarial assumption that has a material effect is the discount
rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An
increase in discount rate leads to decrease in Defined Benefit
Obligation of the plan benefits& vice versa. This assumption
depends on the yields on the corporate/government bonds
and hence the valuation of liability is exposed to
fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date.

v) LegislativeRisk Legislativerisk is the risk of increase in the plilll liilbilitiesor
reduction in the plan assets due to change in the
legislation/regulation. The government may amend the
Payment of Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay
higher benefits to the employees. This will directly affect the
present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the same
will have to be recognized immediately in the year when any

such amendment is effective.

B) Details of Defined Contribution Plan
The Company also has certain defined contribution plans. Contributions are made to providellt fund ill India for employees at the
rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations. The contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the
government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any
constructive obligation. The expense recognised during the year towards defined contribution plan is ~7.581akhs (Previous yeart

10.9S lakhs) in the Statement of Profitand Lossfor the year ended March 31, 2021 under defined contribution plan.

C) COmpellSatedabsences
COmpensated abse,lCeSare provided for on the basis of an actlJarial valuation, usin!, projected unit credit method, as at the date

of the balance sheet, actuarial gains /Iosses, ifany, are immediately recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
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38 Employee Stock Option Scheme

The Company has formulated an Employee Stock Option SChemeknown as FfSIL Employees Stock Option Plan 2017 rESOP - 2017") in
accordancewith the provisions of Securities and hchange Boardof India (ShareBasedEmployeeBenefiUI RegulatiOl1S,2014.-_.~._.._...•..~,-- .-•.. -•..... -

". Pilr1icular$
No.

Remarks

1 Oateof rant 19th Aoril,2018 23rd Novemmber, 2018

2 0 tions ranted 3,00,000 3,00,000

3 0 ions vested Nil Nif

• a tions e~ercised Nil Nil

5 The total number of sllares arisin asa result of e~ercjseof 0 tions Nil Nil

6 options lapsed Nil Nil

7 Vestin date
For 2,SO,lXX)options. 19" For 3,00,lXX)options-

April,2019 23rd November, 2020

For50,000 options. 1"

JUne,2020

8 Assumed e~erclsed eriod lin ears]
For 2,50,lXX)options. 19'" For 3,00,000 options - 2.S

April, 2019- 2 years years

For50,000 options. 1"

June, 2020 3.17 years

9 tile e~ercise rlce ~ 247.25 ~ 220.85

" vilriation In terms of 0 tions Not a Jicable Not a licable

11 mone realised eKerciseof 0 tions Not yet due for e~erclse Not yet due fore~ercise

12 total number of 0 tiOM In force 3,00,000 3,00,000

n em 10 eewise details of 0 tions ranted to:

a) Ke Mana erial Personnel Nil Nil

b) any othel employee whO receives a grant 01 options in anyone year 0 M,. Rajesh Bhatia w"' M'. George Herber Joseph

option~ amounting to five percent or more of total options granted durin granted 3,00,000 options. w"' grilnted 3.00,000

that year options.

c) Identified employees whO were granted options, during anyone yeilr Not applicable Not applicilble

equal to or e~ceeding one percent of the issued capital, e~cludin

outstanding warrants and conversions, of tile company at the time 0

grant,

14 any material change to tile scheme and whether such scheme is i No No

compliance with the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,

2014

The fair value has been cakulated using BlackSholesOptions Pricing Model and significant assumptions made in this regard are asfollows:

Particulars Vest dated April 19. 2019 Vest dated June01, 2020 Vest dated November 23,

2020

1 StockPrice f) 247.25 247.25 225.15

2 Strike! bercise Price 247.25 241.25 220.85

3 " cted Life of 0 tions nO.of ears) 2 3.11 2.5

• Riskfree rate 01Interest (%) 1.48 1.48 1.1

5 1m lied Volatilit factor ("I 31.12 31.12 33.25

6 Fair value ~er 0 lion at ear end (~I 59.5 18.52 67.01

In respect of options granted under ESOP,accounting is done as per requirements of Ind AS102 Share based Payments. E.penses on account

01Share based payments during the year amounts to~ 68.03 lakhs.
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Summary of Employee Slock Option SchemesI'£SOS')

For Ihe Period from 01/04/2020 1031/03/2021

Sr.No. Partiwlars of 0 tlons/ Scheme
ESOP2017

1 Outslanding asal beginning of the Period
6,00,000

-
2 Granted durin the Period

.-

3 D~t~ of Grant
16/04/2018 &

23/11/2018

4 Forfeited during the Period
...

5 Cancelled durin the Period
...

6 La sed ci:••ing the Period
...

, Exerciseddurin the Period
.-

, Allotted durin the Period
.-

9 Number of sharesarisin asa result:of c~~rcise01options
..

10 Mo",e realized exercise of 0 tions (INR).if scheme is im lemented directl b the com an
.

11 Number of 0 tions vested durin the Period
...

12 Outstandin as at the end of the Period
6,00,000

13 Exercisableat the end of the Period
6,00,000

24 Wei hted avera e remain;;;-contractuallife (in ears) 3.5 ears

25 WeiEhted avera e fair value of options ranted
62.27
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39 LEASES

(il As a leasee

(A) Following are the changes In the carrying value of right of use assets

Particulars

Opening Balance as at April 01, 2020

Movement during the year

Depreciation during the year

Ooslng Balance as at March 31, 2021

I!In Lakhsl
1,313.80

-412.74

474.01

487.05

Particulars

Opening Balan'e as at April01, 2019

Movement during the year

Depreciation during the year

Ooslng Balance as at March 31, 2020

({In Lakhsl

1,904.78

92.35

623.33

1,373.80

(B) Movement In Lease liabilities

Particulars

Opening Balance as at April 01, 2020

Movt'ment during the year

Add: Finance cost accrued during the period

Less: Payment of lease liabilities

Balance as at 31 March 2021

(!In Lakhs)
1,491.47

.485.55

104.28

500.89
609.31

Particulars

Opening Balance as at April01, 2019

Movement during the year

Add: Finance cost accrued during the period

Less: Payment of lease liabilities

Balance as at 31 March 2020

(! in Lakhs)

2,006.47

176.11

691.11

1,491.47

(e) Break up value of the Current and Non - Current Lease Uabllities

Particulars

Current Lease liabilities

Non.Current Lease Liabilities

Total

earenoe

Marc ~,.l92-
66.49
542.82

609.31

160.41

I{ In lakhs)

ear ena CI

Ma~dI31,~02Q
176.11

623.33

128.36

Finance cost on lease liabilities

Depreciation on right of use assets
Rental Expenses recorded for short-term lease payments and

payments for leases of low-value assets not included in the

measurement of the lease liability

(0) Amount recognised In statement of profitJ :o>ss

I"' ------- ••• ----------------"'y •.:.~,,;":'l:.::l
Particulars ¥ilrch31~,?,O_21

104.28

474.01

(! in lakhs)

Year en(led

arch 3J,J.O~O
691.11

(E) Amount recognised In statement of cash flows..__---------- ...--------- ..•.---------v:..~,~.•.".,".•,
Partltulars Marc~ 31, ~021

Total tash outflow for leases 500.89
Further there are no short term or low value leases, for which Company carries any material commitments.

Page 266



THE INVESTMENT TRUST OF INDIA LIMITED
Notes forming part of financial statEments for the year ended March 31, 2011

VI Sensitivity Analysis

Im;Jacl on defined benefil obligalion due to change in assumptions

Discount rate Sensitivity

Increase by 0.5% 31.45 27.53

(" change) .3.20% .3.43%

Decrease by O.S% 33.60 29.56

(% change) 3.43% 3.69%

Salary growth rate Sensitivity

Increase by 0.5% 32.97 29.03

(%change) 1.49% 1.85%

Decrease by 0.5% 31.78 28.02

(% change)
.2.17% .1.70%

Withdrawal rate IW.R.) Sensitivity

Increase by 0.5" 32.65 28.68

(" changel 0.50" 0.61%

Decrease by 0.5"
32.32 28.33

I" change)
-0.52" -0.63"

V" r.~aluritv profile of defined benefit obligation is as follows:

Within Ihe next 12 months
4.04 3.71

l<Iter than 1 year and not later than 5 years 15.53 15.73

l<oter than 5 yeM
10.37 8.16

The future accrual is not considered in arriving at the above cash-liows.

Page 267



THE INVESTMENTTRUSTOF INDIA LIMITED

Notes forming p~rt of financial statements for thp yeilr ended MMch 31,2021

40 Earnings Per Share

Basic and dil'Jted earnings per share computed in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 33 (1AS-33}HEarning Per 5hareH

I,",",
Partlculari

•
Basic Earnings Per Share

Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year

Addition during the year

Number of equity shares at the end of the year

Weighted aver ••ge number of eQuity shares

Net profit/floss) after ta~ (t in lakhs)

Basic earning /(loss) per eQuity share off 10 each (inf)

Diluted Earnings Per Share

Number .Jf equity shares at the beginning of the year

Dilutive effect of outstanding equity shares

Addition during the year

Number of equity shares at the end of the year

Weighted average number of eQuity shares

Net profit/(IossJ after ta~(f in lakhsJ

DiMed earning /(loss) per equity share off 10 each (inf)

5,10,23,767

4,96,500

5,15,20,267

5,15,20,267

(283.94)

(0.55)

5,10,23,767

6,00,000

4,96,500

5,21,20,267

5,21,20,267

(283.94)

(0.5W

As at
¥arch 3.1, 2Q20

5,10,23,767

4,96,500

5,15,20,267

5,15,20,267

(558.06)

(1.08)

5,10,23,767

6,00,000

4,96,500

5,21,20,267

5,21,20,267

(558.06)

(1.08)*

*Since the earnings / (foss) per share computation based on diluted weighted ;lYerage number of shares is anti-dilutive, the basic

and diluted earnings / (1055)per share is the same.

41 Contingent liabilities and capital commitments (to the e~tent not provided for)

a) Corporate guarantee issued in favour of banks to secure credit facilities sanctioned by the banks to subsidiary companiesf

41,000 lakhs (Previous yearf 42,300 lakhs)

b) Claims not ~cknowledged by the Company relating to income ta~f 10.261akhs (Previous yeart 10.26Iakhs)
c) There are no outstanding capital commitments as on March 31, 2021 (Previous year Nil).

" In respect of Iltigations filed by the Company for recovery amount of t 300.50 lakhs (Previous yearf 300.50 'akhs), no provision

has been made as the management is of the opinion that entire amount is fully recoverable.

43 The Scheme of Arrangement (H5chemeH) between United Petro Finance Limited ('UPFl' or the 'Demerged Company) and Fortune

Credit Capital Umited ('fCCt' or the 'Resulting Company} and their respective shareholders providing for the demerger of

tending Business ('NBFC Business'} of UPFt to fCCL (Wholly Owned Subsidiary of the Company). and issue of equity shares and

optionally convertible preference shares (HOCPSH)of the Company to the shareholders of UPfL with effect from March 31, 2017

(appointed date) was approved by the Board uf Oirectors of the respective Companies on March 31, 2017, The Company had filed

application with National Company Law Tribunal (NClT), Mumbai bench and the Scheme has been approved by NCll vide order

dated 3rd December, 2020 and accordingly, the effect of Ihe SCheme is given in these financial slatements of the COmpany.

555.95

Disclosure required under regulation 34(l) of the 5EOI (listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements} Regulations, 2015

toan and advances in the nature of loans given to subsidiary companies (f in Lakhs)
•• -----, Ma~imum
Outstanding a~ at

ouutandlng
March 31, 2021

~uri!lgth~year
S55,95Distre5s Assel Specialisl Limited

l a:neof sub~idiarY company

••

!
I
I

!
I
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('f in lakhs)

20Hi!20
Particulars
1.The principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately remaining

unpaid to any supplier as at the end of accounting year).

4S The company has requested its creditors to confirm the applicability to them under the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006. Based on the responses received by the Company, the details of dues to micro enterprises and Small

enterprises are as under:

ii. The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro Small and

Medium Enterprises Development act, 2006, along with the amounts of the payment

made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during accounting year.

iii. The amount of Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment

(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the period) but without

adding the interest specified under Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development

Act, 2006.

iv. The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year.

v. The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding

years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small

enterprises for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section

23 of the Micro small and Medium enterprises Development act, 2006.

Note: The information as required to be disclosed under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been

determined to the otent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the company.

46 The outbreak of Corona virus (COVID-19) pandemic globally and In India is causing significant disturbance and slowdown of
economic activity. The impact of the same is uncertain and will depend on the spread of Covld-19, the effectiveness of current

and future steps taken by the governments to mitigate the economic impact and other variables. The ongoing situation may result

in some changes in the overall economic and market conditions, which may in turn have an impact on the opera lions of the

Company.
Necessary precautions to ensure hygiene, safety, and wellbeing of all our employees at all offices have been implemented. The
Group has considered the possible effects COVID-19may have on the recoverability and carrying value of its assets. Based on

current indicators of future economic conditions, the Group expects to recover the carrying amount of these assets. The situation

is changing rapidly giving rise to inherent uncertainty around the edent and timing of the potential future impact of the COVID-19

which may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these results. The Group will continue to closely monitor

any material changes arising of future economic conditions and impact on its business.

47 Previous year's figures are reworked, regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary, to conform to the current year's

classification.

'f'
Khyatl C. Valla
Non_Executive Director

(DIN: 03445571)

~~
Haroon Mansurl ----

Company Secretary
S.G. Muthu Kummar

Chief financial Officer
Mumbai, May 26, 2021

Chlntan V Valla

Non-Executive Chairman

(DIN: OS333936)

for and on behalf of
THEINVESTMENTTRUSTOF INDIA LIMITED

~~.

~~-~_:....::_-

For RAMESHM. SHETH& ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants
firm Registration No. 111883W

Mumbai, May 26, 2021

As per our Report of even date
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